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INTRODUCTION
General

This report contains references to years 2009, 20087, 2006, 2005 and 2004, which
represent fiscal years ending or ended Januar@®%), January 30, 2009, February 1, 2008,
February 2, 2007, February 3, 2006 and Januar@#, respectively. All of the discussion
and analysis in this report should be read witll, iarqualified in its entirety by, the
Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes

Forward Looking Statements

“Forward-looking statements” within the meaninglué federal securities laws are
included throughout this report, particularly unttee headings “Business” and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &wesults of Operations,” among others. You
can identify these statements because they aot@y statements of historical fact or they use
words such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “believe,”dnticipate,” “project,” “plan,” “expect,”
“estimate,” “objective,” “forecast,” “goal,” “inted,” “will likely result,” or “will continue” and
similar expressions that concern our strategy,sptanntentions. For example, all statements
relating to our estimated and projected earningstsg expenditures, cash flows and financial
results, our plans and objectives for future openat growth or initiatives, or the expected
outcome or impact of pending or threatened litmatre forward-looking statements.

All forward-looking statements are subject to rigks&l uncertainties that may change at
any time, so our actual results may differ matbribm those that we expected. We derive
many of these statements from our operating budgetdorecasts, which are based on many
detailed assumptions that we believe are reasaondbigever, it is very difficult to predict the
impact of known factors, and we cannot anticipditeaators that could affect our actual results.
Important factors that could cause actual resaltsifter materially from the expectations
expressed in our forward-looking statements ardabsed under “Risk Factors” in Part I, Item
1A and elsewhere in this document (including, withiamitation, in conjunction with the
forward-looking statements themselves and undendiagling “Critical Accounting Policies and
Estimates”). All written and oral forwardoking statements we make in the future are expy
gualified in their entirety by these cautionarytataents as well as other cautionary statements
that we make from time to time in our other SE@ds and public communications. You shc
evaluate all of our forward-looking statementshia tontext of these risks and uncertainties.

The forward-looking statements included in thisaré@are made only as of the date
hereof. We undertake no obligation to publicly updar revise any forward-looking statement
as a result of new information, future events tieowise, except as otherwise required by law.




PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

We are the largest discount retailer in the Un8éates by number of stores, with 8,414
stores located in 35 states, primarily in the sexrthsouthwestern, midwestern and eastern
United States, as of February 27, 2009. We sebread customer base and offer a focused
assortment of everyday items, including basic corahle merchandise and other home, apparel
and seasonal products. A majority of our prodaoctspriced at $10 or less and approximately
25% of our products are priced at $1 or less.

We offer a compelling value proposition for our trusers based on convenient store
locations, easy in and out shopping and qualityenbrand and private brand merchandise at
highly competitive everyday low prices. We beliewg combination of value and convenience
distinguishes us from other discount, conveniemzkedaugstore retailers, who typically focus
either value or convenience. Our business modetissed on strong and sustainable sales
growth, attractive margins, and limited maintenacagital expenditure and working capital
needs, which, in combination, result in significaash flow from operations (before interest).

We were founded in 1939 as J.L. Turner and Son,|l¥¢ate. We opened our first dollar
store in 1955, when we were incorporated as a K&gtoorporation under the name J.L. Turner
& Son, Inc. We changed our name to Dollar Gen€maporation in 1968 and reincorporated as
a Tennessee corporation in 1998. In 2007, we ethiato a merger transaction with an entity
controlled by investment funds affiliated with Kbkerg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P. (“*KKR” or
“Sponsor”), as discussed in more detail under “@007 Merger” below.

We have increased our total number of stores frat@Gon January 30, 2004, to 8,362
on January 30, 2009, a 4.5% compounded annual gmatd (“CAGR”). Over the same period,
we grew our net sales from $6.9 billion to $10.5dn (8.8% CAGR), driven by growth in
number of stores as well as same store sales gravtslowed new store growth in 2007 and
2008 and closed approximately 400 stores in 200npoove our profitability and to enable us
to focus on improving the performance of existitmyes. In 2008, we opened 207 new stores,
closed 39 stores, and relocated or remodeled 4i@firexstores. Net sales in 2008 were driven
primarily by a same-store sales increase of 9.08¢.dbir Consolidated Financial Statements for
net sales and net income (loss) for each of otuthase fiscal years and total assets for each of
our last two fiscal years. We intend to accelecatenew store growth in 2009 with plans to
open approximately 450 new stores and to remodelocate approximately 400 stores.

Our 2007 Merger

On July 6, 2007, we completed a merger (the “Méjgand, as a result, we are a
subsidiary of Buck Holdings, L.P. (“Parent”), a Befare limited partnership controlled by
investment funds affiliated with KKR. KKR, GS CagdiPartners VI Fund, L.P. and affiliated
funds (affiliates of Goldman, Sachs & Co.), Citivate Equity, Wellington Management




Company, LLP, CPP Investment Board (USRE Il) laad other equity co-investors
(collectively, the “Investors”) indirectly own alsstantial portion of our capital stock through
their investment in Parent.

As a result of the Merger, our outstanding commtonlksis now owned by Parent and
certain members of management. Our common staobtisegistered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and is not traded oat&gonal securities exchange.

We entered into the following debt financings imgmction with the Merger:

* We entered into a credit agreement and relatediseand other agreements
consisting of a $2.3 billion senior secured teramldacility, which matures on July
2014 (the “Term Loan Facility”).

* We entered into a credit agreement and relatedigeand other agreemer
consisting of a senior secured asset-based regotvedit facility of up to
$1.125 billion (of which $432.3 million was drawhaosing and $132.3 million was
paid down on the same day), subject to borrowirsg lzevailability, which matures
July 6, 2013 (the “ABL Facility” and, with the Terboan Facility, the “Credit
Facilities”).

* Weissued $1.175 billion aggregate principal amairit0.625% senior notes due
2015, which mature on July 15, 2015, and $725 onilaggregate principal amount
of 11.875%/12.625% senior subordinated toggle nities2017, which mature on
July 15, 2017. We repurchased $25.0 million and B4dillion of the senior
subordinated toggle notes in the fourth quartdrsctl 2007 and in the fourth quar
of fiscal 2008, respectively.

Accounting periods before and after the Mergerraferred to as the Predecessor and
Successor, respectively.

Overall Business Strategy

Our mission is “Serving Others.” To carry out thigssion, we have developed a
business strategy of providing our customers wilbcased assortment of everyday low priced
merchandise in a convenient, small-store format.

Our Customers In general, we locate our stores and base owrhaerdise selection on
the needs of households seeking value and convamienth an emphasis on rural and small
markets. However, much of our merchandise, intetdegrve the basic consumable,
household, apparel and seasonal needs of these¢etdigustomers, also appeals to a much
broader and higher income customer base.

Our Stores The traditional Dollar General® store has, onrage, approximately 7,000
square feet of selling space and generally seng&®imers who live within three miles of the
store. Of our 8,414 stores operating as of Felpr2@dr 2009, more than 60% serve communities




with populations of 20,000 or less. We believd tha target customers prefer the convenience
of a small, neighborhood store with a focused mandise assortment at value prices.

Our Merchandise Our merchandising strategy combines a low-cpstating structure
with a focused assortment of products, consistinguality basic consumable, household,
apparel and seasonal merchandise at competitivgdaselow prices. Our strategic combinat
of name brands, quality private brand productsathdr great value brands allows us to offer
our customers a compelling value proposition. Wesbe our merchandising strategy and
focused assortment generate frequent repeat cuspurahases and encourage customers to
shop at our stores for their everyday householdsiee

Our Prices. We distribute quality, consumable merchandise atyelay low prices.
Our strategy of maintaining a low-cost operatitrgure and a focused assortment of
merchandise allows us to offer quality merchandissompetitive prices. As part of this
strategy, we emphasize even-dollar prices on maouroitems. In the typical Dollar General
store, the majority of the products are pricedldl §r less, with approximately 25% of the
products priced at $1 or less.

Our Cost Controls We aggressively manage our overhead cost steuatud generally
seek to locate stores in neighborhoods where ranthbperating costs are relatively low. Our
stores typically have low fixed costs, includingrestaffing. In recent years, we implemented
“EZstore™ . our proprietary process designed to improve inwgrflow from our distributior
centers, or DCs, to consumers. The EZstore prd@esallowed us to reallocate store labor h
to more customer-focused activities, improvingwgk content in our stores.

We also attempt to control operating costs by im@leting new technology when
feasible. In recent years we have improved ouedaiyor scheduling, store replenishment, and
our supply chain and warehousing systems. We dtesiprocess of expanding our technolog
capabilities by installing store computers througittbe chain. This initiative is expected to
improve store communications and execution andaedosts.

Strategic Initiatives— Project Alpha. In 2007, we executed strategic initiatives
launched in the fourth quarter of 2006 aimed atrowimg our merchandising and real estate
strategies, which we refer to collectively as “latjAlpha.” Project Alpha was based upon a
comprehensive analysis of the performance of eholrsstores and the impact of our inventory
management model on our ability to effectively sepur customers.

The execution of this merchandising initiative hasved us away from our traditional
inventory packaway model, where unsold seasonphraband home products inventory items
were stored on-site and returned to the sales flnobkthe items were eventually sold, damaged
or discarded. In connection with this initiative fiscal 2007 we began taking end-of-season
markdowns on current-year non-replenishable mexisanWith limited and planned
exceptions, we eliminated, through end-of-seasanoéimer markdowns, our seasonal, home
products and basic clothing packaway merchandideahof season current year merchandise
by the end of fiscal 2007. In addition to allowiang to carry newer, fresher merchandise,
particularly in our seasonal, apparel and homegcaies, we believe this strategy change has




enhanced the appearance of our stores and haw@lgsinpacted customer satisfaction as well
as our store employees’ ability to manage stores.

Project Alpha also encompassed significant impram@sto our real estate practices.
have integrated the functions of site selectioasderenewals, relocations, remodels and store
closings and have defined and are implementingoigoanalytical processes for decision-
making in those areas. As a first step in ouratiite to revitalize our store base, we performed a
comprehensive real estate review resulting indleatification of approximately 400
underperforming stores, all of which we closed hg-2007. These closings were in addition to
stores that are typically closed in the normal sewf business, which over the last 10 years
constituted approximately 1% to 2% of our storeehjaer year. In 2008, our store closings were
more in line with historic levels, as we closedsB&es. As part of Project Alpha, we moderated
our new store growth rate beginning in 2007 to é&nab to focus on improving the performance
of existing stores, including increasing the numifestore remodels and relocations in order to
improve productivity and enhance the shopping @gpee for our customers. We intend to
accelerate our new store growth in 2009 by opeapyoximately 450 new stores and
remodeling or relocating approximately 400 stores.

As a result of opening new stores and remodelingfiag stores, as of February 27,
2009, approximately 1,600 stores are operatinginracetrack format, which is designed with
improved merchandise adjacencies and wider, maga ajsles to enhance the overall guest
shopping experience. We plan to continue to rexaad refine all of our existing store layouts,
including the racetrack format, as well as test tewuts to further drive sales growth and
margin enhancements through improved merchandising.

Our Industry

We compete in the deep discount segment of theret&l industry. Our competitors
include traditional “dollar stores,” as well as ethetailers offering discounted convenience
items. The “dollar store” sector differentiate®ifSrom other forms of retailing in the deep
discount segment by offering consistently low migea convenient, small-store format. Unlike
other formats that have suffered with the rise @fl\Mart and other discount supercenters, the
“dollar store” sector has grown despite the presariche discount supercenters. We believe it
is our substantial convenience advantage, at pcoegparable to those of supercenters, that
allows Dollar General to compete so effectively.

We believe that there is considerable room for @inaw the “dollar store” sector.
According to data from Nielsen Homescan Panel (f9¢ie”), “dollar stores” have been able to
increase their penetration across all income btadgkeecent years, climbing from 45% in 1997
to 64% in 2008. Though traditional “dollar stordglve high customer penetration, according to
Nielsen the sector as a whole accounts for onlyaqamately 1.5% of retail spending, which
believe leaves ample room for growth. Our merchsgindiinitiatives are aimed at increasing our
stores’ share of customer spending.

See “Our Competitive Strengths” and “Competitioeldw for additional information
regarding our competitive situation.




Our Competitive Strengths

Market Leader in an Attractive Sector with a Grogvl@ustomer BaseWe are the
largest discount retailer in the U.S. by numbestofes, with 8,414 stores in 35 states as of
February 27, 2009. We are the largest playererits. small box deep discount segment based
on sales. We believe we are well positioned tthirrincrease our market share as we continue
to execute our business strategy and implemendenational initiatives. Our target customers
are those seeking value and convenience. Accotdihielsen, recent trip consolidation has
caused decreased total outlet trips per shoppappsoximately 2.5%. At the same time the
“dollar store” channel grew trips per shopper bpragimately 2.5%, faster than any other retail
channel and the only channel other than warehdubs that increased trips per shopper.

Consistent Sales Growth and Strong Cash Flow Geioerd-or 19 consecutive years,
we have experienced positive annual same store gedeth. Approximately two-thirds of our
net sales come from the sale of consumable produbish are less susceptible to economic
pressures (such as increased fuel costs and ungmgib), with the remaining one-third
comprised mainly of seasonal, basic clothing andénproducts which are subject to little trend
or fashion risk. We have a low cost operating nhadin attractive operating margins, low
capital expenditures and low working capital neeésulting in generation of significant cash
flow from operations (before interest).

Differentiated Value PropositioDur ability to deliver highly competitive everydiow
prices in a convenient location and shopping forpnavides our customers with a compelling
shopping experience and distinguishes us from atisepunt retailers, as well as from
convenience and drugstore retailers.

Compelling Unit Economics.The traditional Dollar General store size, desigd a
location requires an initial investment for fixtareequipment, signage and inventory of
approximately $230,000. The low initial investmantd maintenance capital expenditures, when
combined with strong average unit volumes, proWatex quick recovery of store start-up costs.
The ability of our successful stores to genertaating cash flows with minimal investment often
results in a short payback period.

Efficient Supply Chain.We believe our distribution network is an integraimponent of
our efforts to reduce transportation expenses #adteely support our growth. In recent yet
we have made significant investments in technolddgimprovements and upgrades which have
increased our efficiency and capacity to supportnoerchandising and operations initiatives
new store growth.

Experienced Management Tearin January 2008, we hired Richard Dreiling, who has
39 years of retail experience, to serve as ourf@xecutive Officer. Over the past several
years we strengthened our management team withirihg of David Beré, our President and
Chief Strategy Officer, and Todd Vasos, our Exe®i¥ice President, Division President and
Chief Merchandising Officer. We also replaced aarigj of our senior merchandising and real
estate teams.




Seasonality

Our business is seasonal to a certain extent. r@ineour highest sales volume occurs
in the fourth quarter, which includes the Christreaking season, and the lowest occurs in the
first quarter. In addition, our quarterly resude be affected by the timing of new store
openings and store closings, the amount of salasilboted by new and existing stores, as well
as the timing of certain holidays. We purchase tsuhigl amounts of inventory in the third
quarter and incur higher shipping costs and higlagroll costs in anticipation of the increased
sales activity during the fourth quarter. In aiolif we carry merchandise during our fourth
guarter that we do not carry during the rest ofytbar, such as gift sets, holiday decorations,
certain baking items, and a broader assortmermtysfand candy.

The following table reflects the seasonality of s&les, gross profit, and net income
(loss) by quarter for each of the quarters of tmeent fiscal year as well as each of the quarters
of the two most recent fiscal years. All of the dees reflected below are comprised of 13 wi
(see note (a) regarding results for the secondeyuair 2007).

1st 2 nd 3 rd 4 th
(in millions) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Year Ended January 30, 2009
Net sales $ 24035 $ 2,609.4 $ 25989 $ 28458
Gross profit 693.1 758.0 772.3 837.7
Net income (loss) 5.9 27.7 (7.3) 81.9
Year Ended February 1, 2008(a)
Net sales 2,275.3 (@) 2,312.8 2,559.6
Gross profit (b) 633.1 €) 646.8 740.4
Net income (loss) (b) 34.9 €) (33.0) 55.4
Year Ended February 2, 2007
Net sales 2,151.4 2,251.1 2,213.4 2,554.0
Gross profit (b) 584.3 611.5 526.4 646.0
Net income (loss) (b) 47.7 455 (5.3) 50.1

(a) The Merger was completed during the second quaeft2d07. Net sales, Gross profit, and Net (lossewe
$1,648.5, $438.5 and $(42.9), respectively, forRhedecessor period from May 5, 2007 to July 6,72@ad
were $699.1, $184.7 and $(27.2), respectivelytferSuccessor period from March 6, 2007 to Augu2087.
For comparison purposes, these Successor restiltsiénthe results of operations for Buck Acquisiti@orp.
for the period prior to the Merger from March 60Z((its formation) through July 6, 2007 (reflectiting
change in fair value of interest rate swaps).

(b) Results for the ¥ and 4™ quarters of 2006 and all of 2007 reflect the impuHatertain strategic real estate and
inventory management initiatives as discussed abo\@verall Business Strategy.”

Merchandise

We separate our merchandise into the following t@iegories for reporting purposes:
highly consumable, seasonal, home products, and tlashing. Highly consumable consists of
packaged food, candy, snacks and refrigerated ptsduealth and beauty aids, home cleaning
supplies and pet supplies; seasonal consists sbsaband holiday-related items, toys,
stationery and hardware; home products considteuwsewares and domestics; and basic




clothing consists of casual everyday apparel. @regntage of net sales of each of our four
categories of merchandise for the period indicagldw was as follows:

2008 2007 2006
Highly consumable 69.3% 66.5% 65.7%
Seasonal 14.€% 15.8% 16.4%
Home products 8.2% 9.2% 10.0%
Basic clothing 7.9% 8.4% 7.9%

Our home products and seasonal categories typiaatlgunt for the highest gross profit
margin, and the highly consumable category typycaticounts for the lowest gross profit
margin.

We currently maintain approximately 7,300 core ktkeeping units, or SKUs, per store
and an additional 3,200 non-core SKUs that getedtan and out of the store over the course of

ayear.

We purchase our merchandise from a wide varieguppliers. Approximately 10% of
our purchases in 2008 were from The Procter & Gar@ldmpany. Our next largest supplier
accounted for approximately 6% of our purchaseXip8. We directly imported approximately
10% of our purchases at cost (14% at retail) in8200

The Dollar General Store

The average Dollar General store has approximat@§0 square feet of selling space
and is typically operated by a manager, an assistanager and two or more sales clerks.
Approximately 53% are in freestanding buildingsy#6f our stores are located in strip shop
centers and 2% are in downtown buildings. We attemfocate primarily in small towns or in
neighborhoods of more densely populated areas vwduergpancy expenses are relatively low.

We generally have not encountered difficulty loegtsuitable store sites in the past, and
although management does not currently anticipgtereencing material difficulty in finding
future suitable locations, the current conditiamghie real estate and financing markets could
make this process more difficult than in recentrgea




Our recent store growth is summarized in the foitmatable:

Stores at Net

Beginning Stores Stores Store Stores at
Year of Year Opened Closed (a) Increase/(Decrease) End of Year
2006 7,929 537 237 300 8,229
2007 8,229 365 400 (35) 8,194
2008 8,194 207 39 168 8,362

() Includes 128 stores and 275 stores closedd6 2ad 2007, respectively as a result of certaategic
initiatives.

Employees

As of February 27, 2009, we employed approximal@lyp00 full-time and part-time
employees, including divisional and regional mamgagaistrict managers, store managers, and
DC and administrative personnel. Management bedi@ur relationship with our employees is
generally good, and we currently are not a par@gny collective bargaining agreements.

Competition

We operate in the discount retail merchandise legsinwhich is highly competitive with
respect to price, store location, merchandise tyyassortment and presentation, in-stock
consistency, and customer service. We competedistitount stores and with many other
retailers, including mass merchandise, groceryg,dranvenience, variety and other specialty
stores. These other retail companies operate storeany of the areas where we operate, and
many of them engage in extensive advertising anttetiag efforts. Our direct competitors in
the dollar store retail category include Family lBglDollar Tree, Fred’s, 99 Cents Only and
various local, independent operators. Competitans fother retail categories include Wal-Mart,
Walgreens, CVS, Rite Aid, Target and Costco, anathgrs. Certain of our competitors have
greater financial, distribution, marketing and othfesources than we do.

The dollar store category differentiates itselhfrother forms of retailing by offering
consistently low prices in a convenient, small-stimrmat. We believe that our prices are
competitive due in part to our low cost operatitrgcure and the relatively limited assortment
of products offered. Historically, we have minimidzZ@bor by offering fewer price points and a
reliance on simple merchandise presentation. Wataiaistrong purchasing power due to our
leadership position in the dollar store retail gaty and our focused assortment of merchandise.

Trademarks

We own marks that are registered with the UnitedeStPatent and Trademark Office,
including the trademarks Dollar General®, Dollam@eal Market®, Clover Valley®, DGEDG
Guarantee® and the Dollar General price point aessiglong with variations and formatives of
these trademarks as well as certain other tradem@r& attempt to obtain registration of our
trademarks whenever practicable and to pursue aiggty any infringement of those marks. |
trademark registrations have various expiratioesiadtowever, assuming that the trademark
registrations are properly renewed, they have pgteal duration.




Available Information

Our Web site address is www.dollargeneral.com. Vd&aravailable through this
address, without charge, our annual report on Fdi+K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q,
current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to thegsarts filed or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as ssoreasonably practicable after they are
electronically filed or furnished to the SEC.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Investing in our securities involves a degree sif.rPersons buying our securities should
carefully consider the risks described below amdather information contained in this report
and other filings that we make from time to timeéhathe SEC, including our consolidated
financial statements and accompanying notes. Anliefollowing risks could materially and
adversely affect our business, financial condibomesults of operations. In addition, the risks
described below are not the only risks we face. liisiness, financial condition or results of
operations could also be adversely affected bytiadail factors that apply to all companies
generally, as well as other risks that are notenily known to us or that we currently view to
immaterial. In any such case, the trading pricewfsecurities could decline or we may not be
able to make payments of principal and interestwnoutstanding notes, and you may lose ¢
part of your original investment. While we attenpinitigate known risks to the extent we
believe to be practicable and reasonable, we aanda no assurance, and we make no
representation, that our mitigation efforts will fieccessful.

The fact that we have substantial debt could adveedy affect our ability to raise
additional capital to fund our operations, limit our ability to react to changes in the
economy or our industry, expose us to interest ratask to the extent of our variable rate
debt and prevent us from meeting our obligations uder our outstanding debt securities.

We have substantial debt which could have importansequences, including:
« increasing difficulty in making payments on oursiahding debt
* increasing our vulnerability to general economid ardustry conditions

* requiring a substantial portion of our cash floanfr operations to be dedicated to the
payment of principal and interest on our indebtedntherefore reducing our ability
to use our cash flow to fund our operations, capipenditures and future business
opportunities;

« exposing us to the risk of interest rate fluctuadias certain of our borrowings b
interest based on market interest rates;

 limiting our ability to obtain additional financinfgr working capital, capite
expenditures, debt service requirements, acquisittmd general corporate or other
purposes; and
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 limiting our ability to adjust to changing marketrditions and placing us ai
competitive disadvantage compared to our compstitdno are less highly leverag

In addition, the borrowings under our Credit Fdieif bear interest at variable rates and
other debt we incur also could be variable-rata.délimarket interest rates increase, variable-
rate debt will create higher debt service requinasievhich could adversely affect our cash
flow. While we have and may in the future entdéo iagreements limiting our exposure to hi¢
interest rates, any such agreements may not affapkete protection from this risk. We and
subsidiaries may be able to incur substantial aufdit indebtedness in the future, subject to the
restrictions contained in our Credit Facilities dhd indentures governing our debt securities. If
new indebtedness is added to our current debtdetred related risks that we now face could
intensify.

Our debt agreements contain restrictions that limitour flexibility in operating our
business.

Our Credit Facilities and the indentures goverraogdebt securities contain various
covenants that limit our ability to engage in sfieditypes of transactions. These covenants
limit our and our restricted subsidiaries’ ability among other things:

* incur additional indebtedness, issue disqualiftedlsor issue certain preferred stc

* pay dividends and make certain distributions, itwesits and other restrict:
payments;

» create certain liens or encumbranc

» sell assets

* enter into transactions with our affiliate

* limit the ability of restricted subsidiaries to neggayments to u:

* merge, consolidate, sell or otherwise disposelaraubstantially all of our asse
and

» designate our subsidiaries as unrestricted sulpsigli

A breach of any of these covenants could resudtdiefault under the agreement
governing such indebtedness. Upon our failureamtain compliance with these covenants
lenders could elect to declare all amounts outstgnithereunder to be immediately due and
payable and terminate all commitments to extenthéurcredit thereunder. If the lenders under
such indebtedness accelerate the repayment ofviags, we cannot assure you that we will
have sufficient assets to repay those borrowirggyedl as our other indebtedness, including our
outstanding debt securities. We have pledgedrafigignt portion of our assets as collateral
under our Credit Facilities. If we were unabledpay those amounts, the lenders under our
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Credit Facilities could proceed against the cofldtgranted to them to secure that indebtedness.
Additional borrowings under the ABL Facility wiilf excess availability under that facility is

less than a certain amount, be subject to thefaetisn of a specified financial ratio. Our alyil

to meet this financial ratio can be affected byresdeyond our control, and we cannot assure
you that we will meet this ratio and other covesant

General economic factors may adversely affect oumfancial performance and other
aspects of our business.

A further slowdown in the economy or other econoounditions affecting disposable
consumer income, such as unemployment levelstimflabusiness conditions, fuel and other
energy costs, consumer debt levels, lack of aeilefedit, interest rates, tax rates and changes
in tax laws, may adversely affect our businessdoljucing overall consumer spending or by
causing customers to shift their spending to prtslather than those sold by us or to products
sold by us that are less profitable than other gpecbdhoices, all of which could result in lower
net sales, decreases in inventory turnover, greaekdowns on inventory, and a reduction in
profitability due to lower margins. Many of thosetors, as well as commodity rates,
transportation costs, costs of labor, insurancehmadthcare, foreign exchange rate fluctuations,
lease costs, changes in other laws and regulaioth®ther economic factors, also affect our
of sales and our selling, general and adminiseatipenses, and we have no control or limited
ability to control such factors

In addition, many of the factors discussed abolmgawith current global economic
conditions and uncertainties, the potential immdi¢he current recession, the potential for
additional failures or realignments of financiadtitutions, and the related impact on available
credit may affect us and our suppliers and othemmss partners, landlords, and customers
adverse manner including, but not limited to, redg@ccess to liquid funds or credit (including
through the loss of one or more financial instdos that are a part of our revolving credit
facility), increasing the cost of credit, limitirayr ability to manage interest rate risk, incregsin
the risk of bankruptcy of our suppliers, landloadscounterparties to or other financial
institutions involved in our credit facilities awdir derivative and other contracts, increasing the
cost of goods to us, and other impacts which weuaable to fully anticipate. See also our
disclosures under Part I, Item 7A. “Quantitativel @ualitative Disclosures About Market
Risk” below.

Our plans depend significantly on initiatives desiged to improve the efficiencies,
costs and effectiveness of our operations, and faiik to achieve or sustain these plans could
affect our performance adversely.

We have had, and expect to continue to have, iingis (such as those relating to
marketing, merchandising, promotions, sourcinginghiprivate brand, store operations and real
estate) in various stages of testing, evaluatind,isplementation, upon which we expect to
to improve our results of operations and financaldition. These initiatives are inherently ri:
and uncertain, even when tested successfully giin #ipplication to our business in general. It is
possible that successful testing can result pbriiem resources and attention that cannot be
duplicated in broader implementation. Testing aedegal implementation also can be affected
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by other risk factors described herein that redheeaesults expected. Successful systemwide
implementation relies on consistency of trainirighsity of workforce, ease of execution, and
the absence of offsetting factors that can infleeresults adversely. Failure to achieve
successful implementation of our initiatives or thst of these initiatives exceeding
management’s estimates could adversely affectesults of operations and financial condition.

Risks associated with the domestic and foreign supers from whom our products
are sourced could adversely affect our financial péormance.

The products we sell are sourced from a wide waoétlomestic and international
suppliers. Approximately 10% of our purchases i@82®&ere from The Procter & Gamble
Company. Our next largest supplier accounted fpr@pmately 6% of our purchases in 2008.
We directly imported approximately 10% of our pluashs at cost in 2008, but many of our
domestic vendors directly import their product€omponents of their products. Political and
economic instability in the countries in which figne suppliers are located, the financial
instability of suppliers, suppliers’ failure to niewir supplier standards, labor problems
experienced by our suppliers, the availabilityafmaterials to suppliers, merchandise quality
or safety issues, currency exchange rates, tranagpaitability and cost, inflation, and other
factors relating to the suppliers and the counirieshich they are located or from which they
import are beyond our control. In addition, the tddiStates’ foreign trade policies, tariffs and
other impositions on imported goods, trade sanstionposed on certain countries, the limita
on the importation of certain types of goods ogobds containing certain materials from other
countries and other factors relating to foreigérare beyond our control. Disruptions due to
labor stoppages, strikes or slowdowns, or otheuptgons, involving our vendors or the
transportation and handling industries also maatiegly affect our ability to receive
merchandise and thus may negatively affect salessd and other factors affecting our supp
and our access to products could adversely affeclimancial performance.

All of our vendors must comply with applicable pund safety laws, and we are
dependent on them to ensure that the products wedaply with all safety standards. Our
ability to obtain indemnification from foreign supgrs may be hindered by the manufacturers’
lack of understanding of U.S. product liabilityaher laws, which may make it more likely that
we be required to respond to claims or complamusifcustomers as if we were the
manufacturer of the products.

As we increase our imports of merchandise fromifpreendors, the risks associated
with foreign imports will increase.

We are subject to governmental regulations, procedes and requirements. A
significant change in, or noncompliance with, theseegulations could have a material
adverse effect on our financial performance.

Our business is subject to numerous federal, atatdocal laws and regulations. New
laws or regulations or changes in existing laws raggllations, particularly those governing the
sale of products, may require extensive systenoaedating changes that may be difficult to
implement and could increase our cost of doingrimss. In addition, such changes or new laws
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may require the write off and disposal of existprgduct inventory, resulting in significant
adverse financial impact to the Company. Untingalgnpliance or noncompliance with
applicable regulations or untimely or incomplete@xion of a required product recall can re
in the imposition of penalties, including loss ieehses or significant fines or monetary
penalties, in addition to reputational damage.

Litigation may adversely affect our business, finaoial condition and results of
operations.

Our business is subject to the risk of litigatigndmployees, consumers, suppliers,
competitors, shareholders, government agencieshers through private actions, class actions,
administrative proceedings, regulatory actionstheplitigation. The number of employment-
related class actions filed each year has contitmétrease, and recent changes in Federal law
may cause claims to rise even more. The outcortiggattion, particularly class action lawsu
regulatory actions and intellectual property claimgifficult to assess or quantify. Plaintiffs in
these types of lawsuits may seek recovery of \emgel or indeterminate amounts, and the
magnitude of the potential loss relating to thesesuits may remain unknown for substantial
periods of time. In addition, certain of these laitss if decided adversely to us or settled by us,
may result in liability material to our financigb$ements as a whole or may negatively affec
operating results if changes to our business operate required. The cost to defend future
litigation may be significant. There also may beede publicity associated with litigation that
could negatively affect customer perception of lmusiness, regardless of whether the
allegations are valid or whether we are ultimafelynd liable. As a result, litigation may
adversely affect our business, financial conditod results of operations. See the disclosure
under the heading “Legal Proceedings” in Note héoConsolidated Financial Statements
herein for further details regarding certain ofstia@ending matters.

Failure to attract and retain qualified employees viile controlling labor costs, as
well as other labor issues, could adversely affeotur financial performance.

Our future growth and performance depends on alityalo attract, retain and motivate
gualified employees, many of whom are in positiamith historically high rates of turnover. Our
ability to meet our labor needs, while controllimgy labor costs, is subject to many external
factors, including the competition for and availdpiof qualified personnel in a given market,
unemployment levels within those markets, prevgilage rates, minimum wage laws, health
and other insurance costs and changes in employaneriabor legislation (including change:
the process for our employees to join a union)tbeioworkplace regulation (including changes
in entitlement programs such as health insurandepait leave programs). To the extent a
significant portion of our employee base unionizgsattempts to unionize, our labor costs c«
increase. Our ability to pass along labor cost®rsstrained.

Also, our stores are decentralized and are mantagedgh a network of geographically
dispersed management personnel. Our inabilityfecgvely and efficiently operate our stores,
including the ability to control losses resultimgrh inventory and cash shrinkage, may
negatively affect our sales and/or operating matgin
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We are dependent upon the smooth functioning of oudistribution network, the
capacity of our distribution centers, and the timey receipt of inventory.

We rely upon the ability to replenish depleted meey through deliveries to our
distribution centers from vendors and from therthstion centers to our stores by various
means of transportation, including shipments byas®htruck. Labor shortages in the
transportation industry could negatively affechportation costs. In addition, long-term
disruptions to the national and international tpamgation infrastructure that lead to delays or
interruptions of service would adversely affect business.

Our planned future growth will be impeded, which waild adversely affect sales, if
we cannot open new stores on schedule or if we @ number of stores materially ir
excess of anticipated levels.

Our growth is dependent on both increases in salesisting stores and the ability to
open profitable new stores. Our ability to timepyea new stores and to expand into additional
market areas depends in part on the following facthe availability of attractive store
locations; the absence of occupancy delays; tHityaioi negotiate favorable lease terms; the
ability to hire and train new personnel, especiattyre managers; the ability to identify custo
demand in different geographic areas; general enanoonditions; and the availability of
sufficient funds for expansion. In addition, marfytteese factors affect our ability to successt
relocate stores. Many of these factors are beyondantrol. In addition, our substantial debt,
particularly combined with the recent tighteningloé credit markets, has made it more difficult
for our real estate developers to obtain loan®fwrbuild-to-suit stores and to locate investors
for those properties after they have been develdp#us trend continues, it could materially
adversely impact our ability to open build-to-stibres in desirable locations.

Delays or failures in opening new stores, or adhgplower than expected sales in new
stores, or drawing a greater than expected prapodi sales in new stores from existing stores,
could materially adversely affect our growth. Irddithn, we may not anticipate all of the
challenges imposed by the expansion of our operand, as a result, may not meet our targets
for opening new stores, remodeling or relocatimgest or expanding profitably.

Some of our new stores may be located in areasewherhave little or no meaningful
experience. Those markets may have different catiygetonditions, market conditions,
consumer tastes and discretionary spending patieansour existing markets, which may cause
our new stores to be less successful than stoiag iaxisting markets.

Some of our new stores will be located in areasreviage have existing units. Although
we have experience in these markets, increasinguhmer of locations in these markets may
result in inadvertent over-saturation of markets gamporarily or permanently divert customers
and sales from our existing stores, thereby adlyeadkecting our overall financial performance.
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Because our business is seasonal to a certain extevith the highest volume of net
sales during the fourth quarter, adverse events dung the fourth quarter could materially
affect our financial statements as a whole.

We generally recognize our highest volume of nkgtssduring the Christmas selling
season, which occurs in the fourth quarter of moal year. In anticipation of this holiday, we
purchase substantial amounts of seasonal inveatahhire many temporary employees. A
seasonal merchandise inventory imbalance couldtiésur net sales during the Christmas
selling season were to fall below either seasoaahs or expectations. If our fourth quarter
results were substantially below expectations fimancial performance and operating results
could be adversely affected by unanticipated marka especially in seasonal merchandise.
Lower than anticipated sales in the ChristmasragBieason would also negatively affect our
ability to absorb the increased seasonal laboscost

We face intense competition that could limit our gowth opportunities and adversel
impact our financial performance.

The retail business is highly competitive. We opeera the discount retail merchandise
business, which is competitive with respect togratore location, merchandise quality,
assortment and presentation, in-stock consistemzycustomer service. This competitive
environment subjects us to the risk of adverse ahfmaour financial performance because of
lower prices, and thus the lower margins, requicechaintain our competitive position. Also,
companies operating in the discount retail mercls@nsiector (due to customer demographics
and other factors) may have limited ability to E&se prices in response to increased costs
(including, but not limited to, vendor price incses). This limitation may adversely affect our
margins and financial performance. We compete dstamers, employees, store sites, products
and services and in other important aspects obosiness with many other local, regional and
national retailers. We compete with retailers opegadiscount, mass merchandise, grocery,
drug, convenience, variety and other specialtyestoCertain of our competitors have greater
financial, distribution, marketing and other resms than we do. These other competitors
compete in a variety of ways, including aggresgir@motional activities, merchandise selection
and availability, services offered to customersatmn, store hours, istore amenities and pric
If we fail to respond effectively to competitivegsisures and changes in the retail markets, it
could adversely affect our financial performancee SBusiness—Our Industry, —Competitive
Strengths, and —Competition” for additional diseassof our competitive situation.

Competition for customers has intensified in regaars as larger competitors have
moved into, or increased their presence in, ouggaahic markets. We remain vulnerable to the
marketing power and high level of consumer recagmiof these larger competitors and to the
risk that these competitors or others could venteethe “dollar store” industry in a significant
way. Generally, we expect an increase in compatitio
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Natural disasters, unusually adverse weather conddns, pandemic outbreaks,
boycotts and geo-political events could adverselyfact our financial performance.

The occurrence of one or more natural disastect, as hurricanes and earthquakes,
unusually adverse weather conditions, pandemicreakis, boycotts and geo-political events,
such as civil unrest in countries in which our digsp are located and acts of terrorism, or
similar disruptions could adversely affect our @iens and financial performance. These e\
could result in physical damage to one or moreunfpzoperties, increases in fuel (or other
energy) prices or a fuel shortage, the temporapeomanent closure of one or more of our
stores or distribution centers, delays in openieny stores, the temporary lack of an adequate
work force in a market, the temporary or long-tetisruption in the supply of products from
some local and overseas suppliers, the temporaryption in the transport of goods from
overseas, delay in the delivery of goods to ouribigtion centers or stores, the temporary
reduction in the availability of products in ouors and disruption to our information systems.
These events also can have indirect consequenclesasuncreases in the costs of insurance
following a destructive hurricane season. Thestwfacould otherwise disrupt and adversely
affect our operations and financial performance.

The efficient operation of our business is heavilgependent upon our information
systems.

We depend on a variety of information technologstesns for the efficient functioning
of our business. Such systems are subject to daaragerruption from power outages,
computer and telecommunications failures, compuiteses, security breaches, and natural
disasters. Damage or interruption to our compspgstems may require a significant investment
to fix or replace them, and we may suffer interiod in our operations in the interim. Any
material interruptions may have a material advefect on our business or results of operat

We also rely heavily on our information technolaggff. If we cannot meet our staffing
needs in this area, we may not be able to fuléil ®chnology initiatives while continuing to
provide maintenance on existing systems. We melgestain software vendors to maintain and
periodically upgrade many of these systems satliggtcan continue to support our business.
The software programs supporting many of our systemre licensed to us by independent
software developers. The inability of these deveter us to continue to maintain and upgrade
these information systems and software programgdagisrupt or reduce the efficiency of our
operations if we were unable to convert to altexrsgsstems in an efficient and timely manne
addition, costs and potential problems and intd¢iong associated with the implementation of
new or upgraded systems and technology or with tea@mce or adequate support of existing
systems could also disrupt or reduce the efficieafayur operations.
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Our current insurance program may expose us to ungected costs and negatively
affect our financial performance.

Our insurance coverage reflects deductibles,issifred retentions, limits of liability ar
similar provisions that we believe are prudent damethe dispersion of our operations.
However, there are types of losses we may incuaainst which we cannot be insured or
which we believe are not economically reasonabladore, such as losses due to acts of war,
employee and certain other crime and some natigas®@rs. If we incur these losses and they
are material, our business could suffer. Certaitera events may result in sizable losses for
the insurance industry and adversely impact thdadibity of adequate insurance coverage or
result in excessive premium increases. To offsgatiee insurance market trends, we may elect
to self-insure, accept higher deductibles or redheeamount of coverage in response to these
market changes. In addition, we self-insure a ficant portion of expected losses under our
workers’ compensation, automobile liability, gendiability and group health insurance
programs. Unanticipated changes in any applicatileaaal assumptions and management
estimates underlying our recorded liabilities toede losses, including expected increases in
medical and indemnity costs, could result in matbridifferent amounts of expense than
expected under these programs, which could havaterial adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations. Although watowe to maintain property insurance for
catastrophic events, we are effectively self-indudoe losses up to the amount of our
deductibles. If we experience a greater numbehnedd losses than we anticipate, our financial
performance could be adversely affected.

The Investors control us and may have conflicts ahterest with us now or in the
future.

The Investors indirectly own, through their investrhin Parent, a substantial portion of
our common stock. As a result, the Investors ltaverol over our decisions to enter into any
corporate transaction and the ability to prevengttaansaction that requires shareholder appi
regardless of whether others believe that the & is in our best interests. For example
Investors could cause us to make acquisitionsiticaetase the amount of indebtedness that is
secured or that is senior to our outstanding notés sell assets, which may impair our abilit
make payments under our outstanding notes.

The Investors are also in the business of makingsiments in companies and may from
time to time acquire and hold interests in busiesskat compete directly or indirectly with us.
The Investors may also pursue acquisition oppdigsihat are complementary to our business
and, as a result, those acquisition opportunitiag not be available to us. So long as the
Investors, or other funds controlled by or assedatith the Investors, continue to indirectly
own a significant amount of our outstanding comrsatmtk, even if such amount is less than
50%, the Investors will continue to be able tostily influence or effectively control our
decisions.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As of February 27, 2009, we operated 8,414 retaikes located in 35 states as follows:

State Number of Stores State Number of Stores
Alabama 465 Nebraska 80
Arizona 52 New Jersey 22
Arkansas 227 New Mexico 42
Colorado 21 New York 232
Delaware 23 North Carolina 487
Florida 424 Ohio 473
Georgia 476 Oklahoma 276
lllinois 307 Pennsylvania 399
Indiana 318 South Carolina 333
lowa 171 South Dakota 12
Kansas 145 Tennessee 419
Kentucky 309 Texas 983
Louisiana 332 Utah 9
Maryland 57 Vermont 4
Michigan 237 Virginia 248
Minnesota 16 West Virginia 153
Mississippi 266 Wisconsin 85
Missouri 311

Most of our stores are located in leased premisedividual store leases vary as to their
terms, rental provisions and expiration dates. magority of our leases are relatively low-cost,
short-term leases (usually with current terms oféhto five years) often with multiple renewal
options. We also have stores subject to build-tbastangements with landlords, which
typically carry a primary lease term of 10 yearthwnultiple renewal options. In recent years
increasing percentage of our new stores have hégecs to build-tosuit arrangements. In 20(
approximately 85% of our new stores were builddd-garrangements.

As of February 27, 2009, we operated nine distidoutenters, as described in the
following table:

Year Approximate Square Approximate Number
Location Opened Footage of Stores Served
Scottsville, KY 1959 720,00( 930
Ardmore, OK 1994 1,310,00( 1,23€
South Boston, VA 1997 1,250,00( 806
Indianola, MS 1998 820,00( 833
Fulton, MO 1999 1,150,00( 1,09¢
Alachua, FL 2000 980,00( 777
Zanesville, OH 2001 1,170,00( 1,14¢
Jonesville, SC 2005 1,120,00( 759
Marion, IN 2006 1,110,00( 829

We lease the distribution centers located in OkiaddMississippi and Missouri and o
the other six distribution centers. Approximatel2acres of the land on which our Kentucky
distribution center is located is subject to a gblease. We lease additional temporary
warehouse space as necessary to support our digtirimeeds.
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Our executive offices are located in approxima8£)f,000 square feet of leased space in
Goodlettsville, Tennessee.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information contained in Note 8 to the consaikdl financial statements under the
heading “Legal proceedings” contained in Parttd 8 of this report is incorporated herein by
this reference.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
No matters were submitted to a vote of shareholdiensig the fourth quarter of 2008.
PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

Our outstanding common stock is privately held, tragte is no established public
trading market for our common stock. There weraaygmately 188 shareholders of record of
our common stock as of March 17, 2009.

Our Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividlé@mthe amount of $0.05 per share
payable on or before April 19, 2007 to common shalakers of record on April 5, 2007. Our
Board of Directors did not declare a dividend théer. See Item 7, “ManagemenDiscussiot
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©pkrations—Liquidity and Capital
Resources” for a description of the restrictionanability to pay dividends.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selected consoliddieancial information of Dollar
General Corporation as of the dates and for thegeindicated. The selected historical
statement of operations data and statement offttagt data for the fiscal years or periods, as
applicable, ended January 30, 2009, February 18,200y 6, 2007 and February 2, 2007, and
balance sheet data as of January 30, 2009 anddfgldr2008 have been derived from our
historical audited consolidated financial statera@mtluded elsewhere in this report. The
selected historical statement of operations dadastatement of cash flows data for the fiscal
years ended February 3, 2006 and January 28, 2@Dbadance sheet data as of February 2,
2007, February 3, 2006 and January 28, 2005 pexséanthis table have been derived from
audited consolidated financial statements not ohedlin this report.

On July 6, 2007, we completed a merger (the “Méjgerd, as a result, we are a
subsidiary of a Delaware limited partnership collecbby investment funds affiliated with
Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P. As a resultloé Merger of the Company and Buck
Acquisition Corp. (“Buck”), the related purchaseagnting adjustments, and a new basis of
accounting beginning on July 7, 2007, the 2007nfome reporting periods presented below
include the Predecessor period of the Companycteftp 22 weeks of operating results from
February 3, 2007 to July 6, 2007 and 30 weeks efaimg results for the Successor period,
reflecting the Merger from July 7, 2007 to Februayp008. Bucks results of operations for t
period from March 6, 2007 to July 6, 2007 (priothie Merger on July 6, 2007) are also
included in the consolidated financial statemeaigtie 2007 Successor period described above,
as a result of certain derivative financial instants entered into by Buck prior to the Merger.
Other than these financial instruments, Buck hadssets, liabilities, or operations prior to the
Merger. The fiscal years presented from 2004 t®62@€flect the Predecessor.

Due to the significance of the Merger and relatadgactions that occurred in 2007, the
2008 and 2007 Successor financial information tscomparable to that of the Predecessor
periods presented in the accompanying table.

The information set forth below should be readdnjanction with, and is qualified by
reference to, the Consolidated Financial Statenardselated notes included in Part Il, Item 8
of this report and the ManagemenbDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults
of Operations included in Part II, Item 7 of theport.
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Successor Predecessor

Year Ended Year Ended
(Amounts in millions, excluding March 6, February 3,
number of stores, selling square 2007 2007
feet, and net sales per squi through through
foot) January 30, February 1, July 6, February 2, February 3, January 28,
2009 2008(1)(2) 2007(2) 2007(2) 2006(3) 2005
Statement of Operations
Data:
Net sales $ 10,457.7 $ 55715 $ 3,9238 $ 9,169.8 $ 8,5682.2 $ 7,660.9
Cost of goods sold 7,396.6 3,999.6 2,852.2 6,801.6 6,117.4 5,397.7
Gross profit 3,061.1 1,571.9 1,071.6 2,368.2 2,464.8 2,263.2
Selling, general and
administrative 2,448.6 1,324.5 960.9 2,119.9 1,903.0 1,706.2
Litigation settlement and
related costs, net 32.0 - - - - -
Transaction and related costs - 1.2 101.4 - - -
Operating profit 580.5 246.1 9.2 248.3 561.9 557.0
Interest income 3.1) (3.8) (5.0 (7.0) (9.0) (6.6)
Interest expense 391.9 252.9 10.3 34.9 26.2 28.8
Other (income) expense (2.8) 3.6 - - - -
Income (loss) before income
taxes 194.4 (6.6) 4.0 220.4 544.6 534.8
Income tax expense (benefit) 86.2 (1.8) 12.0 82.4 194.5 190.6
Net income (loss) $ 108.2$ (4.8) $ (8.0)% 137.9% 350.2% 344.2
Statement of Cash Flows
Data:
Net cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities $ 575.2 $ 2396 $ 2019 $ 405.4 $ 555.5 $ 3915
Investing activities (152.6; (6,848.4 (66.9) (282.0) (264.4) (259.2)
Financing activities (144.8; 6,709.0 25.3 (134.7) (323.3) (245.4)
Total capital expenditures (205.5) (83.6) (56.2) (261.5) (284.1) (288.3)
Other Financial and
Operating Data:
Same store sales growth (4) 9.0% 1.9% 2.6% 3.3% 2.2% 3.2%
Same store sales (4) $ 10,1185 $ 52642 $ 3,656.6 $ 8,327.2 $ 7,555.8 $ 6,589.0
Number of stores included in
same store sales calculation 8,153 7,735 7,655 7,627 7,186 5,932
Number of stores (at period
end) 8,362 8,194 8,205 8,229 7,929 7,320
Selling square feet (in
thousands at period end) 58,803 57,376 57,379 57,299 54,753 50,015
Net sales per square foot (5) $ 179.7 $ 1654 $ 1639 $ 162.6 $ 159.8 $ 159.6
Highly consumable sales 69.3% 66.4% 66.7% 65.7% 65.3% 63.0%
Seasonal sales 14.6% 16.3% 15.4% 16.4% 15.7% 16.5%
Home product sales 8.2% 9.1% 9.2% 10.0% 10.6% 11.5%
Basic clothing sales 7.9% 8.2% 8.7% 7.9% 8.4% 9.0%
Rent expense $ 389.6 $ 2145 $ 150.2 $ 3439 $ 3123 $ 268.8
Balance Sheet Data (at period
end):
Cash and cash equivalents and
short-term investments $ 378.0 $ 119.8 $ 219.2 $ 2095 $ 275.8
Total assets 8,889.2 8,656.4 3,040.5 2,980.3 2,841.0
Total debt 4,137.1 4,282.0 270.0 278.7 271.3
Total shareholders’ equity 2,831.7 2,703.9 1,745.7 1,720.8 1,684.5
Q) Includes the results of Buck for the period primtiie Merger with and into Dollar General Corpaatirom March 6, 2007 (its

formation) through July 6, 2007 and the post-Mergsults of Dollar General Corporation for the pdrfrom July 7, 2007
through February 1, 2008.

2) Includes the effects of certain strategic raralising and real estate initiatives that resutetie closing of approximately 460
stores and changes in the Company’s inventory mameagt model which resulted in greater inventorykdawns than in



previous years.

3) The fiscal year ended February 3, 2006 waspcm®d of 53 weeks.

(4) For fiscal periods ending after January 285 &ame-store sales have been calculated basadtgres that were open at least
13 full fiscal months and remained open at the @frttie reporting period. For fiscal periods endamgor before January 28,
2005, same-store sales include stores that weretogté at the end of the reporting period and etidginning of the preceding
fiscal year. The Company excludes the sales ilb8né week of a 53-week year from the same-stoessadIculation.

(5) Net sales per square foot was calculated basedtal sales for the preceding 12 months akeg&nding date of the reporting
period divided by the average selling square fodtging the period, including the end of the fisear, the beginning of the
fiscal year, and the end of each of the Compary&etinterim fiscal quarters. For the period froebfiary 3, 2007 through
July 6, 2007, average selling square footage wiasleged using the average of square footage dalpf6, 2007 and as of the
end of each of the four preceding quarters. Fefitgtal year ended February 3, 2006, net salesqpaare foot was calculated
based on 52 weeks’ sales.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

General

Accounting Periods The following text contains references to yex89, 2008, 2007,
and 2006, which represent fiscal years ending deédanuary 29, 2010, January 30, 2009,
February 1, 2008, and February 2, 2007, respeygti@alr fiscal year ends on the Friday closest
to January 31. Fiscal years 2008 and 2006 weredgd\accounting periods As discussed
below, we completed a merger transaction on JuR087, and therefore the 2007 presentation
includes the 22-week Predecessor period of Dol&re®al Corporation through July 6, 2007,
reflecting the historical basis of accounting ptimthe Merger, and a 3Peek Successor peric
reflecting the impact of the business combinatiot associated purchase price allocation of the
merger of Dollar General Corporation and Buck Asgign Corp. (“Buck”), from July 7, 2007
to February 1, 2008. Buck was formed on MarchO®,72 and its results of operations prior to
the Merger, related solely to interest rate swagbsred into in anticipation of the Merger, are
included in the 2007 Successor results of operstibransactions relating to or resulting from
the Merger are discussed separately. This disqussid analysis should be read with, and is
gualified in its entirety by, the Consolidated Fingl Statements and the notes thereto. It also
should be read in conjunction with the Forward-LiogkStatements/Risk Factors disclosures set
forth in the Introduction and in Item 1A of thigoat.

Purpose of DiscussionWe intend for this discussion to provide the eragith
information that will assist in understanding oongpany and the critical economic factors that
affect our company. In addition, it should help tbader understand our financial statement:
changes in certain key items in those financidkestents from year to year, the primary factors
that accounted for those changes, as well as hdaic@ccounting principles affect our
financial statements.

Our 2007 Merger

On July 6, 2007, we completed a merger (the “Méjgerd, as a result, we are a
subsidiary of Buck Holdings, L.P. (“Parent”), a Befare limited partnership controlled by
investment funds affiliated with Kohlberg Kravis lbasts & Co., L.P. ("KKR” or “Sponsor”).
KKR, GS Capital Partners VI Fund, L.P. and afféidtfunds (affiliates of Goldman, Sachs &
Co.), Citi Private Equity, Wellington Managementreany, LLP, CPP Investment Board
(USRE 1) Inc., and other equity co-investors (eotively, the “Investors”) indirectly own a
substantial portion of our capital stock througéitiinvestment in Parent.

The Merger consideration was funded through theotiseir available cash, cash equity
contributions from the Investors, equity contrilous of certain members of our management
and the debt financings discussed below. Our cudgtg common stock is now owned by
Parent and certain members of management. Our carstaok is no longer registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) anaiknger traded on a national securities
exchange.
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We entered into the following debt financings imgmction with the Merger:

* A credit agreement and related security and otheyeanents consisting of
$2.3 billion senior secured term loan facility, whimatures on July 6, 2014 (the
“Term Loan Facility”).

* A credit agreement and related security and otereanents consisting of a ser
secured asset-based revolving credit facility ofauf1.125 billion subject to
borrowing base availability, which matures July2613 (the “ABL Facility” and,
with the Term Loan Facility, the “Credit Facilitig¢s

* $1.175 billion aggregate principal amount of 10%2&nior notes due 2015, which
mature on July 15, 2015, and $725 million aggregatecipal amount of
11.875%/12.625% senior subordinated toggle note26d7, which mature on
July 15, 2017. We have repurchased $69.1 milliothefsenior subordinated toggle
notes since the Merger.

Executive Overview

We are the largest discount retailer in the UnSéates by number of stores, with
approximately 8,400 stores located in 35 statesyguily in the southern, southwestern,
midwestern and eastern United States. We serveaal lmustomer base and offer a focused
assortment of everyday items, including basic coradile merchandise and other home, apparel
and seasonal products. A majority of our produtspaiced at $10 or less, and approximately
25% of our products are priced at $1 or less. Vé& s offer a compelling value proposition for
our customers based on convenient store locat@asy, in and out shopping and quality
merchandise in a friendly shopping environmentighlly competitive prices. We believe our
combination of value and convenience distinguisteeBom other discount, convenience and
drugstore retailers, who typically focus on eitla@lue or convenience.

The nature of our business is seasonal to a cexxé@mt. Primarily because of sales of
holiday-related merchandise, sales in our fourttrggun (November, December and January)
have historically been higher than sales achienaghch of the first three quarters of the fiscal
year. Expenses and, to a greater extent, opernatogie vary by quarter. Results of a period
shorter than a full year may not be indicativeasfults expected for the entire year. Furthern
the seasonal nature of our business may affect aosgms between periods. It is important for
you to read our more detailed discussion of finalnend operating results below under “Results
of Operations.” Basis points or “bps” amounts refdrto below are equal to 0.01 percent as a
percentage of sales.

The customers we serve are value-conscious, ardri@&¢neral has always been
intently focused on helping our customers makambest of their spending dollars. In 2008,
consumers faced severe economic challenges, ingdugh gasoline and fuel costs, rising food
costs, increased unemployment, and the downtuttmeitmousing and credit markets. We bel
that we benefited to some extent from the impacioolsumers searching for good values on
their basic purchases.
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At the beginning of 2008, we defined four operatmmrities as follows: 1) drive
productive sales growth, 2) increase our gross msyr§) leverage process improvements and
information technology to reduce costs, and 4)sgfifeen and expand Dollar General's cultur
serving others. These continue to be our prin@pakating priorities in 2009. Coupled with the
changes we made to our operations during the peaomnnection with these priorities, which are
discussed in more detail below, we achieved tHeviahg financial highlights in fiscal 2008:

» Total sales in fiscal 2008 were $10.5 billion, al®@ increase from 2007. Sales
same-stores increased 9.0% and were driven byasesdan customer traffic and
average transaction amount. Average sales pereséparfor all stores in 2008 were
approximately $180, up from $165 in 2007. Salesaases of highly consumable
products outpaced our more discretionary categdiikesdy the result of both our
merchandising initiatives, which were more focusacconsumables, and the
negative effect of the economy on consumer disomatly spending.

» Gross profit, as a percentage of sales, was 2032008. During the year, we ma
progress in reducing our inventory shrinkage angraving the efficiencies of our
distribution and transportation processes as vedieeraging fixed distribution cos
Improvements in our pricing systems and procedsesp@rmitted us to make more
timely price changes to compensate for unavoidetdt increases, and for the year,
markdowns declined.

» SG&A, as a percentage of sales, for fiscal 2008 2&4%. This compares to 23.¢
in the 2007 Successor period and 24.5% in the PO8decessor period. Our
increased sales levels favorably impacted SG&4 psrcentage of sales, in addit
to a reduction in workers’ compensation expensgjltieg from safety initiatives
implemented over the last several years, and redadeertising expense. The 2007
Predecessor period included SG&A of $45.0 million115 basis points, related to
closing underperforming stores.

* We recorded litigation expense of $32 million tleet the settlement and related
expenses, net of insurance proceeds, of a class #tvsuit filed as a result of the
Merger in 2007. We determined that the settlemexst i our best interests to avoid
costly and time consuming litigation.

* Interest expense of $391.9 million in 2008 relgearily to interest on del
incurred to finance the Merger. We repaid all bairys under our revolving credit
facility in the first quarter of 2008 and incurred additional borrowings during the
year. In January 2009, we further reduced our totaj-term obligations by
repurchasing $44.1 million of senior subordinatetes.

* For fiscal 2008, we reported net income of $108illan. This compares to a n
loss of $4.8 million in the 2007 Successor perind a net loss of $8.0 million in the
2007 Predecessor period, each of which includedfgignt costs related to the
Merger and other strategic initiatives as moreyfdiscribed in the discussion below
of 2008 vs 2007.
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* We generated $575.2 million of cash from opera#iativities, a portion of which w
used to invest in our stores and to reduce long-teébligations. At year end, our cash
balance of $378 million included $310 million inted in money market funds.
Because of uncertainties in the current financiatkats, we believe maintaining
excess liquidity is prudent.

* During 2008, we opened 207 new stores, remodeleelacated 404 stores, a
closed 39 stores, resulting in a store count 33 January 30, 2009. In addition,
we are pleased with the progress we made duringethein our efforts to better
utilize existing square footage and to improvedappearance of our stores.

Discussion of Operating PrioritiesOur first priority is driving productive sales gvth
by increasing shopper frequency and transactioruatraind maximizing sales per square foot.
We utilized numerous initiatives in 2008 to engtleductive sales growth. For example, we are
defining and improving our store standards witloalgf developing a consistent look and feel
across all stores. We expanded convenience foatlbarerages, added new impulse racks i
checkout stands, and expanded our store operatung.hro further increase space utilization,
we have begun the process of raising the heightesthandise fixtures in our stores, starting
with the food area.

Our second priority is to increase gross profibtlyh shrink reduction, distribution
efficiencies, an improved pricing model, the expam®f private brand offerings and increased
foreign sourcing. In 2008, inventory shrink decezhas a result of several focused initiatives,
including the elimination of packaway inventoriesm the stockrooms, the installation of
additional security cameras, the implementatioexafeption-based shrink detection tools, and
improved hiring practices and employee retentiorR008, higher sales volumes contributed to
our ability to leverage transportation and disttid costs, and we were able to offset the im
of higher average fuel costs for the year througfitel trailer utilization, expansion of backhaul
opportunities and improved fleet management. Wevesd and reset our consumables
planograms, eliminating less productive items ieorto add more productive ones. In this
process, we reviewed our pricing strategy and wibdkikgently to minimize vendor cost
increases. Some merchandise cost increases wereidaiale in 2008, but as a result of our
improved pricing analysis tools, we were able torg a portion of these increases through
pricing. We continue to focus on sales of privatenl consumables, which generally have
higher gross profit rates, while continuing to offewide variety of national brands in our eff
to offer the optimal mix of products to our customeanith regard to the expansion of foreign
sourcing, we are still in the early stages of dafirthe objectives and building the team.

Our third priority is leveraging process improvenseand information technology to
reduce costs. We are committed as an organizetiertract costs that do not affect the
customer experience. Examples of cost reductiiatives in 2008 include recycling of
cardboard, reduction of workers compensation expémsugh a focus on safety, and
improvement of energy management in the storesijffiranstallation and monitoring of new
equipment. With regard to information technologg are focusing our resources on improving
systems that are designed to enhance retail sp@m@tons and merchandising.
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Our fourth priority is to strengthen and expandlBoGeneral's culture of serving others.
For customers this means helping them Save Time Bl@ney. Every Day. For employees,
this means creating an environment that attractsetains key employees throughout the
organization. For communities, this means givingkd@ our store communities.

In 2009, we plan to continue to focus on these daneoperating priorities. We will
continue to refine and improve our store standdodsising on achieving a consistent look and
feel across the chain, and plan to measure custsaisfaction in 2009. We expect to complete
the process of raising the height of our merchanfitidures, allowing us to better utilize our
store square footage. We will continue to focusemtucing inventory shrink by implementing
additional analytical tools and expanding the zailion of surveillance equipment. We have
identified additional opportunities to reduce labod other costs in our distribution centers. In
addition, we plan to continue to expand our privaend consumables offerings and to increase
and upgrade our private brand merchandise in theehend seasonal categories. We intend to
make strides in expanding our foreign sourcingréegfand expect to begin seeing a greater
impact from this initiative in late 2009.

With regard to leveraging information technologyl aamocess improvements to reduce
costs, we will continue to focus on making improesits that benefit our merchandising and
operations efforts, including projects such asipg@nd profitability analysis, merchandise
selection and allocation and labor scheduling.&ydnd of 2009, we expect each of our store
managers to have access to a back office comptiiehwill improve reporting and
communications with the stores and, consequerityjlgl assist us in improving store
productivity.

Finally, in 2009, we plan to open 450 new storeiwithe 35 states in which we
currently operate, and to remodel or relocate alitiadal 400 stores. With regard to planned
new store openings, our criteria are based on musdactors including, among other things,
availability of appropriate sites, expected sdksse terms, population demographics,
competition, and the employment environment. Weuwasm®us real estate site selection tools to
determine target markets and optimum site locataitisin those markets. With regard to new
store expansion in fiscal 2009, our plans includeaasion only within our existing markets.
With respect to store relocations, we begin towaial a store for relocation opportunities
approximately 18 months prior to the store’s lezggration using the same basic tools and
criteria as those used for new stores. Remodelshwhquire a much smaller investment, are
determined based on the need, the opportunityalessmprovement at the location and an
expectation of a desirable return on investmethte majority of 2009’s new store sites have
been identified and terms agreed to. However, dustertainties in the economy and its
potential impact on commercial real estate sitesdmvelopers, there is a heightened level of
risk that these stores may not open as scheduled.

We expect to continue to face difficult economguiss in 2009 which will restrict our
customers’ ability to spend and, therefore, wiklidénge our efforts to increase sales and gross
profit. We also believe that competitive pricingpmotions, and advertising will continue and
are likely to increase if overall retail sales ¢oue to decline. We remain committed to our
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operating model and to making improvements in tanes and our merchandise to better serve
the needs of our customers.

Key Financial Metrics We have identified the following as our mosticat financial
metrics for 2008 and 2009:

* Same-store sales growth / sales per square

Gross profit, as a percentage of sa

Inventory turnover

Cash flow; anc

Earnings before interest, taxes and depreciatidreamortization“EBITDA”).

Readers should refer to the detailed discussi@mupnbperating results below for
additional comments on financial performance indheent year periods as compared with the
prior year periods.
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Results of Operations

The following table contains results of operatidasa for fiscal year 2008, the Succes
and Predecessor periods in 2007, and fiscal ye#6.20

Successor Predecessor
(amounts in millions) 2008 2007(a) 2007(b) 2006(c)
Net sales by category:
Highly consumable $7,2484 $3,701.7 $2,615.1 $6,022.0
% of net sales 69.31% 66.44% 66.65% 65.67%
Seasonal 1,521.5 908.3 604.9 1,510.0
% of net sales 14.55% 16.30% 15.42% 16.47%
Home products 862.2 507.0 362.7 914.4
% of net sales 8.24% 9.10% 9.24% 9.97%
Basic clothing 825.6 454.4 341.0 723.5
% of net sales 7.89% 8.16% 8.69% 7.89%
Net sales $10,457.7 $55715 $3,9238 $9,169.8
Cost of goods sold 7,396.6 3,999.6 2,852.2 6,801.6
% of net sales 70.73% 71.79% 72.69% 74.17%
Gross profit 3,061.1 1,571.9 1,071.6 2,368.2
% of net sales 29.27% 28.21% 27.31% 25.83%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 26448 1,324.5 960.9 2,119.9
% of net sales 23.41% 23.77% 24.49% 23.12%
Litigation settlement and related costs, net 32.0 - - -
% of net sales 0.31% - - -
Transaction and related costs 1.2 101.4 -
% of net sales - 0.02% 2.58% -
Operating profit 580.5 246.1 9.2 248.3
% of net sales 5.55% 4.42% 0.24% 2.71%
Interest income (3.1) (3.8) (5.0) (7.0)
% of net sales (0.03)% (0.07)% (0.13)% (0.08)%
Interest expense 391.9 252.9 10.3 34.9
% of net sales 3.75% 4.54% 0.26% 0.38%
Other (income) expense (2.8) 3.6 - -
% of net sales (0.03)% 0.07% - -
Income (loss) before income taxes 194.4 (6.6) 4.0 220.4
% of net sales 1.86% (0.12)% 0.10% 2.40%
Income taxes 86.2 (1.8) 12.0 82.4
% of net sales 0.82% (0.03)% 0.31% 0.90%
Net income (loss) $108.2 $(4.8) $ (8.0) $137.9
% of net sales 1.03% (0.09)% (0.20)% 1.50%

(a) Includes the results of operations of Buck AcqigsitCorp. for the period prior to its Merger withda
into Dollar General Corporation from March 6, 2Q@% formation) through July 6, 2007 (reflectingth
change in fair value of interest rate swaps), &iedobstMerger results of Dollar General Corporation
the period from July 7, 2007 through February 0&0

(b) Includes the pre-Merger results of Dollar Generairation for the period from February 3, 2007

through July 6, 2007.

(c) Includes the impacts of certain strategic realtesiad inventory management initiatives as desdribe

under the heading “Strategic Initiatives—Projegpidd” in Item 1 above.
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The following discussion of our financial perfornearalso includes supplemental
unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated finamd@mation for fiscal years 2007 and
2006. Because the Merger occurred during our 266@rsl quarter, we believe this information
aids in the comparison between the years presehitedpro forma information does not purport
to represent what our results of operations woakelbeen had the Merger and related
transactions actually occurred at the beginninthefyears indicated, and they do not purport to
project our results of operations or financial dbnd for any future period. The following table
contains results of operations data for 2008 coatptr pro forma results of operations for fit
years 2007 and 2006, and the dollar and percentagances among those years. See
“Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Fiahhdiormation” below.

2008 vs. 2007 Pro Forma vs.
Pro Forma 2007 Pro Forma 2006 Pro Forma
$ % $ %

(amounts in millions) 2008 2007 2006 change change change change
Net sales by category:
Highly consumable $7,248.4 $6,316.6 $6,022.0 $931.6 14.7% $294.8 4.9%
% of net sales 69.31% 66.53% 65.67%
Seasonal 15215 1,513.2 1,510.0 8.2 0.5 3.2 0.2
% of net sales 14.55% 15.94% 16.47%
Home products 862.2 869.8 914 .4 (7.5) (0.9 44.6) (4.9
% of net sales 8.24% 9.16% 9.97%
Basic clothing 825.6 795.4 723.5 30.2 3.8 72.0 9.9
% of net sales 7.89% 8.38% 7.89%
Net sales $10,457.7 $9,495.2 $9,169.8 $9624 10.1% $3254 3.5%
Cost of goods sold 7,396.6 6,852.5 6,803.1 544.1 7.9 49.3 0.7
% of net sales 70.73% 72.17% 74.19%
Gross profit 3,061.1 2,642.8 2,366.7 418.3 15.8 276.1 11.7
% of net sales 29.27% 27.83% 25.81%
Selling, general and

administrative expenses 2,448.6 2,310.9 2,180.9 137.7 6.0 130.0 6.0
% of net sales 23.41% 24.34% 23.78%
Litigation settlement and related

costs, net 32.0 - - 32.0 - - -
% of net sales 0.31% - - - -
Transaction and related costs - 1.2 - (1.2) - 1.2 -
% of net sales - 0.01% -
Operating profit 580.5 330.6 185.7 249.9 75.6 144.9 78.0
% of net sales 5.55% 3.48% 2.03%
Interest income (3.2) (8.8) (7.0) 5.8 (65.4) (1.8) 26.3
% of net sales (0.03)% (0.09Y%  (0.08)%
Interest expense 391.9 436.7 436.9 (44.8) (10.3) (0.2) (0.0)
% of net sales 3.75% 4.60% 4.76%
Other (income) expense (2.8) 3.6 - (6.4) - 3.6 -
% of net sales (0.03)% 0.04% -
Income (loss) before income

taxes 194.4 (100.9) (244.2) 295.3 - 143.3 (58.7)
% of net sales 1.86% (1.06)%  (2.66)%
Income taxes 86.2 (42.9) (88.0) 129.1 - 45.1 (51.2)
% of net sales 0.82% (0.45)%  (0.96)%
Net income (loss) $108.2 $(57.9) $(156.2) $166.1 -% $98.2 (62.9)%
% of net sales 1.03% (0.61)% (1.70)%
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Net Sales The net sales increase in fiscal 2008 refles@naestore sales increase of ¢
compared to 2007. Same-stores include stores @vatlbeen open for 13 months and remain
open at the end of the reporting period. For th@BZiscal year, there were 8,153 same-stores
which accounted for sales of $10.12 billion. Theesre no purchase accounting or other
adjustments to net sales as a result of the Mettgerefore, the 2007 net sales and other am
presented related to 2007 net sales are calculatad the 2007 52-week fiscal yearhe
remainder of the increase in sales in fiscal 2088 attributable to new stores, partially offse
sales from closed stores. The increase in hightgwmable sales reflects the various initiatives
implemented in 2008, including the impact of imped\store standards, the expansion of
convenience food and beverage offerings, improvsidation of square footage and extended
store hours. The majority of our merchandising r$fan 2008 related to the highly consumable
category, including planogram resets and increasgghasis on private brand products as
further discussed above in the Executive Overvigeth the number of customer transactions
and average transaction amount increased for e gad we believe that our stoteEnefited t
some degree from attracting new customers whoesldrgy value as a result of the current
economic environment.

The net sales increase in 2007 primarily refletarae-store sales increase of 1.9% for
the 2007 Successor period and 2.6% for the Presi@cpsriod compared to the same periods in
2006. For the 2007 Successor period, there wé5&ame-stores (generating $5.26 billion of
net sales) and for the 2007 Predecessor periaa tere 7,655 same-stores (generating $3.66
billion of net sales). Sales resulting from nearstgrowth, including 170 new stores in the Z
Successor period and 195 stores in the 2007 Prest@ggeriod, were partially offset by the
impact of store closings in the 2007 PredecessbiSaiccessor periods and in 2006. Sales of
highly consumables were 66.4% of total sales ir2h@7 Successor period and 66.6% of total
sales in the 2007 Predecessor period, comparesl 7édof total sales in 2006, resulting from
successful changes during the 2007 periods toanswnables merchandising mix. Sales of
seasonal merchandise increased slightly in datlatsleclined as a percentage of total sales in
the 2007 periods compared to 2006. Apparel satgsased as a percentage of total sales in the
2007 periods compared to 2006, while home prodiaitess decreased as a percentage of sales.
To some extent, sales in these more discretioraggories were impacted by our efforts to
eliminate our inventory packaway strategy by the en2007 and to reduce overall inventory
levels. In addition, we believe sales of seasor&athmandise, apparel and home products were
negatively affected by continued economic pressonesur customers, particularly in the fourth
qguarter of 2007. The increase in same-store safgesents an increase in average customer
purchase, offset by a slight decrease in custoratict

As discussed above, we monitor our sales interfgilihe following four major
categories: highly consumable, seasonal, home ptednd basic clothing. The highly
consumable category has a lower gross profit hete the other three categories and has grown
significantly over the past several years. Becatfisee impact of sales mix on gross profit, we
continually review our merchandise mix and strivadjust it when appropriate. Maintaining an
appropriate sales mix is an integral part of adhgwur gross profit and sales goals.

Gross Profit. The gross profit rate as a percentage of sale2@8% in 2008 compared
to 28.2% in the 2007 Successor period, 27.3% ir2@%¥ Predecessor period, and 27.8% foi
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forma 2007. Factors contributing to the increast@2008 gross profit rate include a lower
inventory shrink rate; lower promotional markdowimsproved leverage on distribution and
transportation costs; and improved markups reletethanges resulting from the outcome of
pricing analysis, our ability to react more quickdyproduct cost changes and diligent vendor
negotiations. In January 2009, we marked down nagrdise as the result of a recent change in
the interpretation of the phthalates provisionh& Consumer Product Safety Improvement Act
of 2008 resulting in a charge of $8.6 million. Aisc2008, we faced increased commodity cost
pressures mainly related to food and pet produbtsiwhave been driven by rising fruit and
vegetable prices and freight costs. Increasestimleum, resin, metals, pulp and other raw
material commodity driven costs also resulted irtiple product cost increases. Related to
these commodity cost increases, we recorded a pie@sion of $43.9 million in 2008,
compared to the LIFO provision recorded in the 280&cessor period of $6.1 million. We
intend to address these commodity cost increasesgh negotiations with our vendors and by
increasing retail prices as necessary. On a qlaliasis, we estimate the annual impact of
commodity cost fluctuations based upon the bestabla information at that point in time.

The gross profit rate as a percentage of saleRWa86 in the 2007 Predecessor period,
28.2% in the 2007 Successor period, and 27.8%ariggma 2007 compared to 25.8% in 2006.
Factors affecting the increase in the gross prafé include: lower markdowns, including
markdowns from retail and below cost markdowns kai@awns in 2006 included significant
markdowns and below cost adjustments relatinggartbve away from our packaway inventory
strategy); and improved leverage on distributiod ansportation costs driven by logistics
efficiencies. The gross profit rate in the 2007 Gssor period was greater than in the
Predecessor period, in part due to the seasomdidyr sales which result in greater sales of
higher margin discretionary purchases in the foqgcthrter. Offsetting the factors listed above
was an increase in our shrink rate in the 2007psras compared to 2006 and a shift in the mix
of sales to more highly consumable products whanrelhrelatively lower gross profit rates.

Selling, General and Administrative (“SG&A") Expens SG&A expense as a
percentage of sales decreased to 23.4% in 200§ arechto 23.8% and 24.5% in the 2007
Successor and Predecessor periods, respectivelymore significant items resulting in the
decrease in 2008 compared to the 2007 periodsdechpproximately $9.0 million and $45.0
million in the 2007 Successor and Predecessorggriespectively (including $2.4 million and
$4.1 million, respectively, also included in adigrg costs discussed below) relating to the
closing of stores and the elimination of our packgwventory strategy; $40.5 million in 2008
compared to $23.4 million in the 2007 Successaodeelated to amortization of leasehold
intangibles capitalized in connection with the deation of assets at the date of the Merger; a
$12.0 million loss in the 2007 Successor periodgarmd to a $5.0 million gain in 2008 relating
to potential losses on distribution center leaadsertising costs of $27.8 million in 2008
compared to $23.6 million and $17.3 million in 2@07 Successor and Predecessor periods,
respectively; and decreases in workers compensatidrother insuranaelated costs compar:
to the 2007 periods. These decreases were pauifdigt by an increase in incentive
compensation and related payroll taxes in 2008 ewetpto the 2007 periods due to improved
overall financial performance and an increase aigasional fees in 2008 compared to the 2007
periods primarily reflecting legal expenses relatedhareholder litigation.
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SG&A decreased to 23.4% in 2008 compared to 24r8pta forma 2007. The more
significant items resulting in the decrease from2007 pro forma results include: $54.0 million
of costs in pro forma 2007 SG&A relating to thesthg of stores and the elimination of our
packaway inventory strategy; a $12.0 million lasghie 2007 pro forma period compared to a
$5.0 million gain in 2008 relating to possible les®on distribution center leases; and decreases
in workers compensation and other insurance-relasts in 2008 of $10.4 million compared to
the 2007 pro forma period. These decreases wetialfyaoffset by an increase in incentive
compensation and related payroll taxes of $42.0aniln 2008 compared to pro forma 2007
due to improved overall financial performance andrerease in professional fees in 2008 of
$10.4 million compared to pro forma 2007 primar#§lecting legal expenses related to
shareholder litigation.

SG&A expense increased as a percentage of sak8% in the 2007 Successor period
and 24.5% in the 2007 Predecessor period from 2&12606. SG&A in the 2007 periods
includes: $23.4 million in the 2007 Successor geriated to amortization of leasehold
intangibles capitalized in connection with the leation of assets at the date of the Merger;
$19.3 million and $7.6 million of administrative playee incentive compensation expense in
the 2007 Successor and Predecessor periods, rigspeaesulting from meeting certain
financial targets (compared to $9.6 million of detonary bonuses in 2006); approximately
$9.0 million and $45.0 million of expenses in tf®?2 Successor and Predecessor periods,
respectively, relating to the closing of stores dralelimination of our packaway inventory
strategy (compared to approximately $33 millior2@96) and an accrued loss of approximately
$12.0 million in the 2007 Successor period relatmgrobable losses for certain distribution
center leases. In addition, SG&A in the 2007 Susmeperiod includes approximately $4.8
million of KKR-related consulting and monitoringefe SG&A expense in 2006 was partially
offset by insurance proceeds of $13.0 million reeeiduring the year related to losses incurred
due to Hurricane Katrina.

On a pro forma basis, SG&A expense increased asceage of sales to 24.3% in 2
compared to 23.8% in 2006. Pro forma SG&A includ28.9 million of administrative
employee incentive compensation expense in 20Qiftiregs from meeting certain financial
targets, compared to $9.6 million of discretionaoyuses in 2006; approximately $54 millior
expenses in 2007 relating to the closing of starekthe elimination of our packaway inventory
strategy, compared to approximately $33 millio2@96; and an accrued loss of approximately
$12.0 million in 2007 relating to probable lossesdertain distribution center leases. SG&A
expense in 2006 was partially offset by insuramoegeds of $13.0 million received during the
year related to losses incurred due to Hurricarteiiéa

Litigation Settlement and Related Costs, Nae $32.0 million in 2008 represents the
settlement of a class action lawsuit filed in resmto the Merger, and includes a $40.0 million
settlement and estimated expenses of $2.0 milienpf $10.0 million of insurance proceeds
received in the fourth quarter of 2008.

Transaction and Related Cosihe $1.2 million and $101.4 million of expenses
recorded in the 2007 Successor and Predecessodpeeflect $1.2 million and $62.0 million,
respectively, of expenses related to the Mergeh a8 investment banking and legal fees as
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well as $39.4 million of compensation expense eRinedecessor period related to stock opt
restricted stock and restricted stock units whienenfully vested immediately prior to and as a
result of the Merger.

Interest Incomelnterest income consists primarily of interest wveistments. The
decrease in interest income in 2008 compared t@@B& periods was a result of lower interest
rates, partially offset by higher investments.Ha 2007 periods (primarily the 2007 Predecessor
period) we had higher levels of cash and short tasastments on hand as compared to 2006.

Interest ExpenseThe significant increase in interest expensedid82and the 2007
Successor period subsequent to the Merger is dméet@st on londgerm obligations incurred
finance the Merger. See further discussion undeyuidity and Capital Resources” below. We
had outstanding variable-rate debt of $623 milko $787 million, after taking into
consideration the impact of interest rate swapsf danuary 30, 2009 and February 1, 2008,
respectively. The remainder of our outstanding lmeléness at January 30, 2009 and Februz
2008 was fixed rate debt.

Interest expense in 2008 was less than 2007 pnoefanterest expense due to lower
borrowing amounts, specifically on the revolvingdit agreement and senior subordinated
notes, along with lower interest rates. Pro forntarest expense for both 2007 and 2006 was
approximately $437 million.

Other (Income) Expenskl 2008, we recorded a gain of $3.8 million resigtfrom the
repurchase of $44.1 million of our senior subortédanotes, offset by expense of $1.0 million
related to hedge ineffectiveness related to centa@mest rate swaps.

During the 2007 Successor period, we recorded ezalined loss of $4.1 million related
to the change in the fair value of interest swaps o the designation of such swaps as cash
flow hedges in October 2007, offset by earning$lo¥ million under the contractual provisions
of the swap agreements. Also during the 2007 Ssocgeriod, we recorded $6.2 million of
expenses related to consent fees and other castsiated with a tender offer for certain notes
payable maturing in June 2010 (“2010 Notes”). Apprately 99% of the 2010 Notes were
retired as a result of the tender offer. The codtged to the tender of the 2010 Notes were
partially offset by a $4.9 million gain in the 208tccessor period resulting from the repurchase
of $25.0 million of our senior subordinated notes.

Income Taxes The effective income tax rates for 2008, the7280ccessor and
Predecessor periods and 2006 were an expensedéb4d benefit of 26.9% and expense of
300.2%, and 37.4%, respectively.

The 2008 income tax rate is greater than the egdddtS. statutory tax rate of 35%
principally due to the nodeductibility of the settlement and related expsrassociated with tl
Merger-related shareholder lawsuit.

The income tax rate for the Successor period eRébduary 1, 2008 is a benefit of
26.9%. This benefit is less than the expected &tedutory rate of 35% due to the incurrence of
state income taxes in several of the group’s sidosed that file their state income tax returns on

34




a separate entity basis and the election to incleifiective February 3, 2007, income tax related
interest and penalties in the amount reported@smie tax expense.

The income tax rate for the Predecessor periodceiuly 6, 2007 is an expense of
300.2%. This expense is higher than the expect8ddtatutory rate of 35% due principally to
the non-deductibility of certain acquisition relhtexpenses.

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Financidnformation

The following supplemental unaudited pro forma camgkd consolidated statement of
operations data has been developed by applyingppma adjustments to our historical
consolidated statement of operations. We were ssdjoin July 6, 2007 through a merger
accounted for as a reverse acquisition. Althougltevdinued as the same legal entity after the
Merger, the accompanying unaudited pro forma coselgiconsolidated financial information is
presented for the Predecessor and Successor gelatine periods preceding and succeeding the
Merger, respectively. As a result of the Merger,apelied purchase accounting standards and a
new basis of accounting effective July 7, 2007. ihaudited pro forma condensed consolid
statements of operations for the years ended Fgbiy2008 and February 2, 2007 gives effect
to the Merger as if it had occurred on Februar087 and February 4, 2006, respectively.
Assumptions underlying the pro forma adjustmengsdascribed in the accompanying notes,
which should be read in conjunction with this ungdipro forma condensed consolidated
financial statement.

The unaudited pro forma adjustments are based ay@itable information and certain
assumptions that we believe are reasonable uné@irdfumstances. The unaudited pro forma
condensed consolidated financial information ispreed for supplemental informational
purposes only, although we believe this informatgouaseful in providing comparisons between
years. The unaudited pro forma condensed consetldatancial information does not purpor
represent what our results of operations would teeen had the Merger and related transac
actually occurred on the date indicated, and tleegat purport to project our results of
operations or financial condition for any futureipd. The unaudited pro forma condensed
consolidated statements of operations should lekineeonjunction with the information
contained in other sections of this 2008 Form lixd{uding “Selected Financial Data”, in our
consolidated financial statements and related rtbereto, and other sections of this
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finanotaddtion and Results of Operations”
appearing elsewhere in this fiscal 2008 Form 1@JKpro forma adjustments and their
underlying assumptions are described more fulbhénotes to our unaudited pro forma
condensed consolidated statements of operations.
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Fiscal Year Ended February 1, 2008

(In thousands) Successor Predecessor Adjustments Pro Forma
Net sales $ 5,571,493 $ 3,923,753 $ - $ 9,495,246
Cost of goods sold 3,999,599 2,852,178 695 (a) 6,852,472
Gross profit 1,571,894 1,071,575 (695) 2,642,774
Selling, general and

administrative 1,324,508 960,930 25,461 (b) 2,310,899
Transaction and related costs 1,242 101,397 (101,397 (c) 1,242
Operating profit 246,144 9,248 75,241 330,633
Interest income (3,799 (5,046, - (8,845
Interest expense 252,897 10,299 173,502(d) 436,698
Other (income) expense 3,639 - - 3,639
Income (loss) before income

taxes (6,593 3,995 (98,261 (100,859
Income tax expense (benefit) (1,775 11,993 (53,138 (e) (42,920
Net loss $ (4,818 $ (7,998 $ (45,123 $ (57,939

See notes to unaudited pro forma condensed coasetictatement of operations

Fiscal Year Ended February 2, 2007

(In thousands) Predecessor Adjustments Pro Forma
Net sales $ 9,169,822 $ - $ 9,169,822
Cost of goods sold 6,801,617 1,532 (a) 6,803,149
Gross profit 2,368,205 (1,532 2,366,673
Selling, general and

administrative 2,119,929 61,016(b) 2,180,945
Operating profit 248,276 (62,548 185,728
Interest income (7,002 - (7,002
Interest expense 34,915 401,987(d) 436,902
Income (loss) before income

taxes 220,363 (464,535 (244,172
Income tax expense (benefit) 82,420 (170,404 (e) (87,984
Net income (loss) $ 137,943 $ (294,131 $ (156,188

See notes to unaudited pro forma condensed coasatictatement of operations
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Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolid&tatement of Operatiol

(a) Represents the estimated impact on cost ofgysold of the adjustment to fair value of the
property and equipment at our distribution centers.

(b) Primarily represents depreciation and amoitrzadf the fair value adjustments related to
tangible and intangible long-lived assets. Ideaftife intangible assets with a determinable life
have been amortized on a straijhe basis in the unaudited pro forma consolidatatement ¢
operations over a period ranging from 2 to 17.5y€8he primary fair value adjustments (on
which the pro forma adjustments are based) iImpgaS@&A expenses were to leasehold
interests ($185 million), property and equipmerdt0® million) and internally developed
software ($12 million). This adjustment also in@sdnanagement fees that are payable to
affiliates of certain of the Investors subsequerthe closing of the Merger and related
transactions (at an initial annual rate of $5.diamlwhich shall be increased by 5% for each
succeeding year during the term of the agreement).

(c) Represents $101.4 million of charges that arerecurring in nature and directly attributa
to the Merger and related transactions. Such ceargecomprised of $39.4 million of stock
compensation expense from the acceleration of tedesock options, restricted stock and
restricted stock units as required as a resutt@Merger and $62.0 million of transaction costs
we incurred that were expensed as one-time chagg@sthe close of the Merger. Such
adjustments do not include any adjustments tocaefiee effects of our new stock based
compensation plan.

(d) Reflects pro forma interest expense resultinghfour new capital structure as follows (in
millions):

Predecessor

Fiscal Year Ended Period Ended

February 2, 2007 July 6, 2007
Revolving credit facility (1) $ 21.4 $ 8.9
Term loan facilities (2) 177.8 74.1
Notes (3) 210.9 87.9
Letter of credit fees (4) 1.7 0.7
Bank commitment fees (5) 2.3 1.0
Other existing debt obligations (6) 7.2 3.0
Total cash interest expense 421.3 175.6
Amortization of capitalized debt issuance costs @it discount (7) 9.8 4.1
Amortization of discounted liabilities (8) 8.5 35
Other (9) (2.7) 0.6
Total pro forma interest expense 436.9 183.8
Less historical interest expense (34.9) (10.3)
Net adjustment to interest expense $ 402.0 $ 173.5

(1) The $1.125 billion revolving credit facility nées an interest rate of 3-month LIBOR of 5.32%s1.50%
for tranche A loans and 3-month LIBOR of 5.32% @u®5% for tranche A-1 loans. Reflects assumed
borrowings of $175.0 million under tranche A an@%D million under tranche A- Such levels of borrowing
will fluctuate in future periods dependent uponrsherm cash needs. Changes in the levels of bangsv
would impact interest expense.
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(2) Reflects interest on the $2.3 billion term Idaaility at a rate of LIBOR plus 2.75%. To hedgmmst
interest rate risk, we have entered into a swageagent with respect to a $2.0 billion notional amdor
4.93%. This swap agreement became effective asu#t &f the acquisition on July 31, 2007 and wiliatize
on a quarterly basis until maturity at July 31, 20The unhedged portion of the facility is reflattd an
interest rate of LIBOR of 5.32% plus 2.75%.

(3) Reflects interest on the 10.625% senior nabelsld.875%/12.625% senior subordinated notes. Asstin
cash interest payment option at a rate of 11.87a88bleen elected with respect to all of the seniboslinated
notes.

(4) Represents fees on balances of trade lettenedit of $141.2 million at 0.75% and standbydedtof credit
of $40.7 million at 1.50%.

(5) Represents commitment fees of 0.375% on th@ $G1illion unutilized balance of the revolving die
facility at July 6, 2007. Outstanding letters oédit noted in (4) above reduce the availability emithe
revolving credit facility.

(6) Represents historical interest expense on @kisting indebtedness.

(7) Represents debt issuance costs associatetheitrew bank facilities amortized using the effexinterest
method over 6 years for the revolving facility, &ays for the term loan facility, 8 years for thaisenotes, 10
years for the senior subordinated notes and 8 yeagher capitalized debt issuance costs. Alstuifes the
amortization of debt discount of the senior notes.

(8) Represents interest expense on long-termili@isilwhich were discounted as a result of the Merg

(9) Represents an adjustment to historical intexegénse to reflect the effect of the adoptionusfent
accounting standards for income taxes, offset ppjtaiézed interest expense.

(e) Represents the tax effect of the pro formasddjants, calculated at an effective rate of
54.1% for the Predecessor period ended July 6, 3068736.7% for the fiscal year ended
February 2, 2007. The effective tax rate, a benafiplied to the pro forma changes for the
Predecessor period ended July 6, 2007, reflectgrthéorma elimination of non-deductible
transaction costs from income before taxes. Thd@roa income tax expense for the year
ended February 2, 2007 has been adjusted to refitaciges required by FIN 48 as if FIN 48
been adopted as of the beginning of the year.

Effects of Inflation

In 2008, increased commodity cost pressures magtdyed to food and pet products
which have been driven by fruit and vegetable grimed rising freight costs have increased the
costs of certain products. Increases in petroleasin, metals, pulp and other raw material
commodity driven costs also resulted in multipledarct cost increases. We believe that our
ability to increase selling prices in responsedst éncreases largely mitigated the effect of these
cost increases on our overall results of operatidfesbelieve that inflation and/or deflation had
a minimal impact on our overall operations duri@§2 and 2006.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Current Financial Condition / Recent Developmeriiairing the past three years, we

have generated an aggregate of approximately $ilighbin cash flows from operating
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activities. During that period, we expanded the hanof stores we operate by approximately
5% (433 stores), remodeled or relocated over 9Q%upturrently operated stores (768 stores),
and incurred approximately $607 million in capgapenditures. As noted above, we made
certain strategic decisions which slowed our sgposvth in 2007 and 2008, but we plan to
accelerate store growth again in 2009.

At January 30, 2009, we had total outstanding @abtuding the current portion of long-
term obligations) of $4.14 billion. We also hadaaiditional $932.8 million available for
borrowing under our senior secured asset-basedviegaredit facility at that date. Our
liquidity needs are significant, primarily due toralebt service and other obligations. Our
substantial debt could adversely affect our abibtyaise additional capital to fund our
operations, limit our ability to react to changeshie economy or our industry, expose us to
interest rate risk to the extent of our variabke idebt and prevent us from meeting our
obligations under our outstanding debt securities.

Management believes our cash flow from operatiomsexisting cash balances,
combined with availability under the Credit Faddg (described below), will provide sufficient
liquidity to fund our current obligations, projedtesorking capital requirements and capital
spending for a period that includes the next twenhmnths.

Credit Facilities

OverviewWe have two senior secured credit facilities (t@e€dit Facilities”) which
provide financing of up to $3.425 billion. The Citdgacilities consist of a $2.3 billion senior
secured term loan facility and a senior securedtdsssed revolving credit facility of up to
$1.125 billion (of which up to $350.0 million is a@ilable for letters of credit), subject to
borrowing base availability. The asset-based remgleredit facility includes borrowing
capacity available for letters of credit and foodkterm borrowings referred to as swingline
loans.

The agreements governing the Credit Facilities ipethat we have the right at any time
to request up to $325.0 million of incremental coitnments under one or more incremental term
loan facilities and/or asset-based revolving criadiilities. The lenders under these facilities are
not under any obligation to provide any such in@atal commitments and any such addition of
or increase in commitments will be subject to ocofr@xceeding certain senior secured leverage
ratios and certain other customary conditions gitese Our ability to obtain extensions of
credit under these incremental commitments alsbb&isubject to the same conditions as
extensions of credit under the Credit Facilities.

The amount available under the senior secured-aased credit facility (including
letters of credit) shall not exceed the sum ofttheche A borrowing base and the tranche A-1
borrowing base. The tranche A borrowing base egbhalsum of (i) 85% of the net orderly
liquidation value of all our eligible inventory atidht of each guarantor thereunder and (ii) 90%
of all our accounts receivable and credit/debiticaceivables and that of each guarantor
thereunder, in each case, subject to a reservé teqthe principal amount of the 2010 Notes
remain outstanding at any time and other customesgrves and eligibility criteria. An
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additional 10% to 12% of the net orderly liquidatialue of all of our eligible inventory and
that of each guarantor thereunder is made avaitahls in the form of a “last outftanche unde
which we may borrow up to a maximum amount of $@2Billion. Borrowings under the asset-
based credit facility will be incurred first undée last out tranche, and no borrowings will be
permitted under any other tranche until the lasti@nche is fully utilized. Repayments of the
senior secured asset-based revolving credit faeilil be applied to the last out tranche only
after all other tranches have been fully paid down.

Interest Rates and FedBorrowings under the Credit Facilities bear intesdsa rate
equal to an applicable margin plus, at our optestiner (a) LIBOR or (b) a base rate (which is
usually equal to the prime rate). The applicabéegm for borrowings is (i) under the term loan
facility, 2.75% for LIBOR borrowings and 1.75% floase-rate borrowings (ii) as of January 30,
2009 and February 1, 2008, respectively, undeasiset-based revolving credit facility (except
in the last out tranche described above), 1.25%la6@P6 for LIBOR borrowings; 0.25% and
0.50% for base-rate borrowings and for any lastautowings, 2.25% for LIBOR borrowings
and 1.25% for base-rate borrowings. The applicataegins for borrowings under the asset-
based revolving credit facility (except in the ca$éast out borrowings) are subject to
adjustment each quarter based on average dailg&asailability under the asset-based
revolving credit facility. We are also requiredpgay a commitment fee to the lenders under the
asset-based revolving credit facility for any ulhzgid commitments at a rate of 0.375% per
annum. We also must pay customary letter of cfeds. See Item 7A. “Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk” below fodiscussion of our use of interest rate
swaps to manage our interest rate risk.

PrepaymentsThe senior secured credit agreement for the team facility requires us 1
prepay outstanding term loans, subject to certadetions, with:

* 50% of our annual excess cash flow (as definedarctedit agreement) which w
be reduced to 25% and 0% if we achieve and maiataital net leverage ratio of €
to 1.0 and 5.0 to 1.0, respectively;

* 100% of the net cash proceeds of all-ordinary course asset sales or o
dispositions of property in excess of $25.0 millinrthe aggregate and subject to our
right to reinvest the proceeds; and

* 100% of the net cash proceeds of any incurrencelof, other than proceeds fr
debt permitted under the senior secured credieageat.

The mandatory prepayments discussed above wilppkeal to the term loan facility as
directed by the senior secured credit agreemembufiin January 30, 2009, no prepayments
been required under the prepayment provisiongdligbove.

In addition, the senior secured credit agreemanthi® asset-based revolving credit
facility requires us to prepay the asset-basedivangcredit facility, subject to certain
exceptions, with:
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* 100% of the net cash proceeds of all-ordinary course asset sales or o
dispositions of revolving facility collateral (agfihed below) in excess of $1.0
million in the aggregate and subject to our rightdinvest the proceeds; and

* to the extent such extensions of credit exceedhitre current borrowing base |(
defined in the senior secured credit agreemerthasset-based revolving credit
facility).

We may be obligated to pay a prepayment premiuth@@mount repaid under the term
loan facility if the term loans are voluntarily @gd in whole or in part before July 6, 2009. We
may voluntarily repay outstanding loans under gsetbased revolving credit facility at any
time without premium or penalty, other than custontareakage” costs with respect to LIBOR
loans.

An event of default under the senior secured cegliéements will occur upon a change
of control as defined in the senior secured craglieements governing our Credit Facilities.
Upon an event of default, indebtedness under tlediCFacilities may be accelerated, in which
case we will be required to repay all outstandoank plus accrued and unpaid interest and all
other amounts outstanding under the Credit Faasliti

Amortization.Beginning September 30, 2009, we are requireddayrénstallments on
the loans under the term loan credit facility imalogguarterly principal amounts in an aggregate
amount per annum equal to 1% of the total fundattjgral amount at July 6, 2007, with the
balance payable on July 6, 2014. There is no apatidn under the asset-based revolving credit
facility. The entire principal amounts (if any) etanding under the asset-based revolving credit
facility are due and payable in full at maturity, duly 6, 2013, on which day the commitments
thereunder will terminate.

Guarantee and Securitpll obligations under the Credit Facilities are anditionally
guaranteed by substantially all of our existing &nidre domestic subsidiaries (excluding cel
immaterial subsidiaries and certain subsidiariesgi@ated by us under our senior secured credit
agreements as “unrestricted subsidiaries”), redetwecollectively, as U.S. Guarantors.

All obligations and related guarantees under tha tean credit facility are secured by:

* a secon-priority security interest in all existing and a-acquired inventory
accounts receivable, and other assets arising $tarh inventory and accounts
receivable, of our company and each U.S. Guardtiter‘Revolving Facility
Collateral”), subject to certain exceptions;

» afirst priority security interest in, and mortgagm, substantially all of our and ee
U.S. Guarantor’s tangible and intangible assetseahan the Revolving Facility
Collateral); and

» afirst-priority pledge of 100% of the capital stock heldus, or any of our domesi
subsidiaries that are directly owned by us or diée@U.S. Guarantors and 65% of
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the voting capital stock of each of our existingl dunture foreign subsidiaries that are
directly owned by us or one of the U.S. Guarantors.

All obligations and related guarantees under tisetasased credit facility are secured by
the Revolving Facility Collateral, subject to cantaxceptions.

Certain Covenants and Events of Defalllie senior secured credit agreements contain a
number of covenants that, among other things,icessubject to certain exceptions, our ability
to:

* incur additional indebtednes

+ sell assets

+ pay dividends and distributions or repurchase apital stock:
* make investments or acquisitiol

* repay or repurchase subordinated indebtednessiding the senior subordinat
notes discussed below) and the senior notes disdurdow;

« amend material agreements governing our subordinatiebtedness (including t|
senior subordinated notes discussed below) oreniosnotes discussed below;

« and change our lines of busine

The senior secured credit agreements also corgaiaiic customary affirmative
covenants and events of default.

At January 30, 2009, we had no borrowings, $51l0amiof commercial letters of
credit, and $83.7 million of standby letters ofdit@utstanding under our asset-based revolving
credit facility.

Senior Notes due 2015 and Senior Subordinated €dggles due 2017

Overview.We have $1.175 billion aggregate principal amouirit0625% senior notes
due 2015 (the “senior notes”) outstanding, whichureaon July 15, 2015, pursuant to an
indenture dated as of July 6, 2007 (the “senioeimidre”), and $655.9 million aggregate
principal amount of 11.875%/12.625% senior sub@tid toggle notes due 2017 (the “senior
subordinated notes”) outstanding, which matureuby 15, 2017, pursuant to an indenture dated
as of July 6, 2007 (the “senior subordinated indext). The senior notes and the senior
subordinated notes are collectively referred t@imeas the “notes.The senior indenture and t
senior subordinated indenture are collectivelymrefito herein as the “indentures.” We may
redeem some or all of the notes at any time atmptlen prices described or set forth in the
indentures.

Interest on the notes is payable on January 19alydLl5 of each year. Interest on the
senior notes is payable in cash. Cash interedte@sdnior subordinated notes accrues at a r:
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11.875% per annum, and PIK interest (as that terdefined below) accrues at a rate of
12.625% per annum, if applicable. The initial ietgrpayment on the senior subordinated notes
was payable in cash. For any interest period tifterethrough July 15, 2011, we may elect to
pay interest on the senior subordinated notes @ash, (ii) by increasing the principal amount

of the senior subordinated notes or issuing newossnbordinated notes (“PIK interesty (iii)

by paying interest on half of the principal amoahthe senior subordinated notes in cash
interest and half in PIK interest. After July 1912, all interest on the senior subordinated notes
will be payable in cash. Through January 30, 2@00%uch interest has been paid in cash.

The notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteg@ach of the existing and future
direct or indirect wholly owned domestic subsidearthat guarantee the obligations under our
Credit Facilities.

We may redeem some or all of the notes at any aimnedemption prices described or
forth in the indentures. We also may seek, fronetimtime, to retire some or all of the notes
through cash purchases on the open market, intplyvaegotiated transactions or otherwise.
Such repurchases, if any, will depend on prevaitiregket conditions, our liquidity
requirements, contractual restrictions and othetiofa. The amounts involved may be material.
We repurchased $44.1 million and $25.0 milliontaf senior subordinated notes in the fourth
guarters of 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Change of ControlUpon the occurrence of a change of control, whsathefined in the
indentures, each holder of the notes has the togtgquire us to repurchase some or all of such
holder’s notes at a purchase price in cash equed186 of the principal amount thereof, plus
accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the reaseldate.

CovenantsThe indentures contain covenants limiting, amorgiothings, our ability
and the ability of our restricted subsidiariesgolject to certain exceptions):

* incur additional debt, issue disqualified stockssue certain preferred stoc
» pay dividends on or make certain distributions atheer restricted payment
» create certain liens or encumbranc

» sell assets

* enter into transactions with affiliate

* make payments to u

» consolidate, merge, sell or otherwise disposelaraubstantially all of our asse
and

* designate our subsidiaries as unrestricted sulpsigl
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Events of DefaulfThe indentures also provide for events of defadiicty, if any of them
occurs, would permit or require the principal oflatcrued interest on the notes to become
be declared due and payable.

Adjusted EBITD/

Under the agreements governing the Credit Faaldied the indentures, certain
limitations and restrictions could arise if we arg able to satisfy and remain in compliance
specified financial ratios. Management believesnttost significant of such ratios is the senior
secured incurrence test under the Credit Facilitidss test measures the ratio of the senior
secured debt to Adjusted EBITDA. This ratio woukkd to be no greater than 4.25to 1 to a
such limitations and restrictions. As of January D9, this ratio was 2.1 to 1. Senior secured
debt is defined as our total debt secured by l@rsmilar encumbrances less cash and cash
equivalents. EBITDA is defined as income (loss)rrcontinuing operations before cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle plus iestrand other financing costs, net, provision for
income taxes, and depreciation and amortizatiofjugidd EBITDA is defined as EBITDA,
further adjusted to give effect to adjustments neglin calculating this covenant ratio under
Credit Facilities. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA aretpresentations made in accordance
U.S. GAAP, are not measures of financial perforneamrccondition, liquidity or profitability,
and should not be considered as an alternativi¢ et income, operating income or any other
performance measures determined in accordancdJ®hGAAP or (ii) operating cash flows
determined in accordance with U.S. GAAP. AdditionaEBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are
not intended to be measures of free cash flow fmmagemens discretionary use, as they do
consider certain cash requirements such as inteagstents, tax payments and debt service
requirements and replacements of fixed assets.

Our presentation of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Himsitations as an analytical tool,
and should not be considered in isolation or agatgute for analysis of our results as reported
under U.S. GAAP. Because not all companies usdiaialculations, these presentations of
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparabletber similarly tittled measures of
other companies. We believe that the presentafi@B6T DA and Adjusted EBITDA is
appropriate to provide additional information abthé calculation of this financial ratio in the
Credit Facilities. Adjusted EBITDA is a materialnaponent of this ratio. Specifically, non-
compliance with the senior secured indebtednegsaantained in our Credit Facilities could
prohibit us from making investments, incurring Bemaking certain restricted payments and
incurring additional secured indebtedness (othen the additional funding provided for under
the senior secured credit agreement and pursuapetfied exceptions).
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The calculation of Adjusted EBITDA under the Crdelicilities is as follows:

Year Ended
January 30, February 1,
(in millions) 2009 2008
Net income (loss) $ 108.2 $ (12.8)
Add (subtract):
Interest income (3.2) (8.8)
Interest expense 391.9 263.2
Depreciation and amortization 235.1 226.4
Income taxes 86.2 10.2
EBITDA 818.3 478.2
Adjustments:
Transaction and related costs - 102.6
(Gain) loss on debt retirements (3.8) 1.2
Loss on interest rate swaps 1.1 24
Contingent (gain) loss on distribution center lsase (5.0 12.0
Impact of markdowns related to inventory
clearance activities, net of purchase accounting
adjustments (24.9) (0.4
SG&A related to store closing and inventory
clearance activities - 54.0
Operating losses (cash) of stores to be closed - 10.5
Hurricane-related expenses and write-offs 2.2 -
Monitoring and consulting fees to affiliates 8.6 4.8
Stock option and restricted stock unit expense 10.0 6.5
Indirect Merger-related costs 20.7 4.6
Litigation settlement and related costs, net 32.0 -
Other non-cash charges (primarily LIFO) 54.7 6.1
Other - 1.0
Total Adjustments 95.6 205.3
Adjusted EBITDA $ 9139 $ 683.5

Interest Rate Sway

We use interest rate swaps to minimize the riskdverse changes in interest rates. T
swaps are intended to reduce risk by hedging aeriyidg economic exposure. Because of high
correlation between the derivative financial instant and the underlying exposure being
hedged, fluctuations in the value of the finanmatruments are generally offset by reciprocal
changes in the value of the underlying economios¥pe. Our principal interest rate exposure
relates to outstanding amounts under our Creditifi@s. At January 30, 2009, we had interest
rate swaps with a total notional amount of appr@taty $1.69 billion. For more information ¢
Item 7A “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosurdmat Market Risk” below.

Fair Value Accounting

We have classified our interest rate swaps, aBdudiscussed in Item 7A. “Quantitative
and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk” belan Level 2 (as defined by SFAS 157) of
the fair value hierarchy, as the significant inpiotshe overall valuations are based on market-
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observable data or information derived from or abarated by market-observable data,
including market-based inputs to models, modebcation to market-clearing transactions,
broker or dealer quotations, or alternative prigongrces with reasonable levels of price
transparency. Where models are used, the selagft@mparticular model to value a derivative
depends upon the contractual terms of, and spesks inherent in, the instrument as well as
the availability of pricing information in the maak We use similar models to value similar
instruments. Valuation models require a varietinpiits, including contractual terms, market
prices, yield curves, credit curves, measures tatility, and correlations of such inputs. For
our derivatives, all of which trade in liquid matkemodel inputs can generally be verified and
model selection does not involve significant mamaget judgment.

To comply with the provisions of SFAS 157, we inmanmate credit valuation adjustments
to appropriately reflect both our own nonperformearnisk and the respective counterparty’s
nonperformance risk in the fair value measuremehtair derivatives. The credit valuation
adjustments are calculated by determining the ttpécted exposure of the derivatives (which
incorporates both the current and potential fuexgosure) and then applying each
counterparty’s credit spread to the applicable syp®. For derivatives with two-way exposure,
such as interest rate swaps, the counterpartytst@eread is applied to our exposure to the
counterparty, and our own credit spread is appbatie counterparty’s exposure to us, and the
net credit valuation adjustment is reflected in derivative valuations. The total expected
exposure of a derivative is derived using marketeobable inputs, such as yield curves and
volatilities. The inputs utilized for our own ciedpread are based on implied spreads from our
publicly-traded debt. For counterparties with peliglavailable credit information, the credit
spreads over LIBOR used in the calculations reptasgplied credit default swap spreads
obtained from a third party credit data providbr.adjusting the fair value of our derivative
contracts for the effect of nonperformance risk,hage considered the impact of netting anc
applicable credit enhancements, such as collgtestings, thresholds, mutual puts, and
guarantees. Additionally, we actively monitor ctarparty credit ratings for any significant
changes.

As of January 30, 2009, the net credit valuatignstthents reduced the settlement
values of our derivative liabilities by $8.5 milfio Various factors impact changes in the credit
valuation adjustments over time, including changekbe credit spreads of the parties to the
contracts, as well as changes in market rates aladilities, which affect the total expected
exposure of the derivative instruments. When apjatg valuations are also adjusted for
various factors such as liquidity and bid/offeresgats, which factors we deemed to be immal
as of January 30, 2009.

Other Considerations

Our inventory balance represented approximately 4#1&tur total assets exclusive of
goodwill and other intangible assets as of Jan88r2009. Our proficiency in managing our
inventory balances can have a significant impaaumncash flows from operations during a
given fiscal year. As a result, efficient inventomanagement has been and continues to be an
area of focus for us.
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The following table summarizes our significant cantual obligations and commercial
commitments as of January 30, 2009 (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Contractual obligations Total <lyr 1-3yrs 3-5yrs >5yrs
Long-term debt obligations $4,147,109 $ 11,500 $ 47,723 $ 46,000 $ 4,041,886
Capital lease obligations 9,939 2,658 2,471 564 4,246
Interest (a) 2,159,555 332,792 661,518 656,169 509,076
Self-insurance liabilities (b) 216,817 70,047 93,198 30,590 22,982
Operating leases (c) 1,671,935 358,367 569,005 371,966 372,597
Monitoring agreement (d) 20,682 5,403 11,630 3,649 -
Subtotal $ 8,226,037 $ 780,767 $ 1,385,545 $ 1,108,938 $ 4,950,787

Commitments Expiring by Period

Commercial
commitments(e) Total <lyr 1-3yrs 3-5yrs >5yrs
Letters of credit $ 51,014 $ 51,014 $ - $ - $ -
Purchase obligations (f) 634,014 632,857 1,157 - -
Subtotal $ 685,028 $ 683,871 $ 1,157 $ - $ -
Total contractual obligations and
commercial commitments $ 8,911,065 $ 1,464,638 $ 1,386,702 $ 1,108,938 $ 4,950,787

(a) Represents obligations for interest payments og-term debt and capital lease obligations, andiates
projected interest on variable rate long-term deased upon 2008 year end rates.

(b) We retain a significant portion of the risk for amorkers’ compensation, employee health insurageeeral
liability, property loss and automobile insuranés.these obligations do not have scheduled matgrithese
amounts represent undiscounted estimates basedagpgrial assumptions. Reserves for workers’
compensation and general liability which existedfthe Merger date were discounted in order tveuat
estimated fair value. All other amounts are réédon an undiscounted basis in our consolidatézhba
sheets.

(c) Operating lease obligations are inclusive of amgimtluded in deferred rent and closed store otiiga in
our consolidated balance sheets.

(d) We entered into a monitoring agreement, dated @ui007, with affiliates of certain of our Investquursuant
to which those entities will provide management addisory services. Such agreement has no conalact
term and for purposes of this schedule is presuméée outstanding for a period of five years.

(e) Commercial commitments include information techgglticense and support agreements, supplies, &ésfur
letters of credit for import merchandise, and ofhgentory purchase obligations.

(f) Purchase obligations include legally binding agreets for software licenses and support, suppliesirés,
and merchandise purchases excluding such purchabgst to letters of credit.

In 2008 and 2007, our South Carolina-based whallgex captive insurance subsidiary,
Ashley River Insurance Company (“ARIC”), had invasnts in U.S. Government securities,
obligations of Government Sponsored Enterprisestshnd long-term corporate obligations,
and assebacked obligations. These investments were helsuamt to South Carolina regulat
requirements to maintain certain asset balancedation to ARIC’s liability and equity
balances which could limit our ability to use thessets for general corporate purposes. In May
2008, the state of South Carolina made certaingdg®to these regulatory requirements, which
had the effect of reducing the amounts and typésvestments required, allowing ARIC to
liquidate investments (primarily U.S. Governmend @orporate debt securities) totaling $48.6
million during 2008. At January 30, 2009, the adsdances held pursuant to these regulatory
requirements equaled $20.0 million and were redl@@t our consolidated balance sheet as cash
and cash equivalents.
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In August 2005, we incurred significant losses edusy Hurricane Katrina, primarily
inventory and fixed assets in the form of storéufigs and leasehold improvements. We reached
final settlement of our related insurance clai2@6 and received proceeds totaling $21.0
million due to these losses, including $13.0 millia 2006 and $8.0 million prior to 2006, and
have utilized a portion of these proceeds to replast assets. Insurance proceeds related to
fixed assets are included in cash flows from inwgsactivities, and proceeds related to
inventory losses and business interruption areided in cash flows from operating activities.

Legal actions, claims and tax contingenciés described in Note 8 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, we are involved in a numbé&gal actions and claims, some of which
could potentially result in material cash paymemislverse developments in those actions could
materially and adversely affect our liquidity. Aiscussed in Note 5 we also have certain
income tax-related contingencies as more fully dieed below under “Critical Accounting
Policies and Estimates.” Future negative developsnewsuld have a material adverse effect on
our liquidity.

Considerations regarding distribution center leas@$ie Merger and certain of the
related financing transactions may be interpretediang rise to certain trigger events (which
may include events of default) under leases fadluf our distribution centers (“DCs”). We do
not believe such an interpretation would be appatpunder the terms of the leases. During the
2007 Successor period, we concluded that a prol@ddesxisted in connection with the lease
contingencies and accrued SG&A expenses totali@g0illion in the Successor statement of
operations for the period ended February 1, 20@8fAlanuary 30, 2009, $7.0 million of such
amount has been paid. We believe that we have iagggbivith the property owners proposed
lease terms that would be implemented if the ownere to refinance or sell the property and
that the resolution of these negotiations is pritpalependent on conditions in the real estate
and financial markets. We believe that any remgipiotential loss on the resolution of these
matters would currently be properly categorizedeasonably possible rather than probable and
therefore reversed the remaining $5.0 million @&viously recorded SG&A expenses during the
year ended January 30, 2009. However, the posgil@imains that the ultimate resolution of
these matters could require us to make a significash investment to purchase these DCs.

Credit ratings. On December 15, 2008 Standard & Poor’s revisedang-term debt
rating outlook to positive from stable and affirmaa long-term rating of B. On September 18,
2008 Moody'’s affirmed our long-term debt ratingBf and changed the outlook to positive
from stable. These current ratings are consideoadinvestment grade. Our current credit
ratings, as well as future rating agency actions|a (1) negatively impact our ability to obtain
financings to finance our operations on satisfgcterms; (2) have the effect of increasing our
financing costs; and (3) have the effect of indreasur insurance premiums and collateral
requirements necessary for our self-insured program

Cash flows

Cash flows from operating activitie&.significant component of the change in cash
flows from operating activities in 2008 comparedtte 2007 periods was our strong operating
performance due to greater sales, higher grossimsagigd lower SG&A expenses as a
percentage of sales, partially offset by signiftbahigher interest expense, as described in more
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detail above under “Results of Operations.” In #ddj we experienced increased inventory
turns and improved merchandise payment terms i8 28Gompared to the 2007 periods.
Accounts payable balances increased by $140.4milli 2008 compared to a decline of $41.4
million in the 2007 Successor period and an in@eds$34.8 million in the 2007 Predecessor
period partially as a result of our implementatodrinitiatives to aggressively manage our
payables. Also positively affecting cash flowsifroperations were increases in accrued
expenses and other in 2008, which was primarilybaitable to increases in litigation reserves,
incentive bonus accruals, deferred vendor rebatesproperty and sales tax accruals. Other
significant components of the change in cash flirass operating activities in 2008 as
compared to 2007 were changes in inventory balamd@sh increased by 10% in 2008
compared to decreases of approximately 6% and Ibgdine 2007 Successor and Predecessor
periods, respectively. Inventory levels in the hygtonsumable category increased by $77.8
million, or 12%, in 2008 compared to a decline 80% million, or 12%, in the 2007 Successor
period and an increase of $48.8 million, or 7%thim 2007 Predecessor period. The seasonal
category increased by $20.9 million, or 8%, in 2@6&pared to a decline of $24.2 million, or
8%, in the 2007 Successor period and a declin@®f7dmillion, or 11%, in the 2007
Predecessor period. The home products categorindddly $2.6 million, or 2%, in 2008
compared to an increase of $25.4 million, or 19%he 2007 Successor period and a decline of
$15.0 million, or 10%, in the 2007 PredecessorqukfThe basic clothing category increased by
$30.2 million, or 15%, in 2008 compared to an iaseof $10.0 million, or 5%, in the 2007
Successor period and a decline of $11.5 milliorg%r in the 2007 Predecessor period. In
addition, net income in 2008 compared to the netds in the 2007 periods discussed above was
a principal factor in the increase in income tapaisl in 2008. Income tax refunds received in
2007 for taxes paid in prior years that did notrews in 2008 also contributed to the increase in
income taxes paid during 2008.

Cash flows from operating activities for the 20@ripds were impacted by a net loss of
$4.8 million and $8.0 million in the 2007 Succesand Predecessor periods, respectively,
compared to net income of $137.9 million in 2006dascribed in detail under “Results of
Operations’above, including the incurrence of $101.4 millidnTeansaction and related cost:
the 2007 Predecessor period. Other significant corapts of the change in cash flows from
operating activities in 2007 as compared to 200@wblanges in inventory balances, which
decreased by approximately 6% and 1% during th& 3@cessor and Predecessor periods,
respectively, compared to a decrease of approxiynd¥% during 2006. As compared to chan
in inventory levels in the 2007 periods discusdeava, in 2006 highly consumable increased
$63.2 million, or 10%; seasonal increased $6.7ionillor 2%; home products decreased $52.5
million, or 25%; and basic clothing decreased $58il5on, or 21%. In addition to inventory
changes, the net losses in the 2007 periods detwidsve were principal factors in the
reduction in income taxes paid in those periodsoaspared to 2006. Also offsetting the decline
in net income were changes in accrued expensdgybarly in the 2007 Predecessor period as
compared to 2006, which was primarily attributaoléncome tax related reserves, accruals for
lease liabilities on closed stores and propertysaiés tax accruals.

Cash flows from investing activitie€ash flows used in investing activities totaling
$152.6 million in 2008 were primarily related tqpdal expenditures and sales of investments.
Significant components of our property and equipnpemchases in 2008 included the following
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approximate amounts: $149 million for improvemengggrades, remodels and relocations of
existing stores; $22 million for new stores; $1Tiom for distribution and transportatiomlatec
capital expenditures; and $13 million for infornastisystems upgrades and technology-related
projects. During 2008 we opened 207 new stores@maddeled or relocated 404 stores.

Purchases and sales of short-term investmentshwelgjealed net sales of $51.6 million
in 2008, primarily reflect our investment activitin our captive insurance subsidiary, including
a change in regulatory requirements as discusseunbia detail above under “Other
Considerations.”

The Merger, as discussed in more detail abovejnemfjuash payments in the 2007
Successor period of approximately $6.7 billion, ofetash acquired of $350 million. Significant
components of property and equipment purchasd®i@@07 Successor period included the
following approximate amounts: $45 million for ingmements, upgrades, remodels and
relocations of existing stores; $23 million fortdigution and transportation-related capital
expenditures; and $16 million for new stores. Dgiine 2007 Successor period, we opened 170
new stores and remodeled or relocated 235 stoigisfiSant components of property and
equipment purchases in the 2007 Predecessor pedlodied the following approximate
amounts: $29 million for new stores; $15 milliom fmprovements, upgrades, remodels and
relocations of existing stores; and $7 million distribution and transportation-related capital
expenditures. During the 2007 Predecessor periedgpened 195 new stores and remodeled or
relocated 65 stores.

During the 2007 Successor period we purchaseduaestpromissory note for $37.0
million which represents debt issued by a thirdypantity from which we lease our distribution
center in Ardmore, Oklahoma. Purchases and salgisoof-term investments, which equaled net
sales of $17.6 million and $4.4 million in the resfive 2007 Successor and Predecessor pe
primarily reflect our investment activities in otaptive insurance subsidiary, and all purchases
of long-term investments were related to the capimsurance subsidiary.

Cash flows used in investing activities totalin@$2 million in 2006 were primarily
related to capital expenditures and, to a lessgre@e purchases of long-term investments.
Significant components of our property and equipnpemchases in 2006 included the following
approximate amounts: $66 million for distributiomdetransportatiomelated capital expenditur
(including approximately $30 million related to adistribution center in Marion, Indiana which
opened in 2006); $66 million for new stores; $5Wiar for a capital project designed to
improve inventory flow from our DCs to consumensg&38 million for capital projects in
existing stores. During 2006 we opened 537 nevestand remodeled or relocated 64 stores.

Purchases and sales of short-term investments0ié, 2thich equaled net sales of $1.9
million, reflect our investment activities in taxempt auction rate securities as well as inve:
activities of our captive insurance subsidiary.dhases of long-term investments are related to
the captive insurance subsidiary.

Capital expenditures during 2009 are projectecetintihe range of $250-275 million.
We anticipate funding 2009 capital requirementhwash flows from operations and our
revolving credit facility, if necessary. Signifidacomponents of the 2009 capital plan include
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growth initiatives including leasehold improvemeritstures and equipment for approximately
450 new stores; continued investment in our exgstitore base with plans for remodeling and
relocating approximately 400 stores; and additiomatstments in our supply chain and
information technology. We plan to undertake theggenditures in order to improve our
infrastructure and increase our cash generated dgarating activities.

Cash flows from financing activitiesln 2008, we repaid borrowings of $102.5 million
under our revolving credit facility and as of Jaryud0, 2009, we had no borrowings under the
revolving credit facility. Also during 2008, we n@ghased $44.1 million of our outstanding
senior subordinated notes.

In the 2007 Successor period, to finance the Mekgelissued long-term debt of
approximately $4.2 billion and issued common stiocthe amount of approximately $2.8 billi
(primarily relating to the cash equity contributsoinom the Investors); we incurred costs
associated with the issuance of Merger-related-tenm debt of $87.4 million; we completed a
cash tender offer for our 2010 Notes as discuskedea resulting in the valid tender of
approximately 99% of the 2010 Notes resulting pagegnents of long-term debt and related
consent fees in the amount of $215.6 million; araliired borrowings, net of repayments, under
our new asset-based revolving credit facility o@$5 million.

Cash flows used in financing activities during 20@8uded the repurchase of
approximately 4.5 million shares of the Predecéssmmmon stock at a total cost of $79.9
million, cash dividends paid of $62.5 million, d.80 per share, on the Predecessor’s
outstanding common stock, and $14.1 million to oedour outstanding capital lease and
financing obligations. These uses of cash wereghsroffset by proceeds from the exercise of
stock options during 2006 of $19.9 million.

The borrowings and repayments under the revolvieditagreements in 2008, the 2007
Successor period and 2006 were primarily a re$@ttivity associated with periodic cash
needs.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accardamith U.S. GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfidetraported amounts and related
disclosures. In addition to the estimates presklnédow, there are other items within our
financial statements that require estimation, lbeitreot deemed critical as defined below. We
believe these estimates are reasonable and apgiegtiowever, if actual experience differs
from the assumptions and other considerations wlkedgesulting changes could have a material
effect on the financial statements taken as a whole

Management believes the following policies andneates are critical because they
involve significant judgments, assumptions, andreges. Management has discussed the
development and selection of the critical accognésatimates with the Audit Committee of our
Board of Directors, and the Audit Committee hasewed the disclosures presented below
relating to those policies and estimates.
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Merchandise InventoriesMerchandise inventories are stated at the loweost or
market with cost determined using the retail lasfirst-out (“LIFO”) method. Under our retail
inventory method (“RIM”), the calculation of gropsofit and the resulting valuation of
inventories at cost are computed by applying autaled cost-to-retail inventory ratio to the
retail value of sales at a department level. THd Rlan averaging method that has been widely
used in the retail industry due to its practicalAyso, it is recognized that the use of the RIM
will result in valuing inventories at the lower @st or market (“LCM”) if markdowns are
currently taken as a reduction of the retail valtismventories.

Inherent in the RIM calculation are certain sigeafit management judgments and
estimates including, among others, initial markuparkdowns, and shrinkage, which
significantly impact the gross profit calculationwaell as the ending inventory valuation at cost.
These significant estimates, coupled with the tlaat the RIM is an averaging process, can,
under certain circumstances, produce distortedfigpses. Factors that can lead to distortion in
the calculation of the inventory balance include:

* applying the RIM to a group of products that is faatly uniform in terms of its cost
and selling price relationship and turnover,

» applying the RIM to transactions over a periodiwiet that include different rates
gross profit, such as those relating to seasonathmaadise;

* inaccurate estimates of inventory shrinkage betvtieemate of the last physic
inventory at a store and the financial statemet#;dand

e inaccurate estimates of LCM and/or LIFO reser

Factors that reduce potential distortion includeuke of historical experience in
estimating the shrink provision (see discussiomWwehnd recent improvements in the annual
LIFO analysis whereby all SKUs are considered aitfdex formulation. An actual valuation of
inventory under the LIFO method can be made onthhi@end of each year based on the
inventory levels and costs at that time. Accordmgiterim LIFO calculations are based on
management’s estimates of expected year-end inyeleteels, sales for the year and the
expected rate of inflation/deflation for the yeadare thus subject to adjustment in the final
year-end LIFO inventory valuation. We also perfanterim inventory-aging analysis for
determining obsolete inventory. Our policy is tatesrdown inventory to an LCM value basec
various management assumptions including estinrasédowns and sales required to liquic
such aged inventory in future periods. Inventorseiewed on a quarterly basis and adjusted as
appropriate to reflect write-downs determined tonbeessary.

Factors such as slower inventory turnover due &mghs in competitors’ tactics,
consumer preferences, consumer spending and unsdédsaveather patterns, among other
factors, could cause excess inventory requiringtgrehan estimated markdowns to entice
consumer purchases, resulting in an unfavorablaatngn our consolidated financial stateme
Sales shortfalls due to the above factors couldeaeduced purchases from vendors and
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associated vendor allowances that would also resalt unfavorable impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

We calculate our shrink provision based on actbgkjzal inventory results during the
fiscal period and an accrual for estimated shricduoring subsequent to a physical inventory
through the end of the fiscal reporting period.sTéccrual is calculated as a percentage of sales
at each retail store, at a department level, adeétsrmined by dividing the book-to-physical
inventory adjustments recorded during the previagdve months by the related sales for the
same period for each store. To the extent thatesuent physical inventories yield different
results than this estimated accrual, our effecthwénk rate for a given reporting period will
include the impact of adjusting the estimated tedolthe actual results. Although we perform
physical inventories in virtually all of our stores an annual basis, the same stores do not
necessarily get counted in the same reporting gefimm year to year, which could impact
comparability in a given reporting period.

Goodwill and Other Intangible AsseWe amortize intangible assets over their estim
useful lives unless such lives are deemed indefiffiimpairment indicators are noted,
amortizable intangible assets are tested for impait based on projected undiscounted cash
flows, and, if impaired, written down to fair valbased on either discounted projected cash
flows or appraised values. Future cash flow pragestare based on management’s projections.
Significant judgments required in this testing @s& may include projecting future cash flows,
determining appropriate discount rates and oth&rraptions. Projections are based on
management’s best estimates given recent finaperédrmance, market trends, strategic plans
and other available information. Changes in thasienates and assumptions could materially
affect the determination of fair value or impairrhdfuture indicators of impairment could re
in an asset impairment charge.

Under SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assewe are required to test
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite kvi@r impairment annually, or more frequently
if impairment indicators occur. The goodwill impaent test is a two-step process that requires
management to make judgments in determining wisatnagtions to use in the calculation. The
first step of the process consists of estimatimgféir value of our reporting unit based on
valuation techniques (including a discounted césii model using revenue and profit foreca
and comparing that estimated fair value with therded carrying value, which includes
goodwill. If the estimated fair value is less ththa carrying value, a second step is performed to
compute the amount of the impairment by determimingimplied fair value” of goodwill. The
determination of the “implied fair value” of goodimvould require us to allocate the estimated
fair value of our reporting unit to its assets &éabilities. Any unallocated fair value represents
the “implied fair value” of goodwill, which wouldebocompared to its corresponding carrying
value.

We performed our annual impairment tests of goddwaidl indefinite-lived intangible
assets during the third quarter of 2008 based aditons as of the end of our second quarter,
and subsequently reviewed such results as of th®@E2008. These analyses indicated that no
impairment was necessary. We are not currentlyeptinjg a decline in cash flows that could be
expected to have an adverse effect such as aigmlait debt covenants or future impairment
charges.
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Purchase Accounting.he Merger was accounted for as a reverse acaqusiti
accordance with the purchase accounting provissbi®-AS 141, “Business Combinations,”
under which our assets and liabilities have beenwatted for at their estimated fair values as of
the date of the Merger. The aggregate purchase was allocated to the tangible and intangible
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, basedaipassessment of their relative fair values as
of the date of the Merger. These estimates ofvilires, the allocation of the purchase price and
other factors related to the accounting for thedéeiare subject to significant judgments anc
use of estimates.

Property and EquipmentProperty and equipment are recorded at cost. Mlggour
assets into relatively homogeneous classes andaijgnerovide for depreciation on a straight-
line basis over the estimated average useful filsaoh asset class, except for leasehold
improvements, which are amortized over the lesktdrenapplicable lease term or the estimated
useful life of the asset. Certain store and warsbadixtures, when fully depreciated, are
removed from the cost and related accumulated digien and amortization accounts. The
valuation and classification of these assets aacs#isignment of useful depreciable lives
involves significant judgments and the use of estes.

Impairment of Long-lived Assetdle review the carrying value of all long-lived asse
for impairment at least annually, and whenever tssenchanges in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of an asset may not be recoleriabaccordance with SFAS 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Lohgred Assets,” we review for impairment
stores open for approximately two years or moremiaich recent cash flows from operations
negative. Impairment results when the carrying @atithe assets exceeds the estimated
undiscounted future cash flows over the life ofleese. Our estimate of undiscounted future
cash flows over the lease term is based upon ldataperations of the stores and estimates of
future store profitability which encompasses maagtdrs that are subject to variability and are
difficult to predict. If a long-lived asset is fodro be impaired, the amount recognized for
impairment is equal to the difference between #dreying value and the asset’s estimated fair
value. The fair value is estimated based primandgn future cash flows (discounted at our
credit adjusted risk-free rate) or other reasonabtenates of fair market value in accordance
with U.S. GAAP.

We recorded impairment charges included in SG&Aemse of approximately $4.0
million in 2008, $0.2 million in the 2007 Predecasperiod and $9.4 million in 2006 to reduce
the carrying value of certain of our stores’ asastdleemed necessary based on our evaluation
that such amounts would not be recoverable, priyndue to insufficient sales or excessive ¢
resulting in negative current and projected futtash flows at these locations. Such assets, to
the extent still functional, are held for use ihatstore locations. The majority of the 2006
charges were recorded pursuant to certain strat@gatives discussed above.

Insurance Liabilities We retain a significant portion of the risk farravorkers’
compensation, employee health insurance, genakality, property loss and automobile
coverage. These costs are significant primarilytduée large employee base and number of
stores. At the date of the Merger the liability Yoorkers’compensation and general liability v
discounted in accordance with purchase accountarglards. Subsequent to the Merger,
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provisions are made to these insurance liabildiesin undiscounted basis based on actual claim
data and estimates of incurred but not reportedislaeveloped using actuarial methodologies
based on historical claim trends. If future clarents deviate from recent historical patterns, we
may be required to record additional expenses pemrse reductions, which could be material to
our future financial results.

Contingent Liabilities — Income Taxdscome tax reserves are determined using the
methodology established by the Financial Accoun8tendards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation
48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes —lAterpretation of FASB Statement 109
(“FIN 48”"). FIN 48, which we adopted on February2B07, requires companies to assess each
income tax position taken using a two step procésdetermination is first made as to whether
it is more likely than not that the position wik Isustained, based upon the technical merits,
upon examination by the taxing authorities. If te position is expected to meet the more
likely than not criteria, the benefit recorded floe tax position equals the largest amount that is
greater than 50% likely to be realized upon ultersgttlement of the respective tax position.
Uncertain tax positions require determinations @stimated liabilities to be made based on
provisions of the tax law which may be subjecthiamge or varying interpretation. If our
determinations and estimates prove to be inacqgutraeesulting adjustments could be material
to our future financial results.

Contingent Liabilities - Legal MattersWe are subject to legal, regulatory and other
proceedings and claims. We establish liabilitiea@zropriate for these claims and proceedings
based upon the probability and estimability of éssand to fairly present, in conjunction with
the disclosures of these matters in our finan¢&ksents and SEC filings, management’s view
of our exposure. We review outstanding claims andgredings with external counsel to assess
probability and estimates of loss. We re-evalulagse assessments on a quarterly basis or as
new and significant information becomes availablddétermine whether a liability should be
established or if any existing liability should dgjusted. The actual cost of resolving a claim or
proceeding ultimately may be substantially différgran the amount of the recorded liability. In
addition, because it is not permissible under GBSAP to establish a litigation liability until t
loss is both probable and estimable, in some dases may be insufficient time to establish a
liability prior to the actual incurrence of the $o&ipon verdict and judgment at trial, for exan
or in the case of a quickly negotiated settleme3dle Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Lease Accounting and Excess Faciliti@he majority of our stores are subject to short-
term leases (usually with initial or current terais3 to 5 years) with multiple renewal options
when available. We also have stores subject tallia#suit arrangements with landlords, which
typically carry a primary lease term of 10 yearthwnultiple renewal options. Approximately
42% of our stores have provisions for contingentais based upon a percentage of defined
sales volume. We recognize contingent rental expeen the achievement of specified sales
targets is considered probable. We recognize reydrese over the term of the lease. We record
minimum rental expense on a straight-line basis twebase, non-cancelable lease term
commencing on the date that we take physical psgsesf the property from the landlord,
which normally includes a period prior to store 0ijpg to make necessary leasehold
improvements and install store fixtures. When adezontains a predetermined fixed escalation
of the minimum rent, we recognize the related expense on a straight-line basis and record
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the difference between the recognized rental expand the amounts payable under the lease as
deferred rent. Tenant allowances, to the extemived, are recorded as deferred incentive rent
and amortized as a reduction to rent expense bedetm of the lease. We reflect as a liability
any difference between the calculated expensehendmounts actually paid. Improvements of
leased properties are amortized over the shortigredife of the applicable lease term or the
estimated useful life of the asset.

For store closures (excluding those associatedaMitisiness combination) where a l¢
obligation still exists, we record the estimatetlifa liability associated with the rental
obligation on the date the store is closed in atmoce with SFAS 146, “Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” Based an overall analysis of store performance
and expected trends, management periodically etealdle need to close underperforming
stores. Liabilities are established at the pointlo$ure for the present value of any remaining
operating lease obligations, net of estimated sigigléncome, and at the communication date for
severance and other exit costs, as prescribed A 3B6. Key assumptions in calculating the
liability include the timeframe expected to termabease agreements, estimates related to the
sublease potential of closed locations, and estmaif other related exit costs. If actual timing
and potential termination costs or realizationudflease income differ from our estimates, the
resulting liabilities could vary from recorded amtsi These liabilities are reviewed periodic:i
and adjusted when necessary.

Share-Based Payment®ur shardzased stock option awards are valued on an inca
grant basis using the Black-SchoMsfton closed form option pricing model. The apgiion of
this valuation model involves assumptions thatadgmental and highly sensitive in the
valuation of stock options, which affects compeiosaexpense related to these options. These
assumptions include an estimate of the fair vafuio common stock (as our stock is not
publicly traded), the term that the options areest@d to be outstanding, an estimate of the
volatility of our stock price (which is based opeer group of publicly traded companies),
applicable interest rates and the dividend yieldwfstock. Other factors involving judgments
that affect the expensing of share-based paymeciisde estimated forfeiture rates of share-
based awards. If our estimates differ materialiyrfractual experience, we may be required to
record additional expense or reductions of expemk&h could be material to our future
financial results.

Fair Value Measurement8/e measure fair value of financial assets andliigdsi in
accordance with SFAS 157, which requires thataiues be determined based on the
assumptions that market participants would useiging the asset or liability. SFAS 157
establishes a fair value hierarchy that distingesshbetween market participant assumptions
based on market data obtained from sources indepéonéithe reporting entity (observable
inputs that are classified within Levels 1 and 2h&f hierarchy) and the reporting entity’s own
assumptions about market participant assumptiamsb@ervable inputs classified within Leve
of the hierarchy). Therefore, Level 3 inputs a@dglly based on an entity’s own assumptions,
as there is little, if any, related market actiyiyd thus requires the use of significant judgment
and estimates.

Our fair value measurements are primarily assottiadén our derivative financial
instruments and to a lesser degree our mutualfioidings. The values of our derivative
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financial instruments are determined using widelgepted valuation techniques, including
discounted cash flow analysis on the expected tasfs of each derivative. This analysis
reflects the contractual terms of the derivativesluding the period to maturity, and uses
observable market-based inputs, including intemstcurves. The fair values of interest rate
swaps are determined using the market standarcoa@tigy of netting the discounted future
fixed cash payments (or receipts) and the discouexeected variable cash receipts (or
payments). The variable cash receipts (or paymantsbased on an expectation of future
interest rates (forward curves) derived from obably market interest rate curves.

Derivative Financial Instrument&Ve account for derivative instruments in accordance
with SFAS 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instrunterand Hedging Activities”, as amended
and interpreted. SFAS 133 establishes accountidgeporting standards for derivative
instruments, including certain derivative instrunseembedded in other contracts (collectively
referred to as derivatives), and for hedging aibtisi SFAS 133 requires that every derivative
instrument be recorded in the balance sheet aargithasset or liability measured at its fair
value, and that changes in the derivative’s faluede recognized currently in earnings unless
specific hedge accounting criteria are met. Seér‘¥alue Measurements” above for a
discussion of derivative valuations. Special aotiog for qualifying hedges allows a
derivative’s gains and losses to either offset related resualtee hedged item in the statemer
operations or be accumulated in other comprehemsdaene, and requires that a company
formally document, designate, and assess the p#@etss of transactions that receive hedge
accounting. We use derivative instruments to maagexposure to changing interest rates,
primarily with interest rate swaps.

In addition to making valuation estimates, we dlsar the risk that certain derivative
instruments that have been designated as hedgesigrdtly meet the strict hedge accounting
requirements of SFAS 133 may not qualify in theifatas “highly effective,as defined, as we
as the risk that hedged transactions in cash fledgimg relationships may no longer be
considered probable to occur. Further, new intéaicns and guidance related to SFAS No.
may be issued in the future, and we cannot préagcpossible impact that such guidance may
have on our use of derivative instruments goingvérd.

Adoption of Accounting Standards

In May 2008, the FASB issued Statement of Finarstalounting Standards (“SFAS”)
No. 162,“The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accountingriéiples.”SFAS 162 identifies tf
sources of accounting principles and the frameviariselecting the principles used in the
preparation of financial statements of nongoverraieantities that are presented in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAPthe United States (the GAAP
hierarchy). SFAS 162 became effective in Noveml®®82 The adoption of this standard did
have a material impact on our financial statements.

On February 2, 2008, we adopted components of MAI 57, “Fair Value
Measurements”. We have not adopted SFAS 157 fdiimancial assets and liabilities. SFAS
157 defines fair value, establishes a frameworkrfeasuring fair value, and expands disclos
about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 appliespiarted balances that are required or
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permitted to be measured at fair value under exjsiccounting pronouncements. Accordingly,
the standard does not require any new fair valugsomements of reported balances.

We adopted the provisions of FIN 48 effective FelylB8, 2007. The adoption resulted
in an $8.9 million decrease in retained earningbareclassification of certain amounts betw
deferred income taxes and other noncurrent ligdslito conform to the balance sheet
presentation requirements of FIN 48. As of the ddt&doption, the total reserve for uncertain
tax benefits was $77.9 million. This reserve exelithe federal income tax benefit for the
uncertain tax positions related to state incomedaxhich is now included in deferred tax as
As a result of the adoption of FIN 48, the resdoranterest expense related to income taxes
was increased to $15.3 million and a reserve foeng@l penalties of $1.9 million related to
uncertain income tax positions was recorded. Ai®fdate of adoption, approximately $27.1
million of the reserve for uncertain tax positiamsuld have impacted our effective income tax
rate subsequently if we were to recognize the &mebt for these positions.

Subsequent to the adoption of FIN 48, we electeddord income tax related interest
and penalties as a component of the provisiomfmome tax expense.

Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2008, the FASB issued Statement of Firerfatcounting Standards (“SFAB”
No. 161,“Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedd\ctivities”, an amendment of
FASB Statement 133. SFAS 161 applies to all dexigahstruments and nonderivative
instruments that are designated and qualify asihgdgstruments pursuant to paragraphs 37
42 of SFAS 133 and related hedged items accountacthtler SFAS 133. SFAS 161 requires
entities to provide greater transparency throughtadal disclosures about how and why an
entity uses derivative instruments, how derivainstruments and related hedged items are
accounted for under SFAS 133 and its related ind¢aions, and how derivative instruments
and related hedged items affect an entity’s finr@nmosition, results of operations, and cash
flows. SFAS 161 is effective as of the beginningofentity’s first fiscal year that begins after
November 15, 2008. We plan to adopt SFAS 161 duthe first quarter of our 2009 fiscal ye
and its impact is expected to be limited to theitamthl disclosures discussed above.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 14TfRjsiness Combinations”. The
new standard establishes the requirements for Imo&cquirer recognizes and measures in its
financial statements the identifiable assets aedyihe liabilities assumed, and any non-
controlling interest (formerly minority interest) an acquiree; provides updated requirements
for recognition and measurement of goodwill acqiiirethe business combination or a gain
from a bargain purchase; and provides updatedadisd requirements to enable users of
financial statements to evaluate the nature arahéial effects of the business combination.
Statement applies prospectively to business cortibimsafor which the acquisition date is on or
after the beginning of the first annual reportiregipd beginning on or after December 15, 2008.
Early adoption is not allowed. Unless a qualifytransaction is consummated subsequent t
effective date, the adoption of this standard anfisancial statements is expected to be limited
to any future Merger-related adjustments to unaettx positions that would, if subsequently
recognized, impact our results of operations ratthan goodwill.
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In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, Vaue Measurements.” SFAS 157
provides guidance for using fair value to measgsets and liabilities. The standard also
requires expanded information about the extenthhvcompanies measure assets and liab
at fair value, the information used to measurevalue, and the effect of fair value
measurements on earnings. SFAS 157 is effectivierfancial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007, and interimgusiwithin those fiscal years. For non-
financial assets and liabilities, the effectiveediads been delayed to fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2008. We currently expect to adopttrmponents of SFAS 157 relating
nonfinancial assets and liabilities during 2009. &ve in the process of evaluating the potential
impact of this standard on our consolidated finalnstiatements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT
MARKET RISK

Financial Risk Management

We are exposed to market risk primarily from adgezisanges in interest rates, and to a
lesser degree commodity prices. To minimize ttsk, nive may periodically use financial
instruments, including derivatives. As a mattepolicy, we do not buy or sell financial
instruments for speculative or trading purposesahderivative financial instrument
transactions must be authorized and executed mursuapproval by the Board of Directors.
financial instrument positions taken by us arendt to be used to reduce risk by hedging an
underlying economic exposure. Because of high droe between the derivative financial
instrument and the underlying exposure being hedtiertuations in the value of the financial
instruments are generally offset by reciprocal gesnn the value of the underlying economic
exposure.

Interest Rate Risk

We manage our interest rate risk through the gfiatese of fixed and variable interest
rate debt and, from time to time, derivative fin@ahestruments. Our principal interest rate
exposure relates to outstanding amounts under aditd-acilities. Our Credit Facilities provi
for variable rate borrowings of up to $3.425 biflimcluding availability of $1.125 billion under
our senior secured asset-based revolving credittyasubject to the borrowing base. In order
to mitigate a portion of the variable rate intergbosure under the Credit Facilities, we entered
into interest rate swaps which became effectivduy 31, 2007. Pursuant to the swaps, we
swapped three month LIBOR rates for fixed interasts, resulting in the payment of an all-in
fixed rate of 7.68% on an original notional amoof$2.0 billion originally scheduled to
amortize on a quarterly basis until maturity ay R4, 2012.

On October 3, 2008, a counterparty to one of o07ZWwap agreements declared
bankruptcy, which constituted a technical defantier this contract and on October 30, 2008,
we terminated this swap agreement. We subsequeasly settled the swap on November 10,
2008 for approximately $7.6 million, including inést accrued to the date of termination. As of
January 30, 2009, the notional amount under thairgng 2007 swaps is $866.7 million.
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Effective February 28, 2008, we entered into a $35dillion step-down interest rate
swap in order to mitigate an additional portioriteé variable rate interest exposure under the
Credit Facilities. Under the terms of this agreenves swapped one month LIBOR rates for
fixed interest rates, which will result in the pagmh of a fixed rate of 5.58% on a notional
amount of $350.0 million for the first year and $1®million for the second year.

Effective December 31, 2008, we entered into a $ibllion interest rate swap in orc
to mitigate an additional portion of the variabdgerinterest exposure under the Credit Facilities.
This swap is scheduled to mature on January 313.20dder the terms of this agreement we
swapped one month LIBOR rates for fixed interesggawhich will result in the payment of a
fixed rate of 5.06% on a notional amount of $47#&iion through April 2010, $400.0 million
from May 2010 to October 2011, and $300.0 millionrtaturity.

A change in interest rates on variable rate deptots our pre-tax earnings and cash
flows; whereas a change in interest rates on fiagégldebt impacts the economic fair value of
debt but not our pre-tax earnings and cash flo@sr interest rate swaps qualify for hedge
accounting as cash flow hedges. Therefore, changearket fluctuations related to the
effective portion of these cash flow hedges doimgiact our pre-tax earnings until the accrued
interest is recognized on the derivatives and fisecated hedged debt. Based on our
outstanding debt as of January 30, 2009 and asgutimat our mix of debt instruments,
derivative instruments and other variables remfagnsame, the annualized effect of a one
percentage point change in variable interest nategdd have a pretax impact on our earnings
and cash flows of approximately $6.2 million.

The interest rate swaps are accounted for in aaocelwith SFAS No. 133 “Accounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitiegs amended and interpreted (collectively,
“SFAS 133”). SFAS 133 establishes accounting apanting standards for derivative
instruments and hedging activities. SFAS 133 rexguinat all derivatives be recognized as e
assets or liabilities at fair value.

The conditions and uncertainties in the global itn@@rkets have substantially increased
the credit risk of other counterparties to our s\agpeements. In the event such counterparties
fail to perform under our swap agreements and weinable to enter into new swap agreements
on terms favorable to us, our ability to effectivelanage our interest rate risk may be mate|
impaired. We attempt to manage counterparty creskitoy periodically evaluating the financial
position and creditworthiness of such counterpsrtieonitoring the amount for which we are at
risk with each counterparty, and where possibkpelising the risk among multiple
counterparties. There can be no assurance thailiveanage or mitigate our counterparty
credit risk effectively.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Dollar General Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Dollar General
Corporation and subsidiaries as of January 30, 2808cessor) and February 1, 2008
(Successor), and the related consolidated statsméoperations, shareholders' equity, and
flows for the year ended January 30, 2009 (Succggke periods from March 6, 2007 to
February 1, 2008 (Successor) and from Februar@@7 2o July 6, 2007 (Predecessor), and the
year ended February 2, 2007 (Predecessor). Thesecfal statements are the responsibility of
the Company's management. Our responsibility exfmess an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Thdaedards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abouherite financial statements are free of
material misstatement. We were not engaged to perém audit of the Company's internal
control over financial reporting. Our audits inchablconsideration of internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing apditedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgssmopinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control over financial reportimgccordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes examining, on a test basiglence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessagccounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating #gralbfinancial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable bassur opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@dlbove present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position old@dseneral Corporation and subsidiaries at
January 30, 2009 (Successor) and February 1, Z@&éssor), and the consolidated results of
their operations and their cash flows for the yaaded January 30, 2009 (Successor), the p¢
from March 6, 2007 to February 1, 2008 (Successod)from February 3, 2007 to July 6, 2007
(Predecessor), and the year ended February 2,(Bd8decessor), in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Notes 1 and 5 to the consolidatesh€ial statements, effective Febru
3, 2007, the Company changed its method of acaogifibir uncertain tax positions in
connection with the adoption of FASB Interpretatido. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes”.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Nashville, Tennesse
March 24, 2009
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands except per share amounts)

Successor
January 30, February 1,
2009 2008

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 377,995 $ 100,209

Short-term investments - 19,611

Merchandise inventories 1,414,955 1,288,661

Income taxes receivable 6,392 32,501

Deferred income taxes 4,600 17,297

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 66,183 59,465

Total current assets 1,870,125 1,517,744
Net property and equipment 1,268,960 1,274,245
Goodwill 4,338,589 4,344,930
Intangible assets, net 1,325,558 1,370,557
Other assets, net 85,967 148,955
Total assets $ 8,889,199 $ 8,656,431
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term obligations $ 14,158 $ 3,246

Accounts payable 678,421 551,040

Accrued expenses and other 375,045 300,956

Income taxes payable 7,611 2,999

Total current liabilities 1,075,235 858,241
Long-term obligations 4,122,956 4,278,756
Deferred income taxes 556,101 486,725
Other liabilities 289,288 319,714
Commitments and contingencies
Redeemable common stock 13,924 9,122
Shareholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, 1,000,000 shares authorized -

Common stock; $0.50 par value, 1,000,000 shardmenéd,

556,228 and 555,482 shares issued and outstanding a
January 30, 2009 and February 1, 2008, respectively 278,114 277,741

Additional paid-in capital 2,489,647 2,480,062

Retained earnings (Accumulated deficit) 103,364 (4,818

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (39,430 (49,112

Total shareholders’ equity 2,831,695 2,703,873
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 8,889,199 $ 8,656,431

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofcivesolidated financial statements.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands)

Successor Predecessor
March 6, 2007 February 3,
For the year through 2007 For the year
ended February 1, through ended
January 30, 2009 2008 (a) July 6, 2007 February 2, 2007
Net sales $ 10,457,66¢ $ 5571,493 $ 3,923,753 $ 9,169,822
Cost of goods sold 7,396,571 3,999,599 2,852,178 6,801,617
Gross profit 3,061,097 1,571,894 1,071,575 2,368,205
Selling, general and
administrative 2,448,611 1,324,508 960,930 2,119,929
Litigation settlement and related
costs, net 32,000 - - -
Transaction and related costs - 1,242 101,397 -
Operating profit 580,486 246,144 9,248 248,276
Interest income (3,061 (3,799 (5,046, (7,002
Interest expense 391,932 252,897 10,299 34,915
Other (income) expense (2,788 3,639 - -
Income (loss) before income
taxes 194,403 (6,593 3,995 220,363
Income tax expense (benefit) 86,221 (1,775 11,993 82,420
Net income (loss) $ 108,182 % (4,818 % (7,998 $ 137,943

(a) Includes the results of operations of Buck AcgigsitCorp. for the period prior to its Merger withdaintc
Dollar General Corporation from March 6, 2007 f@smation) through July 6, 2007 (reflecting the e ir
fair value of interest rate swaps), and the pdetger results of Dollar General Corporation foe fyeriod fron
July 7, 2007 through February 1, 2008. See Notasdl2.

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofcivesolidated financial statements.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS'’ EQUITY

(In thousands except per share amounts)

Retained Accumulated

Common Additional Earnings Other Other
Stock  Common Paid-in  (Accumulated Comprehensive Shareholders’
Shares Stock Capital Deficit) Loss Equity Total
Predecessor Balances, February 3, ¢ 315,679 $157,840 $ 462,383  $1,106,165 % (794 % (4,799 $1,720,79:
Comprehensive income:
Net income - - - 137,943 - - 137,943
Reclassification of net loss on
derivatives - - - - 188 - 188
Comprehensive income 138,131
Cash dividends, $0.20 per common
share - - - (62,472, - - (62,472
Issuance of common stock under stock
incentive plans 1,573 786 19,108 - - - 19,894
Tax benefit from share-based payments - - 2,513 - - - 2,513
Repurchases of common stock (4,483, (2,242, - (77,705, - - (79,947
Reversal of unearned compensation
upon adoption of SFAS 123(R) (see
Note 10) (364) (182) (4,997, - - 5,179 -
Share-based compensation expense - - 7,578 - - - 7,578
Vesting of restricted stock and
restricted stock units 149 75 (75) - - - -
Transition adjustment upon adoption of
SFAS 158 - - - - (381) - (381)
Other equity transactions (118) (59) (365) 20 - 40 (364)
Predecessor Balances, February 2, i 312,436 $ 156,218 $ 486,145 $1,103,951 % 987 $ 42C $1,745,747
Adoption of FIN 48 - - - (8,917, - - (8,917)
Predecessor Balances as adjusted,
February 2, 2007 312,436 156,218 486,145 1,095,034 (987) 420 1,736,830
Comprehensive income:
Net loss - - - (7,998; - - (7,998)
Reclassification of net loss on
derivatives - - - - 76 - 76
Comprehensive loss - - - - - - (7,922)
Cash dividends, $0.05 per common
share - - - (15,710 - - (15,710
Issuance of common stock under stock
incentive plans 2,496 1,248 40,294 - - - 41,542
Tax benefit from stock option exercises - - 3,927 - - - 3,927
Share-based compensation expense - - 45,458 - - - 45,458
Vesting of restricted stock and
restricted stock units 126 63 (63) - - - -
Other equity transactions (28) (13) (580) (48) - 7 (634)
Elimination of Predecessor equity in
connection with Merger (see Notes 1
and 2) (315,030 (157,516 (575,181 (1,071,278 911 (427) (1,803,491
Predecessor Balances subsequent to
Merger - $ - 8 - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Successor capital contribution, net 554,035 $277,018 $2,476,95¢ $ -3 -3 - $2,753,97€
Comprehensive loss:
Net loss - - - (4,818; - - (4,818)
Unrealized net loss on hedged .
transactions - - - - (49,112, - (49,112
Comprehensive loss (53,930
Issuance of common stock under stock
incentive plans 574 287 (287) - - - -
Issuance of restricted common stock
under stock incentive plans 890 445 (445) - - - -
Repurchases of common stock a7 9) 9 - - - -
Share-based compensation expense - - 3,827 - - - 3,827
Successor Balances, February 1, 2008555,482  $277,741 $2,480,062 $ (4,818 $ (49,112 $ - $2,703,872
Comprehensive income:
Net income - - - 108,182 - - 108,182

Unrealized net gain on hedged



transactions - - -

9,682

- 9,682
Comprehensive income 117,864
Issuance of common stock under stock
incentive plans 846 423 (423) - - -
Repurchases of common stock (100) (50) 50 - - -
Share-based compensation expense - - 9,958 - - 9,958
Successor Balances, January 30, 2009656,228 $278,114 $2,489,647 $ 103,364 $ (39,430 $ $2,831,69E

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofctiesolidated financial statements.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Successor Predecessor
For the year March 6, 2007 February 3, For the year
ended through 2007 ended
January 30, February 1, through February 2,
2009 2008 (a) July 6, 2007 2007
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) $ 108,182 $ 4,818 3% (7,998 137,943
Adjustments to reconcile net income
(loss) to net cash provided by operat
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 247,899 150,213 83,917 200,608
Deferred income taxes 73,434 19,551 (20,874 (38,218
Tax benefit of stock options (950) - (3,927, (2,513
Noncash inventory adjustments and
asset impairments 50,671 6,113 - 76,599
Noncash share-based compensation 9,958 3,827 45,433 7,578
Other noncash gains and losses 2,434 5,525 5,098 5,820
Change in operating assets and
liabilities:
Merchandise inventories (173,014 73,356 16,424 (26,541
Prepaid expenses and other current
assets (598) 3,739 (6,184 (5,411
Accounts payable 140,356 (41,395 34,794 53,544
Accrued expenses and other
liabilities 68,736 16,061 52,995 38,353
Income taxes 33,986 7,348 2,809 (35,165
Other 14,084 84 (541) (7,240
Net cash provided by operating activities 575,178 239,604 201,946 405,357
Cash flows from investing activities:
Merger, net of cash acquired - (6,738,391 - -
Purchases of property and equipment (205,546 (83,641 (56,153 (261,515
Purchases of short-term investments (9,903 (3,800 (5,100, (49,675
Sales of short-term investments 61,547 21,445 9,505 51,525
Purchases of long-term investments - (7,473 (15,754 (25,756
Purchase of promissory notes (37,047 - -
Sale and insurance proceeds related to
property and equipment 1,266 533 620 3,457
Net cash used in investing activities (152,636 (6,848,374 (66,882 (281,964
Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of common stock 4,228 2,759,540 - -
Net borrowings (repayments) under
revolving credit facility (102,500 102,500 - -
Issuance of long-term obligations - 4,176,817 - -
Repayments of long-term obligations (44,425 (241,945 (4,500 (14,118
Debt issuance costs - (87,392 - (584)
Payment of cash dividends - - (15,710 (62,472
Exercises (repurchases) of stock options (2,511 - 41,546 19,894
Repurchases of common stock (498) (541) - (79,947
Tax benefit of stock options 950 - 3,927 2,513
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities (144,756 6,708,979 25,263 (134,714
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 277,786 100,209 160,327 (11,321
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of
period 100,209 - 189,288 200,609
Cash and cash equivalents, end of perfbd 377,995  $ 100,209 $ 349,615 189,288
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Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid (received) for:

Interest $ 377,022 3 226,738 $ 11,246 $ 24,180
Income taxes $ 7,091 $ (30,574 $ 26,012 $ 155,825
Supplemental schedule of noncash

investing and financing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment

awaiting processing for payment,

included in Accounts payable $ 7474  $ 20,449 $ 13544 $ 18,094
Purchases of property and equipment

under capital lease obligations $ 3,806 % 592 $ 1,036 % 5,366
Expiration of equity repurchase rights $ 2,548  $ - $ - $ -
Exchange of shares and stock options in

business combination $ - $ 7,685 $ - $ -
Elimination of financing obligations (See -

Note 8) $ - $ $ - $ 46,608
Elimination of promissory notes

receivable (See Note 8) $ - $ - $ - $ 46,608

(a) Includes the cash flows of Buck Acquisition Corpr the period prior to its Merger with and into o
General Corporation from March 6, 2007 (its formajithrough July 6, 2007 (which were zero), andpbst-
Merger results of Dollar General Corporation foe theriod from July 7, 2007 through February 1, 2088

Notes 1 and 2.

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofcivesolidated financial statements.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Basis of presentation and accounting policie
Basis of presentation

These notes contain references to the years 2@D8Q06, which represent fiscal years
ended January 30, 2009 and February 2, 2007, tagggceach of which were 52-week
accounting periods. The Company completed a mérgesaction on July 6, 2007 and therefore
the 2007 presentation includes separate presantdtihe periods before and after the merger.
The Company'’s fiscal year ends on the Friday clase3anuary 31. The consolidated financial
statements include all subsidiaries of the Compargept for its not-for-profit subsidiary which
the Company does not control. Intercompany trarmachave been eliminated.

Dollar General Corporation (the “Company”) was doegion July 6, 2007 through a
Merger (as defined and discussed in greater daethibte 2 below) accounted for as a reverse
acquisition. Although the Company continued assdr@e legal entity after the Merger, the
accompanying consolidated financial statementpaasented for the “Predecessor” and
“Successor” relating to the periods preceding arateseding the Merger, respectively. As a
result of the Company applying purchase accourgimba new basis of accounting beginnin
July 7, 2007, the financial reporting periods preéed are as follows:

* The 2008 presentation reflects the Succe:

* The 2007 periods presented include the Predecpssod of the Compan
reflecting 22 weeks of operating results from Faby8, 2007 to July 6, 2007 and 30
weeks of operating results for the Successor peraflécting the Merger of the
Company and Buck Acquisition Corp. (“Buck”) fromlya, 2007 to February 1,
2008.

* Buck's results of operations for the period from MarcR@7 to July 6, 2007 (pric
to the Merger on July 6, 2007) are also includetheconsolidated financial
statements for the Successor period described asoaeaesult of certain derivative
financial instruments entered into by Buck priottie Merger, as further described
below. Other than these financial instruments,kBuad no assets, liabilities, or
operations prior to the Merger.

* The 2006 presentation reflects the Predecessor.

The consolidated financial statements for the Rreskor periods have been prepared
using the Company’s historical basis of accountiAg.a result of purchase accounting, the pre-
Merger and post-Merger consolidated financial sta&tats are not comparable.

The Company leases three of its distribution cent&Cs”) from lessors, which meet
the definition of a Variable Interest Entity (“VIE&s described by Financial Accounting
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Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation 46, “Condation of Variable Interest Entities” FIN
46"), as revised. One of these DCs has been reg@sla financing obligation whereby the
property and equipment are reflected in the codatéd balance sheets. The land and buildings
of the other two DCs have been recorded as opgreases in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) 13, “Accting for Leases.” The Company is not

the primary beneficiary of these VIEs and, accagljinhas not included these entities in its
consolidated financial statements.

Business description

The Company sells general merchandise on a retsis$ through 8,362 stores (as of
January 30, 2009) in 35 states covering most o$tluithern, southwestern, midwestern and
eastern United States. The Company has DCs insSitlat, Kentucky; Ardmore, Oklahoma,;
South Boston, Virginia; Indianola, Mississippi; Enr, Missouri; Alachua, Florida; Zanesville,
Ohio; Jonesville, South Carolina and Marion, Indian

The Company purchases its merchandise from a vadety of suppliers. Approximate
10% of the Company’s purchases in 2008 were maxhe Trhe Procter & Gamble Company.
The Company’s next largest supplier accounted gpraimately 6% of the Company’s
purchases in 2008.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquigstmnents with insignificant interest
rate risk and original maturities of three monthéess when purchased. Such investments
primarily consist of money market funds, certifesibf deposit (which may include foreign ti
deposits), and commercial paper. The carrying amsoof these items are a reasonable estimate
of their fair value due to the short maturity oése investments. The Company held foreign
deposits of $0 and $5.2 million as of January 8®2and February 1, 2008, respectively.

Payments due from banks for third-party credit cdabit card and electronic benefit
transactions classified as cash and cash equisaiaialed approximately $16.2 million and
$13.9 million at January 30, 2009 and February0D82 respectively.

The Company’s cash management system providesiigridvestment of available
balances and the funding of outstanding checks whesented for payment. Outstanding but
unpresented checks totaling approximately $127Ikomiand $107.9 million at January 30,
2009 and February 1, 2008, respectively, have rexunded in Accounts payable in the
consolidated balance sheets. Upon presentatiguafgnent, these checks are funded through
available cash balances or the Company'’s credlitfes.

The Company has certain cash and cash equivalalaisdes that are being held in
accordance with certain insurance-related regutagquirements which could limit the
Company’s ability to use these assets for generglocate purposes, as further described below
under “Investments in debt and equity securities.”

68




Investments in debt and equity securities

The Company accounts for its investment in debtraatketable equity securities in
accordance with SFAS 115, “Accounting for Certaimdstments in Debt and Equity Securities,”
and accordingly, classifies them as held-to-matuatailable-for-sale, or trading. Debt
securities categorized as helda@turity are stated at amortized cost. Debt anatyegecurities
categorized as available-feele are stated at fair value, with any unrealgads and losses, r
of deferred income taxes, reported as a comporiektaumulated other comprehensive loss.
Trading securities (primarily mutual funds heldsuant to deferred compensation and
supplemental retirement plans, as further discussBlibte 9) are stated at fair value, with
changes in fair value recorded in income as a commoof Selling, general and administrative
(“SG&A”) expense.

In general, the Company invests excess cash ieskaaited, highly liquid investments
such as money market funds, certificates of depasd commercial paper. Such securities |
been classified either as held-to-maturity or aldd-for-sale, depending on the type of
securities purchased (debt versus equity) as welhe@Company’s intentions with respect to the
potential sale of such securities before theiestabaturity dates. Given the short maturities of
such investments (except for those securities texti further detail below), the carrying
amounts approximate the fair values of such seesirit

In years prior to 2007, the Company invested irgg@mpt auction rate securities, wh
are debt instruments having longer-dated (in soamses; many years) legal maturities, but with
interest rates that are generally reset every 28a$5 under an auction system. There were no
such investments outstanding as of January 30, @80B8bruary 1, 2008.

In 2008 and 2007, the Company’s South Carolinaddasg®lly owned captive insurance
subsidiary, Ashley River Insurance Company (“ARIGad investments in U.S. Government
securities, obligations of Government Sponsore@fpnises, short- and long-term corporate
obligations, and asset-backed obligations. Thegssiments were held pursuant to South
Carolina regulatory requirements to maintain carteset balances in relation to AR$diability
and equity balances which could limit the Comparadgity to use these assets for general
corporate purposes. In May 2008, the state of SGatblina made certain changes to these
regulatory requirements, which had the effect dugeng the amounts and types of investments
required to be held. As a result of these charthesCompany reclassified certain investments
held by ARIC from held-to-maturity to available-fsale, and ARIC subsequently liquidated
investments (primarily U.S. Government and corpocbt securities) totaling $48.6 million
during 2008. At January 30, 2009, the asset batanelel pursuant to these regulatory
requirements equaled $20.0 million and were redi@at the Company’s consolidated balance
sheet as cash and cash equivalents.

Historical cost information pertaining to investrteem mutual funds by participants in
the Company’s supplemental retirement and compemsdéferral plans classified as trading
securities is not readily available to the Company.

69




On January 30, 2009 and February 1, 2008, heldatuHity, available-for-sale and
trading securities consisted of the following (i@asands):

Successor Gross Unrealized Estimated
January 30, 2009 Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Held-to-maturity securities
Other debt securities (see Note 8) $ 31,38¢ $ - $ 2,44z $ 28,94¢
Trading securities
Equity securities 8,703 - - 8,703
Total debt and equity securities $ 40,091 $ - $ 2,44z $ 37,64¢
Successor Gross Unrealized Estimated
February 1, 2008 Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Held-to-maturity securities
Bank and corporate debt $ 24,25¢ $ 244 $ 107 $ 24,391
U.S. Government securities 16,652 676 - 17,32¢
Obligations of Government
sponsored enterprises 9,834 40 - 9,874
Asset-backed securities 1,81¢ 21 5 1,831
Other debt securities (see Note 8) 33,45¢ - 709 32,744
86,00¢ 981 821 86,16¢
Trading securities
Equity securities 15,06¢ - - 15,06¢
Total debt and equity securities $ 101,07 $ 981 $ 821 $ 101,23¢

On January 30, 2009 and February 1, 2008, thesstiments were included in the
following accounts in the consolidated balance &h@e thousands):

Held-to- Available-
Successor Maturity for-Sale Trading
January 30, 2009 Securities Securities Securities
Prepaid expenses and other current assets $ - $ - $ 2,05t
Other assets, net - - 6,64¢
Long-term obligations (see Note 8) 31,38¢ - -
$ 31,38¢ $ - $ 8,70¢
Held-to- Available-
Successor Maturity for-Sale Trading
February 1, 2008 Securities Securities Securities
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,00C $ - $ -
Short-term investments 19,611 - -
Prepaid expenses and other current assets - - 2,16€
Other assets, net 31,94« - 12,90(
Long-term obligations (see Note 8) 33,45¢ - -
$ 86,00¢ $ - $ 15,06¢
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The contractual maturities of held-to-maturity s&ees as of January 30, 2009 were in
excess of three years and were $31.4 million ataros $28.9 million at fair value, respectively.

For the Successor year ended January 30, 2009saiod gnded February 1, 2008, and
the Predecessor period ended July 6, 2007 ancepead February 2, 2007, gross realized gains
and losses on the sales of available-for-sale gmsuwere not material. The cost of securities
sold is based upon the specific identification rodth

Merchandise inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or miankth cost determined using the retalil
last-in, first-out (“LIFO”) method. Under the Compés retail inventory method (“RIM”), the
calculation of gross profit and the resulting véilom of inventories at cost are computed by
applying a calculated cost-to-retail inventory @ab the retail value of sales at a department
level. Costs directly associated with warehousing distribution are capitalized into inventory.
The excess of current cost over LIFO cost was aqprately $50.0 million at January 30, 2009
and $6.1 million at February 1, 2008. Current ¢@stetermined using the retail first-in, first-out
method. The Company'’s LIFO reserves were adjustedro at July 6, 2007 as a result of the
Merger. The Successor recorded LIFO provisionsA8f$ million and $6.1 million during 2008
and 2007, respectively. The Predecessor recortéeiacredit of $1.5 million in 2006.

In 2008, the increased commodity cost pressureslynalated to food and pet products
which have been driven by fruit and vegetable graved rising freight costs. Increases in
petroleum, resin, metals, pulp and other raw mateammodity driven costs also resulted in
multiple product cost increases. The Company irdeacddress these commodity cost incre
through negotiations with its vendors and by insmegretail prices as necessary. On a qual
basis, the Company estimates the annual impaarofodity cost fluctuations based upon the
best available information at that point in time.

Store pre-opening costs

Pre-opening costs related to new store openingshenconstruction periods are
expensed as incurred.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Dimep@ny provides for depreciation
and amortization on a straight-line basis overftfiewing estimated useful lives:

Land improvements 20
Buildings 39-40
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10

Improvements of leased properties are amortized theeshorter of the life of the
applicable lease term or the estimated usefublifine asset.
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Impairment of long-lived assets

When indicators of impairment are present, the Camggevaluates the carrying value of
long-lived assets, other than goodwill, in relatiorthe operating performance and future cash
flows or the appraised values of the underlyingtssdn accordance with SFAS 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Lohgred Assets,” the Company reviews for
impairment stores open more than two years for lvbigrent cash flows from operations are
negative. Impairment results when the carrying @aftithe assets exceeds the undiscounted
future cash flows over the life of the lease. TlenPany’s estimate of undiscounted future cash
flows over the lease term is based upon histodpalations of the stores and estimates of future
store profitability which encompasses many factbas are subject to variability and difficult to
predict. If a long-lived asset is found to be impdj the amount recognized for impairment is
equal to the difference between the carrying vahe the asset’s estimated fair value. The fair
value is estimated based primarily upon estimatéaré cash flows (discounted at the
Company’s credit adjusted risk-free rate) or otle@sonable estimates of fair market value.
Assets to be disposed of are adjusted to the &revess the cost to sell if less than the book
value.

The Company recorded impairment charges includ&E&A expense of approximate
$4.0 million in 2008, $0.2 million in the 2007 Peaéssor period and $9.4 million in 2006 to
reduce the carrying value of certain of its stoessets as deemed necessary based on the
Company’s evaluation that such amounts would naebeverable primarily due to insufficient
sales or excessive costs resulting in negativeentiend projected future cash flows at these
locations. The majority of the 2006 charges weoemded pursuant to certain strategic initiat
discussed in Note 3.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

The Company amortizes intangible assets over éstimated useful lives unless such
lives are deemed indefinite. Amortizable intangiiésets are tested for impairment when
indicators of impairment are present, based onssodinted cash flows, and if impaired, written
down to fair value based on either discounted flas¥s or appraised values.

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite bvare tested for impairment annually or
more frequently if indicators of impairment are g@rt and written down to fair value as
required. No impairment of intangible assets hanbdentified during any of the periods
presented.

The goodwill impairment test is a two-step proddss requires management to make
judgments in determining what assumptions to ugkearcalculation. The first step of t
process consists of estimating the fair value ef@ompany’s reporting unit based on valuation
techniques (including a discounted cash flow modeig revenue and profit forecasts) and
comparing that estimated fair value with the reedrdarrying value, which includes goodwill
the estimated fair value is less than the carryaige, a second step is performed to comput
amount of the impairment by determining an “implfad value”of goodwill. The determinatic
of the “implied fair value” of goodwill would reqre the Company to allocate the estimated fair
value of its reporting unit to its assets and liabs. Any unallocated fair value would represent
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the “implied fair value” of goodwill, which wouldebocompared to its corresponding carrying
value.

Other assets

Other assets consist primarily of long-term investts, qualifying prepaid expenses,
debt issuance costs which are amortized over fiheflithe related obligations, and utility and
security deposits. Such debt issuance costs irenteagstantially subsequent to the Merger as
further discussed in Notes 2 and 6.

Vendor rebates

The Company accounts for all cash consideratioaived from vendors in accordance
with the provisions of Emerging Issues Task Fossei¢ (“EITF”) 02-16, “Accounting by a
Customer (Including a Reseller) for Certain Consatlen Received from a Vendor.” Cash
consideration received from a vendor is generaispmed to be a rebate or an allowance a
accounted for as a reduction of merchandise puect@sts and classified as a current or long
term liability, as applicable, until recognitiontime statement of operations at the time the goods
are sold. However, certain specific, incremental atiherwise qualifying SG&A expenses
related to the promotion or sale of vendor produtay be offset by cash consideration received
from vendors, in accordance with arrangements agatooperative advertising, when earne(
dollar amounts up to but not exceeding actual memgal costs. The Company recognizes
amounts received for cooperative advertising ofop@ance, “first showing” or distribution,
consistent with its policy for advertising expems@ccordance with the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants Statement of Posi88r7, “Reporting on Advertising Costs.”

Rent expense

Rent expense is recognized over the term of tteeledhe Company records minimum
rental expense on a straight-line basis over tlie,b@n-cancelable lease term commencing on
the date that the Company takes physical possestibie property from the landlord, which
normally includes a period prior to the store opgrto make necessary leasehold improvements
and install store fixtures. When a lease contaipeedetermined fixed escalation of the
minimum rent, the Company recognizes the relatatlagpense on a straight-line basis and
records the difference between the recognizedIrerfgense and the amounts payable under the
lease as deferred rent. Tenant allowances, textaent received, are recorded as deferred
incentive rent and are amortized as a reductiorribexpense over the term of the lease. Any
difference between the calculated expense andntiogiigs actually paid are reflected as a
liability, with the current portion in Accrued expges and other and the long-term portion in
Other liabilities in the consolidated balance sbeahd totaled approximately $7.7 million and
$3.7 million at January 30, 2009 and February D82@espectively.

The Company recognizes contingent rental expensa wie achievement of specified
sales targets are considered probable, in accaedaitic EITF Issue 98-9, “Accounting for
Contingent Rent.” The amount expensed but not asidf January 30, 2009 and February 1,
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2008 was approximately $10.4 million and $8.3 miilirespectively, and is included in Accr
expenses and other in the consolidated balancésst@a®e Note 8).

In the normal course of business, based on an lbaeadysis of store performance and
expected trends, management periodically evaldléseed to close underperforming stores.
Generally, for store closures where a lease olitigatill exists, the Company records the
estimated future liability associated with the edmibligation on the date the store is closed in
accordance with SFAS 146, “Accounting for Costsokssted with Exit or Disposal Activities.”
The estimated future liability associated with taetal obligation for certain store closures
associated with the Merger were based on EITF 9&&;ognition of Liabilities in Connection
with a Purchase Business Combination.” Key assumgtin calculating the liability include the
timeframe expected to terminate lease agreemestisiages related to the sublease potential of
closed locations, and estimation of other relatetdo®sts. Liabilities are reviewed periodically
and adjusted when necessary. The current porfitrealosed store rent liability is reflected in
Accrued expenses and other and the long-term pari®ther liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheets, and totaled approximately $13libmat January 30, 2009 and $20.2 million at
February 1, 2008.

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Accrued expenses and other consist of the following

Successor

January 30, February 1,
(In thousands) 2009 2008
Compensation and benefits $ 87,451 $ 60,72(
Insurance 65,52¢ 64,41¢
Taxes (other than taxes on income) 66,98: 55,99(
Other 155,08 119,82¢

$ 375,04t $  300,95¢

Other accrued expenses primarily include the ctipertion of liabilities for legal
settlements, freight expense, contingent rent esgaanterest, electricity, lease contract
termination liabilities for closed stores, commaaaand other maintenance charges, store
insurance liabilities and income tax related resgrv

Insurance liabilities

The Company retains a significant portion of rigkifs workers’ compensation,
employee health, general liability, property antbanwobile claim exposures. Accordingly,
provisions are made for the Company’s estimatesiot risks. The undiscounted future claim
costs for the workers’ compensation, general lighidnd health claim risks are derived using
actuarial methods. To the extent that subsequaimh costs vary from those estimates, future
results of operations will be affected. Ashley Rilresurance Company (or ARIC, as defined
above), a South Carolina-based wholly owned cajtiserance subsidiary of the Company,
charges the operating subsidiary companies premianmsure the retained workers’
compensation and non-property general liabilityesypes. Pursuant to South Carolina
insurance regulations, ARIC has cash and cash alguits balances that may be limited for
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general corporate purposes, as further describedealnder “Investments in debt and equity
securities.” ARIC currently insures no unrelateddiparty risk.

As a result of the Merger, the Company recordedstsumed self-insurance reserves as
of the Merger date at their present value in acoecd with SFAS 141, “Business
Combinations”, using a discount rate of 5.4%. Takibce of the resulting discount was $11.7
million and $18.7 million at January 30, 2009 amdbfuary 1, 2008, respectively. Other than for
reserves assumed in a business combination, th@&uns policy is to record self-insurance
reserves on an undiscounted basis.

Other liabilities

Other non-current liabilities consist of the follmg:

Successor

January 30, February 1,
(In thousands) 2009 2008
Compensation and benefits $ 8,39¢ $ 13,74«
Insurance 139,41( 123,27¢
Income tax related reserves 44,99( 78,271
Derivatives 63,52¢ 82,31¢
Other 32,96¢ 22,09¢

$ 289,28¢ $ 319,71«

Other liabilities consist primarily of deferred telease contract termination liabilities
closed stores, leasehold interests liabilities, r@hate obligations.

Fair value accounting

On February 2, 2008, the Company adopted compooné&BAS No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements”The Company has not adopted SFAS 157 for nonfiadassets and liabilitie
SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framky@rmeasuring fair value, and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. SFASapplies to reported balances that are
required or permitted to be measured at fair vahger existing accounting pronouncements.
Accordingly, the standard does not require any fakwalue measurements of reported
balances.

SFAS 157 emphasizes that fair value is a marketecbaseasurement, not an entity-
specific measurement. Therefore, a fair value oreasent should be determined based on the
assumptions that market participants would useioing the asset or liability. As a basis for
considering market participant assumptions infalue measurements, SFAS 157 establishes a
fair value hierarchy that distinguishes betweenkeigparticipant assumptions based on market
data obtained from sources independent of the tiegagntity (observable inputs that are
classified within Levels 1 and 2 of the hierarchpyl the reporting entity’s own assumptions
about market participant assumptions (unobseniaplés classified within Level 3 of the
hierarchy).
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Level 1 inputs utilize quoted prices (unadjustedactive markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Company has the ability to@gs Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted
prices included in Level 1 that are directly oriredtly observable for the asset or liability. L&

2 inputs may include quoted prices for similar &ss@d liabilities in active markets, as well as
inputs that are observable for the asset or ligl(itither than quoted prices), such as interest
rates, foreign exchange rates, and yield curvdsatieaobservable at commonly quoted intervals.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for thetamskability, which are based on an entity’s
own assumptions, as there is little, if any, relaterket activity. In instances where the
determination of the fair value measurement is tbaseinputs from different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hiehgrwithin which the entire fair value
measurement falls is based on the lowest leveltithai is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety. The Company’s assegsoi¢he significance of a particular input
to the fair value measurement in its entirety reggljjudgment and considers factors specific to
the asset or liability.

The valuation of the Company’s derivative finananstruments is determined using
widely accepted valuation techniques, includingadisited cash flow analysis on the expected
cash flows of each derivative. This analysis réflehe contractual terms of the derivatives,
including the period to maturity, and uses obsdevatarketbased inputs, including interest r.
curves. The fair values of interest rate swapgiatermined using the market standard
methodology of netting the discounted future fixadh payments (or receipts) and the
discounted expected variable cash receipts (or paigh The variable cash receipts (or
payments) are based on an expectation of futueegst rates (forward curves) derived from
observable market interest rate curves.

To comply with the provisions of SFAS 157, the Campincorporates credit valuation
adjustments (CVASs) to appropriately reflect bothatvn nonperformance risk and the respet
counterpartys nonperformance risk in the fair value measureselnt adjusting the fair value
its derivative contracts for the effect of nonpemiance risk, the Company has considered the
impact of netting and any applicable credit enharad@s, such as collateral postings, thresh
mutual puts, and guarantees.

Although the Company has determined that the ntgjofithe inputs used to value its
derivatives fall within Level 2 of the fair valuéghnarchy, the CVAs associated with its
derivatives utilize Level 3 inputs, such as estasaif current credit spreads to evaluate the
likelihood of default by itself and its counterpast However, as of January 30, 2009, the
Company has assessed the significance of the imp#oe CVAs on the overall valuation of its
derivative positions and has determined that th&£&re not significant to the overall valuat
of its derivatives. Based on the Company's reviéth® CVAs by counterparty portfolio, the
Company has determined that the CVAs are not sogmif to the overall portfolio valuations, as
the CVAs are deemed to be immaterial in terms efdyoints and are a very small percentage
of the aggregate notional value. Although somihefCVAs as a percentage of termination
value appear to be more significant, primary emighaas placed on a review of the CVA in
basis points and the percentage of the notionakva#ls a result, the Company has determined
that its derivative valuations in their entirete atassified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy
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The following table presents the Company’s assaddiabilities measured at fair value
on a recurring basis as of January 30, 2009, agtgddy the level in the fair value hierarchy
within which those measurements fall.

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets Significant

for Identical Other Significant
Assets and Observable Unobservable
Liabilities Inputs Inputs Balance at
(In thousands) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)  January 30, 2009
Assets:
Trading securities (a) 8,703 - - 8,703
Liabilities:
Derivative financial instruments (b) - 63,523 - 63,523

(a) Reflected in the consolidated balance sheet asarempenses and other current assets of $2,056 teot
assets, net of $6,648.
(b) Reflected in the consolidated balance sheet asr Qtbacurrent) liabilities.

The Company does not have any fair value measutsmeimg significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3) as of January 30, 2009.

The carrying amounts reflected in the consolidé@dnce sheets for cash, cash
equivalents, short-term investments, receivabléspayables approximate their respective fair
values. At January 30, 2009, the fair value of@loenpany’s debt, excluding capital lease
obligations, was approximately $3.747 billion, ppeoximately $380.1 million less than the
carrying values of the debt, compared to a faineaf $3.783 billion at February 1, 2008, or
approximately $489.2 million less than the carrywadue. The estimated fair value of the debt is
based primarily on quoted prices for those or simistruments.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company accounts for derivative financial imstents in accordance with SFAS |
133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and HexdgActivities”, as amended and
interpreted (collectively, “SFAS 133"). This liteétae requires the Company to recognize all
derivative instruments on the balance sheet avédire, and contains accounting rules for
hedging instruments, which depend on the natutbeohedge relationship. All financial
instrument positions taken by the Company are dedrio be used to reduce risk by hedging an
underlying economic exposure.

The Company’s derivative financial instrumentsthia form of interest rate swaps at
January 30, 2009, are related to variable inteegstrisk exposures associated with the
Company’s long-term debt and were entered intomiateempt to manage that risk. The
counterparties to the Company’s derivative agreésnam all major international financial
institutions. The Company continually monitorsptssition and the credit ratings of its
counterparties and does not anticipate nonperfaceby the counterparties, however, there can
be no assurance that such nonperformance will cmiro
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Share-based payments

Effective February 4, 2006, the Company adopted SE23 (Revised 2004) “Share
Based Payment” (“SFAS 123(R)”) and began recoggizimmpensation expense for shhesec
compensation based on the fair value of the awandbe grant date. SFAS 123(R) requires
share-based compensation expense recognized shoealy 4, 2006 to be based on: (a) grant
date fair value estimated in accordance with thgiraal provisions of SFAS 123, “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation,” for unvested optgmasited prior to the adoption date and (b)
grant date fair value estimated in accordance thighprovisions of SFAS 123(R) for unvested
options granted after the adoption date. The Compdopted SFAS 123(R) under the modified-
prospective-transition method and, therefore, tedtdm prior periods have not been restated.

Under SFAS 123(R), forfeitures are estimated atithe of valuation and reduce
expense ratably over the vesting period. This edéns adjusted periodically based on the
extent to which actual forfeitures differ, or argected to differ, from the prior estimate. The
forfeiture rate is the estimated percentage ofoogtigranted that are expected to be forfeited or
canceled before becoming fully vested. The Compmases this estimate on historical
experience or estimates of future trends, as agigkc An increase in the forfeiture rate will
decrease compensation expense.

SFAS 123(R) also requires the benefits of tax deoios in excess of recognized
compensation cost to be reported as a financing fbas, rather than as an operating cash flow
as required prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R).

The fair value of each option grant is separatstineated and amortized into
compensation expense on a strailge-basis between the applicable grant date ackl easting
date. The Company has estimated the fair valud sfack option awards as of the grant date by
applying the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricinduaion model. The application of this
valuation model involves assumptions that are juelggad and highly sensitive in the
determination of compensation expense.

The Company also accounts for nonvested restrattsak awards in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS 123(R). The Company calculatesmensation expense as the difference
between the market price of the underlying stockhengrant date and the purchase price, if
and recognizes such amount on a straight-line loagisthe period in which the recipient earns
the nonvested restricted stock and restricted siadkaward. Under the provisions of SFAS 123
(R), unearned compensation is not recorded withameholders’ equity.

The Company has elected to determine its excedsetaafit pool upon adoption of SF.
123(R) in accordance with the provisions of FASBffSPosition (“FSP”) 123(R)-3, “Transition
Election Related to Accounting for the Tax EffectsShare-Based Payment Awarddgrider the
provisions of this FSP, the cumulative benefittotk option exercises included in additional
paid-in capital for the periods after the effectdagde of SFAS 123 is reduced by the cumulative
income tax effect of the pro forma stock optionenge previously disclosed in accordance with
the requirements of SFAS 123. (The provision of 6P applied only to options that were fi
vested before the date of adoption of SFAS 123[Rg. amount of any excess tax benefit for
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options that are either granted after the adomifd®dFAS 123(R) or are partially vested on the
date of adoption were computed in accordance \wilptovisions of SFAS 123(R).) The

amount of any excess deferred tax asset over thalascome tax benefit realized for options
that are exercised after the adoption of SFAS 1p@&(Rbe absorbed by the excess tax benefit
pool. Income tax expense will be increased shdwddompany’s excess tax benefit pool be
insufficient to absorb any future deferred tax aaseounts in excess of the actual tax benefit
realized. The Company has determined that its exessbenefit pool was approximately $68
million as of the adoption of SFAS 123(R) on Feloyug 2006. After the Merger and the
related application of purchase accounting, thegxtax benefit pool has been reduced to zero.

Revenue and gain recognition

The Company recognizes retail sales in its stardseaime the customer takes
possession of merchandise. All sales are netsgbdints and estimated returns and are pres
net of taxes assessed by governmental authoti@ste imposed concurrent with those sales.
The liability for retail merchandise returns isbd on the Company’s prior experience. The
Company records gain contingencies when realized.

The Company recognizes gift card sales revenueedirhe of redemption. The liability
for the gift cards is established for the cash @atthe time of purchase. The liability for
outstanding gift cards was approximately $1.5 wnilland $1.2 million at January 30, 2009 and
February 1, 2008, respectively, and is recordeacerued expenses and other. Through January
30, 2009, the Company has not recorded any breakagme related to its gift card program.

Advertising costs

Advertising costs are expensed upon performanast $howing”or distribution, and al
reflected net of qualifying cooperative advertisfogds provided by vendors in SG&A
expenses. Advertising costs were $27.8 million,.628illion, $17.3 million and $45.0 million
in 2008, the 2007 Successor and Predecessor peaindi2006, respectively. These costs
primarily include promotional circulars, targetactalars supporting new stores, television and
radio advertising, in-store signage, and costscestsal with the sponsorships of certain
automobile racing activities. Vendor funding foloperative advertising offset reported expe
by $7.8 million, $6.6 million, $2.0 million and & million in 2008, the 2007 Successor and
Predecessor periods, and 2006, respectively.

Capitalized interest

To assure that interest costs properly reflect tmdy portion relating to current
operations, interest on borrowed funds during thestruction of property and equipment is
capitalized. Interest costs capitalized were etpuaero in 2008 and the 2007 periods, and were
approximately $2.9 million in 2006.
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Income taxes

The Company reports income taxes in accordanceS#HKRS No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes” (“SFAS 109”). Under SFAS 109, theeasnd liability method is used for
computing the future income tax consequences afte\that have been recognized in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements ornmetax returns. Deferred income tax
expense or benefit is the net change during theigghe Company deferred income tax ass
and liabilities.

As discussed in Note 5, effective February 3, 20@7Predecessor modified its method
of accounting for income taxes in connection witd &doption of FASB Interpretation 48,
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — Aneirretation of FASB Statement 109 (“FIN
48"). The adoption resulted in an $8.9 million decreasefained earnings and a reclassifica
of certain amounts between deferred income taxé®#trer noncurrent liabilities to conform to
the balance sheet presentation requirements o#iBIMs of the date of adoption, the total
reserve for uncertain tax benefits was $77.9 nnillibhis reserve excludes the federal incom:
benefit for the uncertain tax positions relatedttie income taxes, which is now included in
deferred tax assets. As a result of the adoptidfiléf48, the reserve for interest expense related
to income taxes was increased to $15.3 millionaneserve for potential penalties of $1.9
million related to uncertain income tax positionsswecorded. As of the date of adoption,
approximately $27.1 million of the reserve for unai tax positions would have impacted the
Company’s effective income tax rate subsequentlyafCompany were to recognize the tax
benefit for these positions.

Subsequent to the adoption of FIN 48, the Compasyethected to record income tax
related interest and penalties as a componenegirbvision for income tax expense.

Income tax reserves are determined using the melihgyl established by FIN 48. FIN
48 requires companies to assess each income taropdaken using a two step process. A
determination is first made as to whether it is endeely than not that the position will be
sustained, based upon the technical merits, upamieation by the taxing authorities. If the
position is expected to meet the more likely thananiteria, the benefit recorded for the tax
position equals the largest amount that is grehtar 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate
settlement of the respective tax position. Undertax positions require determinations and
estimated liabilities to be made based on provssmiithe tax law which may be subject to
change or varying interpretation. If the Compardeserminations and estimates prove to be
inaccurate, the resulting adjustments could be mahte the Company’s future financial results.

Management estimates

The preparation of financial statements and reldieclosures in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in theééhEStates requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartedints of assets and liabilities and disclo
of contingent assets and liabilities at the datthefconsolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses duengpiorting periods. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.
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Accounting pronouncements

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Imsares about Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities”, an amendmdrifASB Statement 133. SFAS 161 applies
to all derivative instruments and nonderivativanmsents that are designated and qualify as
hedging instruments pursuant to paragraphs 37 2mmd 8FAS 133 and related hedged items
accounted for under SFAS 133. SFAS 161 requiresesnto provide greater transparency
through additional disclosures about how and whegraity uses derivative instruments, how
derivative instruments and related hedged itemsereunted for under SFAS 133 and its
related interpretations, and how derivative inseats and related hedged items affect an
entity’s financial position, results of operatioasnd cash flows. SFAS 161 is effective as of the
beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that begjafter November 15, 2008. The Company
plans to adopt SFAS 161 during the first quarte2@39 and its impact is expected to be limited
to the additional disclosures discussed above.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 14TfRjsiness Combinations”. The
new standard establishes the requirements for Imo&cquirer recognizes and measures in its
financial statements the identifiable assets aedyihe liabilities assumed, and any non-
controlling interest (formerly minority interest) an acquiree; provides updated requirements
for recognition and measurement of goodwill acqiiirethe business combination or a gain
from a bargain purchase; and provides updatedadisd requirements to enable users of
financial statements to evaluate the nature arah@ial effects of the business combination.
Statement applies prospectively to business cortibimsafor which the acquisition date is on or
after the beginning of the first annual reportiregipd beginning on or after December 15, 2008.
Early adoption is not allowed. Unless a qualifytransaction is consummated subsequent t
effective date, the adoption of this standard @Gbmpanys financial statements is expecte:
be limited to any future Merger-related adjustmeatsncertain tax positions that would, if
subsequently recognized, impact results of oparatiather than goodwill.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, ‘Vaue Measurements.” SFAS 157
provides guidance for using fair value to measssets and liabilities. The standard also
requires expanded information about the extenthhvcompanies measure assets and liab
at fair value, the information used to measureviaiue, and the effect of fair value
measurements on earnings. The standard appliesewreother standards require (or permit)
assets or liabilities to be measured at fair valire standard does not expand the use of fair
value in any new circumstances. SFAS 157 is effedbr financial statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after November 15, 2007, and mi@eriods within those fiscal years. For non-
financial assets and liabilities, the effectiveediads been delayed to fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2008. The Company adopted compon&®BAS 157 in 2008 and curren
expects to adopt the components of SFAS 157 rglédimonfinancial assets and liabilities
during 2009. The Company is in the process of etalg the potential impact of this standard
on its consolidated financial statements.
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Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications of the 2006 and 2007 art®ohave been made to conform to
2008 presentation.

2. Merger

On March 11, 2007, the Company entered into an é&gent and Plan of Merger (the
“Merger Agreement”) with Buck Holdings L.P., a Defare limited partnership (“Parent”), and
Buck, a Tennessee corporation and wholly ownedidialpg of Parent. Parent is and Buck was
(prior to the Merger) controlled by investment faraffiliated with Kohlberg Kravis Roberts &
Co., L.P. (*KKR"). On July 6, 2007, the transactivas consummated through a merger (the
“Merger”) of Buck with and into the Company. Ther@pany survived the Merger as a
subsidiary of Parent. The Company’s results ofaipens after July 6, 2007 include the effects
of the Merger.

The aggregate purchase price was approximatelyt#ifidn, including direct costs of
the Merger, and was funded primarily through det#ricings as described more fully below in
Note 6 and cash equity contributions from KKR, G&pital Partners VI Fund, L.P. a
affiliated funds (affiliates of Goldman, Sachs &.LCiti Private Equity, Wellington
Management Company, LLP, CPP Investment Board (UBREc., and other equity co-
investors (collectively, the “Investors”) of appioately $2.8 billion (553.4 million shares of
new common stock, $0.50 par value per share, valtig8.00 per share). Also in connection
with the Merger, certain of the Company’s managemeerployees invested in and were issued
new shares, representing less than 1% of the adistashares, in the Company. Pursuant to
the terms of the Merger Agreement, the former hsldé the Predecessor’'s common stock, par
value $0.50 per share, received $22.00 per shaeppsoximately $6.9 billion, and all such
shares were acquired as a result of the Mergeof Aanuary 30, 2009 and February 1, 2008,
there were approximately 556,227,947 and 555,481s8ares of Company common stock
outstanding, respectively, a portion of which idegemable as further discussed below in Note
10.

As discussed in Note 1, the Merger was accounteds@ reverse acquisition in
accordance with the purchase accounting provisibi®-AS 141, “Business Combinations”.
Because of this accounting treatment, the Comgaagsets and liabilities have properly been
accounted for at their estimated fair values ab®Merger date. The aggregate purchase price
has been allocated to the tangible and intanggseta acquired and liabilities assumed based
upon an assessment of their relative fair valuesf #se Merger date.
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The allocation of the purchase price is as follgnvghousands):

Cash and cash equivalents $ 349,615
Short-term investments 30,906
Merchandise inventories 1,368,13C
Income taxes receivable 40,199
Deferred income taxes 57,176
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 63,204
Property and equipment, net 1,301,119
Goodwill 4,338,588
Intangible assets 1,396,612
Other assets, net 66,537
Current portion of long-term obligations (7,088
Accounts payable (585,518
Accrued expenses and other (306,394
Income taxes payable (84)
Long-term obligations (267,927
Deferred income taxes (540,675
Other liabilities (208,710
Total purchase price assigned $ 7,095,691

The purchase price allocation as of January 309 2@luded approximately $4.34
billion of goodwill, none of which is expected te deductible for tax purposes. The goodwill
balance at February 1, 2008 increased by $21.&mitiver the balance immediately following
the Merger, representing a refinement of the puehmice allocation related to the Merger. The
goodwill balance at January 30, 2009 decreasedrifli8n from February 1, 2008 due to an
adjustment to income tax contingencies as furtismudsed in Note 5. The purchase price
allocation as of January 30, 2009 and Februar$Q8 2lso included approximately $1.4 billion
of other intangible assets, as follows:

As of January 30, 2009

Estimated Accumulated
(In thousands) Useful Life Amount Amortization Net
Leasehold interests 2to 17.5 years $ 184,57( $ 64,02( $ 120,55(
Internally developed software 3 years 12,30( 6,492 5,80¢
196,87( 70,512 126,35¢
Trade names and trademarksindefinite 1,199,20( - 1,199,20(
$ 1,396,07! $ 70,512 $ 1,325,55¢

As of February 1, 2008

Estimated Accumulated
(In thousands) Useful Life Amount Amortization Net
Leasehold interests 2to 17.5 years $ 185,11: $ 23,66: $ 161,44¢
Internally developed software 3 years 12,30( 2,392 9,90¢
197,41: 26,05t 171,357
Trade names and trademarksindefinite 1,199,20( - 1,199,20(
$ 1,396,61. $ 26,05k $ 1,370,55

The Company recorded amortization expense relatachortizable intangible assets for
2008 and the 2007 Successor period of $45.0 midimth$26.1 million, respectively, ($40.9
million and $23.7 million, respectively, of whick included in rent expense).
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For intangible assets subject to amortization eiftenated aggregate amortization
expense for each of the five succeeding fiscals/saas follows: 2009 - $41.1 million, 2010 -
$27.3 million, 2011 - $20.9 million, 2012 - $17.0llan, and 2013 - $12.0 million.

Fees and expenses related to the Merger totalezi @ illion, principally consisting of
investment banking fees, legal fees and stock casgi®n ($39.4 million as further discussed
in Note 10), and are reflected in the 2007 resfltgperations. Capitalized debt issuance costs
as of the Merger date of $87.4 million for Mergelated financing were reflected in other long-
term assets in the consolidated balance sheet.

The following represents the unaudited pro fornsaults of the Company’s consolidated
operations as if the Merger had occurred on Fekr8a2007 and February 4, 2006, respecti
after giving effect to certain adjustments, inchglthe depreciation and amortization of the
assets acquired based on their estimated fair valo@ changes in interest expense resulting
from changes in consolidated debt (in thousands):

Year Ended Year ended

February 1, February 2,
(In thousands) 2008 2007
Revenue $ 9,495,246 $ 9,169,822
Net loss (57,939 (156,188

The pro forma information does not purport to bdicative of what the Company’s
results of operations would have been if the adipishad in fact occurred at the beginning of
the periods presented, and is not intended togdrejaction of the Company’s future results of
operations.

Subsequent to the announcement of the Merger Agneenie Company and its
directors, along with other parties, were nameskewen putative class actions filed in Tennessee
state courts alleging claims for breach of fidugidnty arising out of the proposed Merger, a
described more fully under “Legal Proceedings” &8 below.

3. Strategic initiatives

During 2006, the Company began implementing cegtategic initiatives related to its
historical inventory management and real estasgegjres, as more fully described below.

Inventory management

In November 2006, the Company undertook an initéato discontinue its historical
inventory packaway model for virtually all merch&edby the end of fiscal 2007. Under the
packaway model, certain unsold inventory itemsnfarily seasonal merchandise) were stored
on-site and returned to the sales floor until the gemere eventually sold, damaged or discal
Through end-of-season and other markdowns, thigiivie resulted in the elimination of
seasonal, home products and basic clothing packaveaghandise to allow for increased levels
of newer, current-season merchandise. In conmeutith this strategic change, in the third
quarter of 2006 the Company recorded a reserviegar of cost or market inventory
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impairment estimates of $63.5 million and incurhéggher markdowns and writedowns on
inventory in the second half of 2006 and in 20G&htin comparable prior-year periods. As a
result of the Merger and in accordance with SFAS, ide Company’s inventory balances,
including the inventory associated with this stgatechange, were adjusted to fair value and the
related reserve was eliminated.

Exit and disposal activities

In November 2006, the Company decided to closagddition to those stores that might
be closed in the ordinary course of business, apedely 400 stores by the end of fiscal 2007,
all of which were closed by February 1, 2008. Aiddially, in connection with the Merger,
management approved and completed a plan to cloadditional 60 stores prior to February 1,
2008. The Company has recorded the following grecbsts associated with the closing of
these approximately 460 stores (in millions):

Incurred in  Incurred in Merger Incurred in
Total (a) 2006 2007 Additions (b) 2008 Remaining

Lease contract termination

costs (c) $ 381 $ 57 $ 163 % 123 % 38 $ -
One-time employee

termination benefits 1.0 0.3 0.5 0.2 - -
Other associated store

closing costs 8.4 0.2 7.2 1.2 (0.2) -
Inventory liquidation fees 4.4 1.6 2.8 - - -
Asset impairment &

accelerated depreciation 12.8 8.3 3.6 0.9 - -
Inventory markdowns

below cost 8.3 6.7 0.9 0.7 - -
Total $ 730 % 228  $ 313 % 153 % 3.6 $ -

(@) Reflects amounts as of January 30, 2009, whictatéad, are $3.6 million greater than estimatesfdsetruary

1, 2008.

(b) These amounts were recorded as assumed liabifit@mnnection with the Merger.

(c) Including reversals of deferred rent accruals toga$0.5 million, of which $0.1 million is refleatein 2006,
and $0.4 million is reflected in 2007. Excludesration expense to be incurred in future periods.

Other associated store closing costs as listeakitable above primarily include the
removal of any usable assets as well as real estaslting and other services.

Liability balances related to exit activities dissed above are as follows (in millions):

Balance, Balance,
February 1, 2008 2008 Payments January 30,
2008 Expenses (a) and Other 2009
Lease contract termination costs $ 201 $ 3.8 $ 11.3 $ 12.6
Other associated store closing costs (b) 1.0 (0.2) 0.7 0.1
Total $ 21.1 $ 3.6 $ 12.0 $ 12.7

(a) 2008 expenses associated with exit and dispogsitest are included in selling, general and adstimitive
(“SG&A”) expenses in the consolidated statemerdperations.
(b) Primarily represents store closing costs includamoval of store fixtures.
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4, Property and equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost and suined as follows:

Successor

January 30, February 1,

(In thousands) 2009 2008
Land and land improvements $ 137,77¢ $ 137,539
Buildings 518,93: 516,482
Leasehold improvements 117,84¢ 87,343
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 781,42¢ 645,376
Construction in progress 5,02& 2,823
1,561,00¢ 1,389,563
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 292,04¢ 115,318
Net property and equipment $ 1,268,96( $1,274,245

Depreciation expense related to property and eqerprvas approximately $190.5
million for 2008, $116.9 million for the 2007 Susser period, $83.5 million for the 2007
Predecessor period, and $199.6 million for 200&0Aization of capital lease assets is inclu
in depreciation expense.

5. Income taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxes consigtthe following:

Successor Predecessor
March 6, 2007 February 3, 2007
through through
(In thousands) 2008 February 1, 2008 July 6, 2007 2006
Current:
Federal $ 10,489 $ (25,726 $ 31,114 $ 101,919
Foreign 1,084 409 495 1,200
State 1,214 4,306 1,258 17,519
12,787 (21,011 32,867 120,638
Deferred:
Federal 64,403 22,157 (18,750 (34,807)
Foreign ) - - 13
State 9,034 (2,921 (2,124, (3,424)
73,434 19,236 (20,874 (38,218)
$ 86,221 $ (1,775 $ 11,993 $ 82,420
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A reconciliation between actual income taxes andwits computed by applying the
federal statutory rate to income before incomedazesummarized as follows:

Successor Predecessor
March 6, 2007 February 3, 2007
through through
(Dollars in thousands) 2008 February 1, 2008 July 6, 2007 2006

U.S. federal statutory

rate on earnings

before income taxes $68,041 350% $ (2,308 350% $ 1,399 35.0% $ 77,127 35.0%
State income taxes, net

of federal income ta

benefit 5,361 2.8 904 (13.7) (1,135 (28.4) 5,855 2.7
Jobs credits, net of

federal income taxes (9,149  (4.7) (3,022) 45.8 (2,227 (55.7) (5,008 (2.3)
Increase (decrease)

in valuation

allowances 3,038 1.6 - - 551 13.8 3,211 15

Income tax related

interest expense, net

of federal income ta

benefit (2,015 (1.0) 2,738 (41.5) a72) (4.3) - -
Nondeductible Merger-

related lawsuit

settlement 18,130 9.3 - - - - - -
Nondeductible

transaction costs - - - - 13,501 337.9 - -
Other, net 2,815 1.4 87) 1.3 76 1.9 1,235 0.5

$ 86,221 44.4% $ (1,775 269% $ 11,9933002% $ 82,420 37.4%

The 2008 effective income tax rate is an expengel@f%. This expense is greater than
the expected U.S. statutory tax rate of 35% pradbyue to the non-deductibility of the
settlement and related expenses associated witfiehger-related shareholder lawsuit.

The income tax rate for the Successor period erdbduary 1, 2008 is a benefit of
26.9%. This benefit is less than the expected &tedutory rate of 35% due to the incurrence of
state income taxes in several of the group’s sudnsed that file their state income tax returns on
a separate entity basis and the election to incleifiective February 3, 2007, income tax related
interest and penalties in the amount reported@smie tax expense.

The income tax rate for the Predecessor periodceiuly 6, 2007 is an expense of
300.2%. This expense is higher than the expect8ddtatutory rate of 35% due principally to
the non-deductibility of certain acquisition relhtexpenses.

The 2006 income tax rate was higher than the Wautery rate of 35% principally due
to state income taxes.

Deferred taxes reflect the effects of temporarfedénces between carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting pesps and the amounts used for income tax
purposes. Significant components of the Compangferded tax assets and liabilities are as
follows:
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Successor

January 30, February 1,
(In thousands) 2009 2008
Deferred tax assets:
Deferred compensation expense $ 5,350 $ 6,254
Accrued expenses and other 4,815 4,379
Accrued rent 4,830 5,909
Accrued insurance 66,091 61,887
Accrued bonuses 23,016 100
Interest rate hedges 25,327 30,891
Tax benefit of FIN 48 income tax and interest ressr 11,859 16,209
Other 12,021 9,947
State tax net operating loss carryforwards, néedéral tax 9,252 10,342
State tax credit carryforwards, net of federal tax 13,545 8,727
176,106 154,645
Less valuation allowances (9,808 (1,560;
Total deferred tax assets 166,298 153,085
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment (156,591 (108,675
Inventories (38,901 (20,291
Trademarks (431,654 (428,627
Amortizable assets (47,446 (64,419
Insurance related tax method change (42,641 -
Other (566) (501)
Total deferred tax liabilities (717,799 (622,513
Net deferred tax liabilities $ (551,501 $ (469,428

Net deferred tax liabilities are reflected sepdyaba the consolidated balance sheets as
current and noncurrent deferred income taxes. dh@ifing table summarizes net deferred tax
liabilities as recorded in the consolidated balastueets:

Successor
January 30, February 1,
(In thousands) 2009 2008
Current deferred income tax assets, net $ 4600 $ 17,297
Noncurrent deferred income tax liabilities, net (556,101 (486,725
Net deferred tax liabilities $ (551,501 $ (469,428

The Company has state net operating loss carryfdsaas of January 30, 2009 that total
approximately $307.7 million which will expire ir023 through 2028. The Company also has
state tax credit carryforwards of approximately 82@illion that will expire beginning in 2009
through 2027.

The valuation allowance has been provided for f@ld=apital losses and state tax credit
carryforwards. The 2008 increase of $8.2 milliceswecorded as income tax expense of $3.0
million and an adjustment to goodwill of $5.2 nali. The full amount of the change in the
valuation allowance for the 2007 Successor peaatkcrease of $4.2 million, was recorded as
an adjustment to goodwill. The increase of $0.8iomlin the Predecessor period ended July 6,
2007 and the increase of $3.2 million in 2006 wectuded in income tax expense for the
respective periods. Based upon expected futummec management believes that it is more
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likely than not that the results of operations \geherate sufficient taxable income to realize the
deferred tax assets after giving consideratioméoviluation allowance.

During 2008, goodwill recorded in connection witie tMerger was reduced by $6.3
million principally as a result of the favorabldtsEment of uncertain income tax positions that
existed at the time of the Merger.

The Predecessor adopted the provisions of FIN #8tefe February 3, 2007. The
adoption resulted in an $8.9 million decrease fained earnings and a reclassification of ce
amounts between deferred income taxes and otheurrent liabilities to conform to the
balance sheet presentation requirements of FINA&Sof the date of adoption, the total
uncertain tax benefits were $77.9 million. Thiscamt excludes the federal income tax benefit
for the uncertain tax positions related to stat®ime taxes, which is included in deferred tax
assets. As a result of the adoption of FIN 48réserve for interest expense related to income
taxes was increased to $15.3 million and a rederveotential penalties of $1.9 million related
to uncertain income tax positions was recorded.

Subsequent to the adoption of FIN 48, the Compasydtected to record income tax
related interest and penalties as a componengegirbvision for income tax expense.

In the Predecessor period ended July 6, 2007 nteenlal Revenue Service completed an
examination of the Company’s federal income tammret through fiscal year 2003 resulting in a
net income tax refund. There are no unresolvetsselated to this examination. None of the
Company’s federal income tax returns are curreuntlyer examination by the Internal Revenue
Service; however, fiscal years 2005 and later @lfessbject to possible examination by the
Internal Revenue Service. The Company has vagtaie income tax examinations that are
currently in progress. The estimated liabilityated to these state income tax examinations is
included in the Company'’s reserve for uncertaingasitions. Generally, the Company’s tax
years ended in 2005 and forward remain open fomeaion by the various state taxing
authorities.

As of January 30, 2009, the total uncertain taxebies) interest expense related to
income taxes and potential income tax penaltieg B68.1 million, $11.3 million and $1.5
million, respectively, for a total of $71.9 milliorOf this amount, $20.8 million and $47.3
million are reflected in current liabilities as aced expenses and other and in other noncurrent
liabilities, respectively, in the consolidated lrala sheet with the remaining $3.8 million
reducing deferred tax assets related to net operkiss carry forwards.

As of February 1, 2008, the total uncertain taxdbis) interest expense related to
income taxes and potential income tax penaltie®$66.6 million, $19.7 million and $1.5
million, respectively, for a total of $117.8 millio Of this amount, $23.2 million and $78.3 are
reflected in current liabilities as accrued expsresgd other and in other noncurrent liabilities,
respectively, in the consolidated balance sheét thigd remaining $16.3 million reducing
deferred tax assets related to net operating sy torwards.
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The change, from the date of adoption, througletiteof the Predecessor period ended
July 6, 2007 in the uncertain tax benefits, inteepense related to income taxes and potential
income tax penalties that impacted the consolidsti@#ment of operations was a net increa
$10.4 million and $0.2 million and a decrease a#3dillion, respectively. The change, from
the end of the Predecessor period ended July @, 20@ugh the end of the Successor period
ended February 1, 2008, in the uncertain tax benafid interest expense related to income
that impacted the consolidated statement of operaitivas a net increase of $0.2 million and
$4.2 million, respectively. There was no changthe reserve for potential income tax pene
during the Successor period ended February 1, 2008.

During 2008, the Company included in its consokdatstatement of operations a net
increase of $0.8 million, a net decrease of $1l0aniand a net increase of $0.3 million related
to uncertain tax benefits, interest expense relagcome taxes and potential tax penalties,
respectively. The net decrease in interest expetsted to uncertain tax positions is due to the
reduction during 2008 in amounts previously accnedated to uncertain tax positions.

The Company believes that it is reasonably pos#ifaethe reserve for uncertain tax
positions may be reduced by approximately $33.Ganiin the coming twelve months
principally as a result of the settlement of cutiyeangoing state income tax examinations and
the anticipated filing of an income tax accountmgthod change request that is expected to
resolve certain uncertainties related to accountiethods employed by the Company. The
reasonably possible change of $33.6 million isuded in both current liabilities ($20.1 million)
and other noncurrent liabilities ($13.5 million)thre consolidated balance sheet as of January
30, 2009. Also, as of January 30, 2009, approxilyn&23.9 million of the uncertain tax
positions would impact the Company’s effective imeotax rate if the Company were to
recognize the tax benefit for these positions.

A reconciliation of the uncertain income tax pasis from February 3, 2007 (the date of
adoption) through January 30, 2009 is as follows:

(In thousands)

Balance as of February 3, 2007 $ 77,864
Increases — tax positions taken in the current year 19,568
Increases — tax positions taken in prior years 1,149
Decrease — tax positions taken in prior years 9)
Statute expirations (185)
Settlements (1,787,
Balance as of February 1, 2008 $ 96,600
Increases — tax positions taken in the current year 25,977
Decrease — tax positions taken in the current year (2,250
Increases — tax positions taken in prior years 3,271
Decrease — tax positions taken in prior years (58,607
Statute expirations (1,955
Settlements (3,979
Balance as of January 30, 2009 $ 59,057
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6. Current and long-term obligations

Current and long-term obligations consist of théfeing:

Successor

(In thousands) January 30, 2009 February 1, 2008

Senior secured term loan facility $ 2,300,000 $ 2,300,000

Senior secured asset-based revolving credit facilit - 102,500
10 5/8% Senior Notes due July 15, 2015, net ofadist of

$20,033 and $22,083, respectively 1,154,967 1,152,917

11 7/8/12 5/8% Senior Subordinated Notes due JalyQ17 655,891 700,000

8 5/8% Notes due June 15, 2010 1,822 1,822

Capital lease obligations 9,939 10,268

Tax increment financing due February 1, 2035 14,495 14,495

4,137,114 4,282,002

Less: current portion (14,158 (3,246,

Long-term portion $ 4,122,956 $ 4,278,756

On July 6, 2007, the Company entered into two sesgoured credit agreements (the
“Credit Facilities”). The Credit Facilities provedinancing of $3.425 billion, consisting of $2.3
billion in a senior secured term loan facility whimatures on July 6, 2014, and a senior secured
asset-based revolving credit facility of up to £bbillion, subject to borrowing base
availability, which matures on July 6, 2013.

Under the Credit Facilities, the Company has tpbtrat any time to request up to $32
million of incremental commitments under one or enmcremental term loan facilities and/or
asset-based revolving credit facilities, subjeatddain conditions and subject to the lender’s
desire to extend the incremental facilities.

The amount available under the senior secured-aaset revolving credit facility
(including up to $350.0 million for letters of cigdnay not exceed the borrowing base
(consisting of specified percentages of eligibkemory and credit card receivables less any
applicable availability reserves). The senior sedwasset-based revolving credit facility
includes a $1.0 billion tranche and a $125.0 mill{last out”) tranche. Repayments of the
senior secured asset-based revolving credit faeiiil be applied to the $125.0 million tranche
only after all other tranches have been fully godvn. As of January 30, 2009 and February 1,
2008, the Company had outstanding borrowings ar@#0$102.5 million, respectively, under
the “last out” tranche.

Borrowings under the Credit Facilities bear inteetsa rate equal to an applicable
margin plus, at the Comparsyoption, either (a) LIBOR or (b) a base rate (Whgusually equi
to the prime rate). The applicable margin for batings is (i) under the term loan facility,
2.75% for LIBOR borrowings and 1.75% for base-taterowings (ii) as of January 30, 2009
and February 1, 2008, respectively, under the dxsd revolving credit facility (except in the
last out tranche described above), 1.25% and 1f60BOR borrowings; 0.25% and 0.50%
for base-rate borrowings and for any last out bwimgs, 2.25% for LIBOR borrowings and
1.25% for base-rate borrowings. The applicablegiarfor borrowings under the asset-based
revolving credit facility (except in the case a$tl@aut borrowings) are subject to adjustment ¢
guarter based on average daily excess availabitither the asset-based revolving credit facility.
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As of February 1, 2008, the average interest @tbdrrowings under the revolving credit
facility was 6.35%. The interest rate for borrogsrunder the term loan facility was 3.44% and
6.22% (without giving effect to the interest ratgaps discussed in Note 7) as of January 30,
2009 and February 1, 2008, respectively.

In addition to paying interest on outstanding ppatunder the Credit Facilities, the
Company is required to pay a commitment fee tdehders under the asset-based revolving
credit facility for any unutilized commitments. dlsommitment fee rate is 0.375% per annum.
The commitment fee rate will be reduced (except wegard to the last out tranche) to 0.25%
per annum at any time that the unutilized commits@nder the asset-based credit facility are
equal to or less than 50% of the aggregate commisnender the asset-based revolving credit
facility. The Company also must pay customaryeketif credit fees.

The senior secured credit agreement for the team facility requires the Company to
prepay outstanding term loans, subject to certadegtions, with percentages of excess cash
flow, proceeds of non-ordinary course asset salééspositions of property, and proceeds of
incurrences of certain debt. In addition, the gesecured credit agreement for the asset-based
revolving credit facility requires the Company t@pay the asset-based revolving credit facility,
subject to certain exceptions, with proceeds ofominary course asset sales or dispositions of
property and any borrowings in excess of the thereat borrowing base. Beginning Septen
30, 2009, the Company is required to repay inst&ili:ion the loans under the term loan credit
facility in equal quarterly principal amounts in aggregate amount per annum equal to 1% of
the total funded principal amount at July 6, 200ith the balance payable on July 6, 2014.

All obligations under the Credit Facilities are anditionally guaranteed by substantiz
all of the Company’s existing and future domestibssdiaries (excluding certain immaterial
subsidiaries and certain subsidiaries designateddoompany under the Credit Facilities as
“unrestricted subsidiaries”).

All obligations and guarantees of those obligationder the term loan credit facility are
secured by, subject to certain exceptions, a sepandty security interest in all existing and
after-acquired inventory and accounts receivabfestpriority security interest in substantially
all of the Company’s and the guarantors’ tangilolé mtangible assets (other than the inventory
and accounts receivable collateral); and a firgirjty pledge of the capital stock held by the
Company. All obligations under the asset-basedlvaw credit facility are secured by all
existing and after-acquired inventory and accouedgivable, subject to certain exceptions.

The Credit Facilities contain certain covenantsluding, among other things, covenants
that limit the Company’s ability to incur additidrnadebtedness, sell assets, incur additional
liens, pay dividends, make investments or acqaissti or repay certain indebtedness.

For the year ended January 30, 2009, the Compahpdraowings of $0 and repayme
of $102.5 million, and for the 2007 Successor getiee Company had borrowings of $1.522
billion and repayments of $1.420 billion, under #sset based revolving credit facility. For the
year ended February 2, 2007, the Company had bomgsvef $2.013 billion and repayments of
$2.013 billion, under a prior revolving credit fatgi. As of January 30, 2009 and February 1,
2008, respectively, the Company had $0 and $10&lmin borrowings, $51.0 million and
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$28.8 million of commercial letters of credit, a®&3.7 million and $69.2 million of standby
letters of credit outstanding under the asset-besaulving credit facility, with excess
availability under that facility of $932.8 millioand $769.2 million. As of January 30, 2009 and
February 1, 2008, the Company had $2.3 billiontantsing under the term loan facility.

In addition, on July 6, 2007, in conjunction wittetMerger, the Company issued $1.175
billion aggregate principal amount of 10.625% seniates due 2015 (the “senior notes”) which
were issued net of a discount of $23.2 million aMich mature on July 15, 2015 pursuant to an
indenture, dated as of July 6, 2007 (the “senidemure”),and $725 million aggregate princiy
amount of 11.875%/12.625% senior subordinated &éggtes due 2017 (the “senior
subordinated notes”), which mature on July 15, 2@iirsuant to an indenture, dated as of July
6, 2007 (the “senior subordinated indenture”). $&mior notes and the senior subordinated
notes are collectively referred to herein as th@éga”. The senior indenture and the senior
subordinated indenture are collectively referretiéoein as the “indentures”.

Interest on the notes is payable on January 19aydl5 of each year, beginning
January 15, 2008. Interest on the senior notpayable in cash. Cash interest on the senior
subordinated notes will accrue at a rate of 11.8p8%@annum and PIK interest (as that term is
defined below) will accrue at a rate of 12.625% gn@num. For certain interest periods, the
Company may elect to pay interest on the senioorsliated notes by increasing the principal
amount of the senior subordinated notes or isso@vg senior subordinated notes (“PIK
interest”).

The notes are fully and unconditionally guarantege@ach of the existing and future
direct or indirect wholly owned domestic subsidearthat guarantee the obligations under the
Company’s Credit Facilities.

The Company may redeem some or all of the notasyatime at redemption prices
described or set forth in the indentures. In Jan@809 and January 2008, the Company
repurchased $44.1 million and $25.0 million, respety, of the 11.875%/12.625% senior
subordinated toggle notes due 2017, resultingetaprgains of $3.8 million and $4.9 million,
respectively.

The indentures contain certain covenants, inclydangong other things, covenants that
limit the Company’s ability to incur additional iedtedness, create liens, sell assets, enter into
transactions with affiliates, or consolidate ompdise of all of its assets.

Scheduled debt maturities for the Company’s figealrs listed below are as follows (in
thousands): 2009 - $14,158; 2010 - $26,415; 20823;779; 2012 - $23,272; 2013 - $23,292
thereafter - $4,046,132.

On July 6, 2007, immediately after the completibthe Merger, the Company
completed a cash tender offer to purchase any lantliss $200 million principal amount of
8 5/8% Notes due June 2010 (the “2010 Notes”). raxmately 99% of the 2010 Notes were
validly tendered and accepted for payment. Thddeoffer included a consent payment equal
to 3% of the par value of the 2010 Notes, and gagiments along with associated settlement
costs totaling $6.2 million were paid and reflecésdOther (income) expense in the 2007
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Successor period presented. Additionally, becthiss€ompany received the requisite consents
to the proposed amendments to the indenture pursuarhich the 2010 Notes were issued, a
supplemental indenture to effect such amendmergsewacuted and delivered. The
amendments, which eliminated substantially alhef testrictive covenants contained in the
indenture, became operative upon the purchasesdétidered 2010 Notes.

7. Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses interest rate swaps to manaigeeitest rate risk. In April 2007,
Buck entered into interest rate swaps, contingpahuhe completion of the Merger, on a
portion of the loans anticipated to result from kherger. These swaps were designated as cash
flow hedges on October 12, 2007. As a result cdd¢hsvaps, the Company is paying an all-in
fixed interest rate of 7.68% on a notional amountat to $866.7 million as of January 30, 2009.
The notional amount of these swaps amortizes arageyly basis through July 31, 2012.
Unrealized losses of $3.7 million for the 2007 Sassor period are included in Other (income)
expense in the consolidated statements of opegtiefiecting the changes in fair value of these
swaps prior to their designation as qualifying cieWw hedging relationships in October 2007,
which were offset by earnings under the contraghuavisions of the swaps of $1.7 million
during the same time period.

In October 2008 the Company terminated one ofritexeést rate swaps entered into by
Buck in April 2007 with a notional amount equal®36.7 million as of the date of termination.
The termination was the result of the bankruptaylatation by the counterparty to the swap and
this technical default gave the Company the righetminate the derivative contract. The
Company subsequently cash settled the swap in NoeeB008 for approximately $7.6 million,
including interest accrued to the date of termonati

The estimated fair value of the Compaterminated interest rate swap was a liabilit
approximately $5.0 million as of October 30, 200& (termination date). Based on various
factors, the Company concluded that the hedge waescéed to be highly eff